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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ12A318LLFE

2019 2018
2019 20184
$'000 $'000
FET FAT
Revenue WA 376,208 453,827 1,250,706 (17%)
(Loss)/profit from operations L (B18) % F (21,944) 8,693 43,900 (352%)
Loss before FEIERR R E A BT 18
non-controlling interests (47,873) (26,616) (166,086) 80%
Non-controlling interests EEliig 2 - (118) (867) -
Loss attributable to RATERBRR
equity shareholders EiLEE
of the Company (47,873) (26,498) (165,219) 81%
Loss per share SREE
Basic (HK$) YNG9 (0.020) (0.011) (0.069) 82%
Diluted (HK$) 58 (Br) (0.020) (0.011) (0.073) 82%
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) and
the management of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the
"Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “Year").

The Directors believe that our films segment is set to benefit from vast
opportunities in the long term. While focusing on developing the business,
the Company is actively seeking for other business opportunities in the
Huaihai area. Fulfillment of this strategic objective has brought significant
economic benefits to the Group in the past. However, our businesses
have been hit to some extent by the impact on raw material prices and
consumer sentiment amid recent economic challenges and uncertainty
resulting from the continued trade tensions between China and the US, as
well as a slower economic growth of China itself.

For the Year, the Group’s revenue from sales decreased by approximately
17.1% as compared with the year ended 31 December 2018, mainly
due to lower revenue from the films segment. The Group has grown our
photovoltaic segment safely without any safety incident while generating
strong revenue for the Company. In accordance with internal policies
based on meritocracy and diversity, professional training sessions were
provided to enable employees to accomplish every task assigned by their
departments more efficiently. Diversity among departments and employees
allows them to communicate smoothly at work, where business
information from the sales department was conveyed to the research and
development department in a timely and accurate manner, so as to make
improvement as required by customers, before the production department
conducted mass production with the improved production method. Every
change was made through seamless collaboration among departments
with professionalism and pursuit for better quality and consumer
satisfaction. From time to time, the Group also considers recruiting more
experienced sales personnel and participating in exhibitions for film-
related products as part of its strategy to gain more market shares. Our
team is committed to winning new customers for our product portfolio
and reducing the concentration risk on any single customer group by
diversifying our customer base. All members of the Company will continue
to forge ahead together.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

To seize the opportunities in the films segment and other businesses in
the Huaihai area in a timely fashion, the Group will continue to implement
its investment plan prudently and conservatively in response to current
market conditions. The Group requires a prudent financial forecast to
ensure its investments are in the best interest of the Company and the
shareholders thereof (the “Shareholders”) as a whole. We will consider
re-engineering and upgrading some parts of our production lines to
enhance our overall production efficiency, for the purpose of meeting the
demand from our existing and potential customers. We believe that such
investment plans will enable our films segment to stay competitive with
stronger profitability and better control over operating costs.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my thankfulness
and appreciation to my fellow Directors, management team and all the
staff members of the Group for their contributions and hard work during
the Year. | would also like to extend my most sincere gratitude to all the
Shareholders and business partners for their continuous supports.

Guo, Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Organisation Chart
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(As at 31 December 2019)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded a decrease in revenue in general as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2018.

Our three photovoltaic power stations operated smoothly and there
were no safety incidents throughout the Year. Revenue generated from
this segment was slightly increased year-on-year due to the photovoltaic
power stations built in June 2018. In order to promote the sustainable and
orderly development of the photovoltaic industry, the local government
increased efforts to resolve the arrears of subsidies for photovoltaic power
generation in the first half of 2019. It not only expanded the list of subsidy
projects, but also started annual larger-scale appropriations to effectively
curb the subsidy gap of the National Renewable Energy Fund and promote
stock subsidies in place faster.

RESULTS OF OPERATION
REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group include manufacturing and sales
of BOPP films, sales of sub-processing cigarette films, properties
development, generation of photovoltaic power and cloud-related
business. Our revenue is mainly generated from the sales of goods sold
excluding returns, discounts, value added taxes and other sales taxes.
During the Year, our revenue decreased by approximately HK$77.6 million,
or approximately 17.1%, from approximately HK$453.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$376.2 million. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in revenue arising from the sales
of sub-processing cigarette films. Details can be found as follows:

Manufacturing and sales of BOPP films

The revenue generated from manufacturing and sales of BOPP films
decreased by approximately 12.0%, from approximately HK$342.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$300.9 million
for the Year.

REVENUE - PRODUCT ANALYSIS I A - IRER D
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR O

Sales of sub-processing cigarette films

During the Year, the Group recorded a substantial decrease in revenue
generated from the sales of sub-processing cigarette films as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly due to the
departure of one of our major customers who contributed approximately
HK$44.2 million revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018. Other
customers contributed revenue amounting to approximately HK$4.8
million for the Year and we will consider to expand relevant products size
after more prudent financial analysis.

Properties development

All related properties development revenue was generated from sales
of remaining inventory of previous property project, which contributed
approximately HK$8.8 million to the Group for the Year.

Generation of photovoltaic power

For the Year, the Group had three photovoltaic power stations in
operation, with a total grid-connected capacity of 40 megawatts (“MW").
Total amount of power generation rose from 48.1 million kwh to 54.7
million kwh. The revenue generated from this segment increased by
approximately 9.0%, from approximately HK$50.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$54.7 million for the Year.

Cloud-related business

The revenue generated from this segment amounted to approximately
HK$4.3 million for the Year. Revenue in this segment represents service
fees receiving from providing services to local government of the PRC.

GROSS PROFIT

Our gross profit decreased by approximately HK$34.9 million, or
approximately 30.3%, from approximately HK$115.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$80.5 million for the Year.
The decrease is mainly due to the clearance of some of our BOPP films for
purpose of avoiding backlog inventory. Our gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 25.4% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately 21.4% for the Year.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately HK$4.6
million, or approximately 25.5%, from approximately HK$18.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$22.9 million for
the Year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in delivery costs,
custom duties expenses and entertainment expenses from manufacturing
and sales of BOPP films sector for promotion expenses of our BOPP films
products..

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$13.7 million,
or approximately 15.7%, from approximately HK$87.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$73.5 million for the Year
due to the decrease of salaries resulted from the decrease of the number
of staff of the Group.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS

During the Year, the Group recorded impairment loss of approximately
HK$5.0 million in the sales of sub-processing cigarette films and
approximately HK$9.9 million in the cloud-related business sector. The
impairment loss represented decrease in value on property, plant, and
equipment and goodwill. There is no impairment of intangible assets
recorded for the Year.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs decreased by approximately HK$1.0 million from
approximately HK$8.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately HK$7.2 million for the Year. It was mainly due to decrease
of financial interest incurred from bank borrowing.

INCOME TAX

Our income tax decreased from approximately HK$7.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$3.8 million for the Year,
because of the decrease of gross profit of the Group.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded a loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of approximately HK$47.9 million
for the Year as compared to a loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of approximately HK$26.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR O

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the cash and cash equivalent of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$165.4 million (which were denominated
in HK$, RMB and US$) as compared with approximately HK$185.4 million
as at 31 December 2018, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$20.0 million. Such decrease was mainly due to the Group’s net cash
inflow of operating activities, net cash inflow of investment activities and
net cash outflow of financing activities that amounted to approximately
HK$84.1 million, approximately HK$4.8 million and approximately
HK$101.4 million respectively. As at 31 December 2019, the Group'’s
current ratio being the rate of total current assets to total current liabilities
was 2.5 (2018: 2.1).

BORROWING AND GEARING RATIO

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$69.9 million (as at 31 December 2018:
approximately HK$159.6 million) which were denominated in HK$, RMB
and US$, of which approximately HK$69.9 million were current interest-
bearing borrowings (as at 31 December 2018: HK$159.6 million) and
nil was non-current interest-bearing borrowings (as at 31 December
2018: Nil). The Group’s gearing ratio, measured by net debt divided by
shareholders’ equity at the end of the Year and multiplied by 100%,
decreased from -4.2% on 31 December 2018 to -12.4% on 31 December
2019. The decrease in the gearing was primarily due to decrease in bank
loan during the Year.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATE

For the Year, the Group was exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases made by the subsidiaries of the Company located
in the PRC which gave rise to receivables and payables that were
denominated in US$. Currently, the Group has no hedging policy with
respect to the foreign exchange exposure.

As the functional currency for all subsidiaries in the PRC are RMB, these
subsidiaries were not exposed to any currency risks due to the exchange
rate movement of RMB during the Year. For subsidiaries established
outside the PRC, they had no material financial assets and liabilities
denominated in RMB. Accordingly, the Group’s exposure to RMB risk is
insignificant.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, the Group’s total capital expenditure amounted to
approximately HK$4.8 million.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

RBEERIHBEIR

M2019F 12 A31 8 - AEBENRE KBS FEIER
51654 B BB (LB - ARBRZETIE) -
ER2018F 12 A31 B 1854 B BB TH A #120.0
BEAL - R EEHRAEBLL TR LR
AFE -  BEFHMBESRAFELREZSNER
SRAFEIRNASSIAEET 4888 BLK
101 4B BB ILATE - R2019F 12 A31H @ A& H
BBt R (BAlRE E EREERE B FEREMLE)
£25(20184 1 2.1) °

ERREERBLER

AEEREE2019F12 831 BB EREELD
B69.9E EH T (20185128310 : 4915968
E87r) (LB - ARBREILE) » £EH469.9
BEBTAHEER(R2018F12A31H - 4
159.6 B & & 7T) REIERV ARG BfE 5K (7R 20186 12
A31H:#&) AEEMNEESBELE(UARFRD
SFETERK AMRERAEZS BRI 100% 518 ) R 20184 12
A318M8-4.2% 8 E2019F12 A31HEI-12.4%
BERBBUERRBRLEZHRAFERITEFRD

RS AR

RAEE  AEETRFEBHEANARBNERBE
TTIHE SR ERRE - 1T 2 A2 A SE TTATE B JE IR IR I e
N3RIE - MEERIMNERE - RSB B IS INER
B RTSL SRR

mRAETEMERRMNINEEE /AR » %
SR RN & E F AR BT R B W R
SNE LR o AR BRSNS O I B X B S IA AR
AHENEASREERAE - Bt - ARENARE
R NEK o

BRI
WAREE - AEBENERBIZ BTN B4 STHEBT «



CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged its lease prepayments,
machinery and building that held for its own use with a net book value of
approximately HK$121.8 million (as at 31 December 2018: approximately
HK$124.5 million) and trade receivable approximately HK$36.9 million (as
at 31 December 2018: approximately HK$37.6 million) for the purpose of
securing loans with carrying value of approximately HK$55.9 million (as at
31 December 2018: approximately HK$85.4 million).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed above, there is no significant event after the Year and up
to the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any significant investment, material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 245 employees (as
compared with 317 employees as at 31 December 2018) with total
staff cost of approximately HK$45.4 million for the Year. The Group’s
remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to market
terms and individual merits. The Company has also adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme and a share option scheme to provide incentive or
reward to high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
Year (for the year ended 31 December 2018: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PROSPECTS

The trade dispute between China and USA reached preliminary consensus
after multiple negotiations in 2019, but the outbreak of COVID-19 since
January 2020 has caused a major impact on domestic factories in the
PRC. Many factories faced difficulty in resumption of operation, and with
the outbreak of foreign epidemics, some export-oriented enterprises will
face the secondary impact on order fulfillment. Furthermore, Russia and
Saudi Arabia started an oil price war again in March 2020. It is therefore
estimated that economic and trade instability should continue in 2020.

In order to ensure the healthy turnover of the Company’s cash flow and
avoid backlog inventory, a subsidiary of the Group has started to promote
some products with low profit margin since 2019. These conditions are
expected to decrease in 2020. For all investment and operation projects,
we adopt a prudent business model and some relatively stable financial
policies to ensure that the Company can operate efficiency under the
pressure.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce exposure to
credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of
the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can
meet its funding requirements from time to time.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (as at 31 December 2018: Nil).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (referred to as the “Group”
or "we") is a cigarette packaging material manufacturer and supplier in
Mainland China with a leading position in Jiangsu Province. It focuses
on developing the businesses of photovoltaic power and manufacturing
of cigarette packing material. The principal facilities are located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

This report summarises several subjects of the Group’s business practices
for the Environmental, Social and Governance (referred to as the “ESG")
report (referred to as the “Report”) and its relevant implemented
policies and strategies in relation to the Group's operational practices
and environmental protection. For information regarding corporate
governance, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report”

annual report 2019.

in the

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
(the “Reporting Year” or “2019").

Reporting Framework

The Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG reporting guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK").

Reporting Scope

The Report content covers the Group’'s ESG policies and measures,
and compliance of the major subsidiaries which include Qingdao Ener
Packaging Technology and Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science Technology
located in the PRC.

Comments and Feedback

We make every effort to ensure consistency between the Chinese and
English versions of this Report. However, in the event of any inconsistency,
the English version shall prevail.

The progress of the Group depends in part on valuable comments from
stakeholders. For any clarifications or advice regarding the content of
this ESG Report, please forward your comments and suggestions to
investorrelations@sheentai.com.
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

Business longevity shall only be granted to those who look beyond short-
term gains and consider the external impacts they have on the economy,
society, and environment.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that identifying and addressing stakeholder views lay
a solid foundation to the long-term growth and success of the Group. The
Group engages with a wide network of stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, shareholders, government and community.

Employees ~  YEEECTTERRRRAETS
ES
©
Customers : At
e O) HOLDINGS
= .
S - e

Government

B

The Group develops multiple engagement channels that provide
opportunities for stakeholders to express their views on the Group’s
general business conduct and sustainability management. The
engagement channels are summarised in the following table. To reinforce
mutual trust and respect, the Group is committed to maintaining effective
communication channels with stakeholders in both formal and informal
ways. This can enable the Group to better shape its business strategies
in order to respond to their needs and expectations, anticipate risks and
strengthen key relationships.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Community

o)

Shareholders

PR

Suppliers
HrEm
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Stakeholders
BHHE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Engagement channels

BERE

RE HERELARE

Topics of interest/concern

Bx BYIEE

Shareholders

IR

Employees

(==

Customers

=R

Suppliers
fitrEm

Government

B

Community
HE

e General meetings

o REXRE

e Regular corporate publications including
financial reports and ESG report N

o THIGZEHNRY  BEMBHRELRE g
MERmE

e Circulars and announcements

o BHEAE

e Direct enquiries

o HEDTH

e Corporate website

o ATEAIUL

e Performance appraisals
o REFHA

e Training sessions

o IEFIRRIZ

e Social media

o ITAEEEE

e Business meetings

o Eam

» Complaint and feedback channels
o RIFRREBRE

e Social media

o MR

e Corporate website

CIY/NS i

e Business meetings

o XEBEm

e Supplier assessment

o {HERFHL

e Continuous direct communication

o REEKER

e Statutory filings and notification

o EEHEIBHM

e Regulatory or voluntary disclosures
o EEINEMIKE

e Community activities
o HEEF

e Corporate donations
o (PR

e Corporate website
CI/NS i

e Social media

o HRIREE

Business strategies and sustainability
ETERBE R AR R

Financial performance

BITE3AE

Corporate governance

PEER

Training and development
ol R R

Employee remuneration and welfare
& & Z i KA A

Occupational health and safety
BERERREZD

Equal opportunities

FERE

Products and service quality and reliability
Em R E 2 KA S

Client data security

BREHBIERE

Business ethics

[EESELES

Fair competition
NEFRF
Business ethics
EESELr

Compliance with law and regulations
BASA

Business strategies and sustainability
EIERME KA FEER
Environmental protection

IRIBIRTE

Fair employment opportunities
REpEHE

Environmental protection
RIBRE

IERZEREEERAT
2019F F



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERRS

ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

Environmental sustainability is a key part of the Group’s social
responsibility effort. Guided by our Corporate Social Responsibility Policy,
we work to manage our direct and indirect impacts to the environment
through mitigating our own footprint and advocating green finance.

The Group is committed to providing quality products to clients in a clean
and sustainable manner. Our activities typically engage in the processes
of manufacturing and printing films, such as ejection and stretching,
coarse slitting, fine slitting and printing. Environmental impacts of facilities
are managed by the management systems of each respective subsidiary.
The system ensures strict environmental compliance, as well as continual
improvement towards cleaner practices. Periodic system reviews are
conducted to ensure its effectiveness.

Aspect A1: Emissions and waste generated

The Group implements robust systems to ensure all discharges to air,
water and land are compliant with regulatory standards. The Group has
mainly focus on environmental protection and pollutant emission during
production and operation. By establishing a management system in
accordance with the national laws and regulations, the Group constantly
monitor and review the emission performance during production.
The Group will make every effort on clean production, energy-saving,
consumption reduction, pollution reduction and efficiency improvement,
aims to minimise the impact and safeguard of the ecosystem.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has encountered no incident of
non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to air
emissions, effluent discharges, noise emissions, greenhouse gases, waste
at all operating regions. Major laws and regulations applicable are detailed
in respective sections.

Air emissions

The Group’s air emissions are mainly released from the vehicle usage and
production processes. Company fleet and machinery undergoes regular
maintenance which ensures fuel efficiency, thereby reducing emissions.
Production processes at the PRC facility are the main source of air
emissions, such as VOCs.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of air ~ARERIEHIIANEEFREZFERBIFENRRL
emissions include, but are not limited to, the Atmospheric Pollution ~ (FFEIXRIFEIIEE)  Br T HRARBERIEHUKTEHFE
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC. In addition to keeping air JEEZFIN - REBBE—FRDE=RGEY) -
emission levels meeting statutory requirements, the Group commits to

curbing air pollutants further.

During the Reporting Year under review, the Group’s air emissions of ~ REIBIREFEN - AEBEREE T ABHERMERD
Sulphur Oxides (SO,), Nitrogen Oxides (NO,), and Particulate Matter ~ FR&{L#1(SOx) « WEAL¥ (NOX) K FEKLY) (PM) 5 & 5/
(PM) released from vehicle exhaust were recorded. The Group released — BER{ 7220194 - AEBE D AIPER T31.03A2T »
31.03 kg, 0.71 kg and 2.28 kg of Nitrogen Oxides, Sulphur Oxides, and ~ 0.71 AT k228 AT WA ALY - i LY R FER
Particulate Matter in 2019 respectively. The Group’s production processes ¥ + AEBIMAEERIZHM T 4.04 BB KL E
released 4.04 tonnes of Volatile Organic Compounds in 2019. ) o

Air emissions

BER BERR

Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kg 31.03
AE1L¥ (NOx) NI

Sulphur Oxides (SO,) kg 0.71

& 1LY (SOx) NI

Particulate Matter (PM) kg 2.28
R (PM) NI

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) tonne 4.04
ERMERILEY (VOQ) L7

Effluent discharges 35 K BERR

The waste water from production processes results in effluent discharges ~ RE4ERRHNBEKEELTERIBRSKEM - &
require treatment. Each facility ensures its proper handling, either by  RIERFSKAA KRS BENERBEEEREEFEA
qualified subcontractors or on-site processing prior to discharge to MRS - BEALAEESH O BERIURIELEE - &
municipal sewers. Processing records from subcontractors will then be  {FIMERMEHL @ EELEFTK  LBEDHREHR - T
retained by the Group. Our facilities also generate domestic wastewater — HIESBI A% 8] 2 F A 2 E AT RIS KPERF A AR
that will be monitored prior to discharge. Periodic monitoring and testing ~NEABEIREBEFE - BRS/KEEN AN EEEA
a comprehensive list of parameters ensure reqgulatory compliance and  SEEER BIRE TR P BEATLAE) o IR
no adverse environmental impacts of effluent discharges. The major  REFEER - REB LB T 46337 77 K)57K °
applicable laws and regulations related to control of effluent discharges

include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on the Prevention and

Control of Water Pollution. During the Reporting Year under review, the

Group released a total amount of 463 cubic metre of wastewater.

Effluent discharge Unit 2019
5 IR BERR B 2019 F
Amount of wastewater discharged cubic metre 463
KB E LA

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F 3R
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Noise emissions 2 ZHER

The Group’s activities are minor sources of noise emissions, which include A& B H)JE S A M AR S HEHUR - SIEFAKEE R
mechanical noise from the use of machinery and equipment, as well as ~ FRENENRE - UREHBHHREDRE - #RTE
aerodynamic noise from transportation vehicles. Regular maintenance ~ EARENBE IR E AT BRBE K TFRECEERE
of machinery and pre-startup inspections ensure noise levels are kept A o BIERFERIAAREENEAR FTAAM BRI o BRRERRAR
within regulatory limits. Operational hours are always conducted within IR F AJ IR BN EIRZEREE « T HABAR S HEM
stipulated time frames under regulations. Adherence to strict procedures K PRI HEREETT & BB /KT AN AREET
ensures these hazards are managed effectively. Regular monitoring of &R EIEEERE - EESEHRERIEENEAY
noise emission levels ensures operations are compliant to regulatory levels. &% {# ©

All equipment used meets noise-related specifications and employees use

personal protective equipment that mitigates against noise hazards.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of noise B ZHHIEMNEEEMAEEERBIFETRER
emissions include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Prevention (I ARKEMBREFLFIEE) o EITREFEMN
and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution. Noise assessments are &R ZHEHUA At R A2 -

conducted to determine the impact of noise emissions on the local

community.

Greenhouse gas emissions and climate change mitigation BERBHERRRIERBERZ

T

To implement an effective approach to climate change mitigation, it AEEEMOREECREFTEH - BWEEZE T#HA

is important to have a comprehensive understanding of the carbon  SEMIRFEHKIE - ZAEEMNREDEZREAE

emission sources of the Group. The Group’s carbon footprint is primarily — (RA#EE ZHm) - REIERSEFERN - REBHEE
Wl gy

due to electricity usage, accounted under Scope Il emissions. During the 15,678 40 & Lixg = (B _ELRE =) AR
Reporting Year under review, the Group generated a total of 15,678.40 R (&E—k_) - RBER/EF T KEEEIE0.29

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) of greenhouse gases (Scope WIS LR E=E °
I and II), resulting in a carbon intensity of 0.29 tCO,e per square meter
gross floor area.
GHG Emissions in 2019 2019 FBRERBEHK
18%
Scope |
B mE-
] SEope I
FE_—

82%

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Greenhouse gas emissions

BERBIHER

RE HERELARE

Scope | (Direct Emissions) tCO,e 2,779.2
EE— (EEHER) WS tiRE =
Stationary combustion tCO,e 2,651.0
EE R 1% ME—f iR E =
Mobile combustion tCO%e 128.2
RENRIE M-S tixE=
Scope Il (Indirect Emissions) tCOse 12,899.2
EE — (EEHER) M|k E =
Electricity purchased tCOe 12,899.2
BE M—ftixEE
Total (Scope I and I1) tCO,e 15,678.4
arH(EE-R=) WS LIRE S
Carbon intensity (Scope | and II) tCO,e per 0.29

mRE (BE—-R=)

m? gross floor area

BYIRREEEE —_S(CRES

The Group is committed to reducing our carbon footprint. Scope | and
Il emissions are addressed through our energy reduction initiatives (See
Section: A2 Energy. Furthermore, we employ the following measures to
minimise the emissions.

o The Group encourages the use of video conferencing or emails for
communication as far as possible to minimise the carbon footprint
from overseas business trips.

o We make every effort to reduce waste generation and raise
recycling rates to lessen GHG releases from landfill decomposition.

Hazardous waste management

All collected hazardous waste, mainly the waste engine oil, is transported
and treated by authorised contractors who possess qualifications to
handle hazardous waste. The Company will often checked the amount
of disposed waste with the contractors reports for consistency to ensure
all matter is entirely disposed of in the most appropriate manner. All
hazardous waste is stored at designated storage points that are leak-
proof and rain-proof. At each stage, the Company has established clear
protocols to ensure all hazardous matter is handled and stored in a safe
and secure manner. Any incident of spillage or leakage will be handled
under proper protocol and will be documented.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of hazardous
waste include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution from Solid Wastes. To embody
sustainable development principles, we aim to explore opportunities to
replace raw materials, equipment and production techniques that are
highly hazardous to the environment with less hazardous alternatives. We
segregate our hazardous waste to ensure those recyclable are recycled,
such as toner cartridges that are returned to suppliers for recycling.

REBB R NBPITR BT - BE— R —HRuE B
EIRERHBI(RA2BETR) BRHE » 51 - RAIERENT 545
MER D HEDR

s AKBEZBHRECEARESHAETREE MU
A G INE IR TR R o

o HMBRMERIERVMELENRESERER
F o PR HER D BB R ER AR o

BEERNER

FEERENEEERY (X R REEEBKH) TH
ERATREYMREERNREACHERNEIE -
ARBZBRERHRERRNBERTRABHRE
— 2 NERMEBEENHOUSEEN T A BEE
B MAEAEREENOFREN R NAEERFR
B oo EERE - ARG EHARSRE  BRAEEE
ME AL 20T R - EfDEHRRIRER
FEIRIBE S SRR FIRTER ©

BERAEEENENERERZEERBRETR
AR EARRMBIERRESRIREEE) ° B&
BAFEHRRAY  RABIRERE - BHERER
ERAHNEMH  RIBEREERTMERAETER/
E-RMeREEEERY  BARUERBSAEDS
ABERER - IR EHERRRERNEE
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During the Reporting Year under review, the Group generated a total of ~HREIBHREFERN - AEBELEE2,679ATEEEE
2,679 kg of hazardous waste, resulting in a hazardous waste intensity of E¥ - BEBEEVHRE AT T I KEEER0.052

0.05 kg per square meter gross floor area. T
Hazardous waste generated in 2019 019 FEENEEREY
1%
Waste printer cartridge
B Ezionss
m  Waste engine oil
REZE MM
99%

Hazardous waste

BEREY

Waste printer cartridge kg 24
BEITORES NI

Waste engine oil kg 2,655
BEZEHH N

Total hazardous waste generated kg 2,679
FEEEEREYEE NI

Hazardous waste intensity kg per m? 0.05
FEREDEE gross floor area

R EFTAEERE

Non-hazardous waste management BERZEYER

The typical non-hazardous waste generated by the Group’s facilities ANEBRGELN —REEZFEVEITEBHLEEZER
includes plastic and food waste. The majority of waste is disposed as 4 © KEBD EEEYHSRABELOINES - ER R
recycle by qualified contractors. As waste reduction more often incurs less ~ BEEEVEAMIRIBFEBE /N BREBAEZEY &
environmental impacts compared to waste recycling, we strive to place  BRBREEZEWEL > RO EINTER LD ELRE
greater emphasis on the reduction of waste generated than reusing and  ZE#) -

recycling of waste.

Non-hazardous waste generated in 2019 2019 FEENBREREY
1%
Plastic
B oy

[l Foodwaste
BERY

99%

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of non-
hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution from Solid Wastes.
Seeking to contribute to the closed-loop economy, we employ the
following measures and initiatives to reduce the generation of non-
hazardous waste, and raise recycling rates.

o We organise and maintain waste separation systems and recycling
bins for collecting materials. Smart printing modes are also available
for staff as well.

. We monitor and evaluate the usage of material to avoid overstock,
as well as strengthen production inspection all through production
processes to reduce and avoid rework.

During the Reporting Year under review, the Group generated a total of
20,120 kg of non-hazardous waste, resulting in a non-hazardous waste
intensity of 0.37 kg per square meter gross floor area.

RE HERELARE

BREREEEVENERERZEEABR/RETR
PR EARKAMBEEEREYSRREREE) - BA
FEREEMBER - RARR TR R ERR D E
EEEEEY LR BREAE

o RPAEBMMERERY D BEAREAREEN
FHEOEIYAE - B REENRIEA BRI HEEEER

o HMEARFEMERE  UeEFB%Z R
IR R EEERENEERES LUK D%
HiE-

REFEREFEN AEBEXEEL20,1200TEE
BEEY)  BEBEEVMEEAETHREEEREITA
o

Non-hazardous waste Unit

EmEREEY By

Landfill ™ kg 0
HEIE M NIy

Recycled kg 20,120
BEEA NI

Total non-hazardous waste generated kg 20,120
FFELBREREYEE NI

Non-hazardous waste intensity kg per m? 0.37

BEREYNEE gross floor area
BYEIARBRERBEAT
Note (1): No data is available in this Reporting Year, as we are in the process of ~ MiFE(1) : ABEFEE/AIBEE - BARMESEXRTH

establishing data collection systems for the non-hazardous waste that
sent to landfills.

Aspect A2: Use of resources

The Group is committed to continually monitoring and improving resource
efficiency as an integral part of business strategy and operating methods,
as well as complying with relevant government policies and environmental
legislations. During the Reporting Year, the Group has encountered no
incident of non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
related to the use of energy and water resources at all operating regions.
Major laws and regulations applicable are detailed in respective sections.

HEEEEYMOERKEHE -

BEA2 : EREA

EREBRBEEREENAN R AEEBNHEE
AR EBERR - DA K8 T ME B BUR UK N IR S o
RBEFER - AEESLEHEYELIRERER
ERMKERERNEREZREANEMS - TREM
ERERN AR ES A -
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Energy BEIR

The Group’s energy profile consists of the petrol from the use of vehicles ~ AN&EEMAERAA BIEERAERWMEER VREGTHSE
and the use of electricity and natural gas for facility operations. Electricity 1R RKARLERME - WAL XEBKHERE
use fuels the majority of our operations, accounted for 54% of total 2019 FAEG4AREFEMN54% - REBHREFEN
energy consumption in 2019. During the Reporting Year under review, the ~ A&EE D 5)E# 48,697 THKEH 257,715 FHKEH
Group consumed 48,697 GJ and 57,715 GJ of direct and indirect energy ~ BE# KfEEZEE - BLREERE VI KEERE
respectively, resulting a total energy intensity of 1.97 GJ per square meter ~ 1.97 TIKEE

gross floor area.

Energy consumption in 2019 2019 FHEFE

Natural gas
Electricity purchased
fEE
Petrol (gasoline)
i
Energy consumption Unit 2019
AERE B 20194
Direct GJ 48,697
IER3 TREE
Natural gas GJ 47,116
RKAR FIEE
Petrol (gasoline) GJ 1,581
b TIKEE
Indirect GJ 57,715
fe# FIKEE
Electricity purchased GJ 57,715
BE TREH
Total (Direct and Indirect) GJ 106,412
At (EEREE) TIEE
Energy intensity GJ per m? 1.97
REREE gross floor area

FEREEMBETHRER

The major applicable laws and regulations related to energy use include, BREERE AN T EEAEZEERLBERENF
but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Energy Conservation. The Group % A RHEFMBIEILIELIRE) » NEB K BT 54
is committed to minimising fuel and electricity consumption through the — #3E PRI FIE 1 0EFE

following initiatives.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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o We have installed energy-efficient LED lighting and cooling systems
in production areas. We have replaced computer equipment,
servers, and monitors with energy-efficient models, and minimise
energy usage through the utilization of power-saving modes.

Water resources

Production processes as well as general amenities make use of water. At
the Group, our facilities withdraw water majorly from municipal supplies.
We have not encountered any issues in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose. However, water resources should not be taken for granted and
conserved to ensure a sustainable future.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to water use include,
but are not limited to, the Water Law of PRC. The Group practices the
following initiatives to curtail our water consumption.

° As part of our general maintenance programme, we regularly check
piping and taps for leakages and damage, and ensure their prompt
repair. We monitor water readings at regular intervals when no
water is being used to ensure against hidden water leakages.

o We give priority to water-saving products, such as the adoption of
low or dual flush toilets, and low-flow faucets or water outlets. This
is carried out in tandem to the promotion of water-saving habits
throughout premises.

During the Reporting Year under review, the Group consumed a total of
49,016 cubic metre of water, resulting in a water intensity of 0.91 cubic
metre per square meter gross floor area.

Water consumption

RE HERELARE

s HMELEERELZKTHELEDRARSAER
o BB EMRE - MRS RBRIERS
ERRERLSE - W MERERUR D RERERE -

KER

HERER —RREHERK - REEORIEEEH
ERTR AR K o BAPIAE SKEE A /ORI S (] T Rt
A - NEFKEREREMENR - 2EQAKAR
[EA BB RAAINR ©

BERRAKNEZBERZRERBEETRIFEA
RIMBIOE) - REBETT TIERIABAFEK o

o FR—RREFEN D BRAEHREE
BHKEBERDRKMIEE - BREREGEE
& o TAE KIS E IR KERTE R - IR
TEERKES -

o RMERZEREKESR  HIIEKSEEHKS
MUK REKEERHKD  BREREYD
EHEEEKDIE -

REREREFER - AEBEHIEFEA9,016 2T KK -
FRBERETF I KELEE0.91 77K -

Kk

Total water consumption cubic metre 49,016
HBFEKE LA

Water consumption intensity cubic metre per m? gross floor area 0.91
FREE B ORBREE BN 7K

Aspect A3: The environment and natural resources

The Group strives to build an eco-conscious culture that ingrains positive
lifestyles and habits among employees. For corporate social activities
and other events, low-carbon dietary choices and products from social
enterprises are prioritised. Waste reduction plans are rolled out for larger-
scale events.

BHA3 : RERRARER

AREBEREREIL - EREBEKRFHE
AAAMEE - BNEEE AP REMES - 28
FTEMUHELENERRYLER  XHAEESE
TTREERT &) ©
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group ingrains social responsibility into all aspects of its operations.
Maintaining honest and authentic dialogue with staff, the Group seeks
to address their needs and views that ensure our conduct is responsible
at all times. We commit to offering a fair and safe workplace with staff
development opportunities. Furthermore, the Group commits to the
delivery of quality products grounded on ethical business conduct and
supply chain management, as well as to meaningful engagements with
the community.

Aspect B1: Employment

The Group employed 245 employees as at the end of the Reporting Year,
of which 179 and 66 are male and female staff respectively. The Group
employed 245 full-time with the majority of staff in the age range of
under 50 years old. In terms of the workforce by region, approximately
68% of the Group's employees were located in Qingdao, with the
remaining staff located in other regions of the PRC.

Workforce by gender in 2019
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Based on the principles of fairness and equality, the Group’s human
resources policies adhere to relevant labour laws, regulations and industry
practices, covering areas such as compensation, dismissal, promotion,
working hours, recruitment, rest periods, diversity and other benefits
and welfare. During the Reporting Year, the Group has encountered no
incident of non-compliance with all major applicable laws and regulations
related to employment at all operating regions. Major laws and regulations
applicable include, but are not limited to the Labour Law of the PRC.

Remuneration and welfare

Employees of the Group are remunerated at a competitive level and are
rewarded according to their performance and experience. The Group's
human resources policies outline the terms and conditions of employment,
expectations for employees’ conduct and behaviors, and employees’
rights and benefits. The remuneration package of employees may include
incentive schemes, discretionary bonuses and/or over-time payments, in
addition to salaries. Any applicable restrictions on wage deduction are
stated transparently in the human resources policies. The promotion and
remuneration of the Group’s employees are subject to periodic review.

Recruitment and promotion

The human resources department of each respective subsidiary conducts
a comprehensive recruitment review process based on pre-determined job
function requirements. The Group’s recruitment and promotion process
are carried out in a fair and open manner for all employees; employees
are recognised and rewarded by their contribution, work performance
and skills, and outcomes will not be affected by any discrimination on
the grounds of age, sex, marital status, family status, race, disability,
nationality, religion, political affiliation and sexual orientation and other
factors. In the case of dismissal, adherence to the Group’s human
resources policies ensures the entire procedure is compliant with statutory
requirements.

Anti-discrimination and diversity

We embrace inclusive employment that builds a respectful workplace.
The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate
on the basis of age, sex, marital status, family status, race, disability,
nationality, religion, political affiliation and sexual orientation. Personnel
staff, line manager and all other employees who may be involved in staff
recruitment receive training in non-discriminatory practices. We promote
a harmonious and respectful workplace for all. With the aim to ensure fair
and equal protection for all employees, the Group has zero-tolerance for
sexual harassment or other forms of abuse in the workplace in any form,
which is a violation of the labour laws.
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Employee communications

The Group's policies and procedures included in staff handbooks are
reviewed and updated regularly. The Group discourages and disallows
any behavior that violates the regulations in staff handbooks. Offenders
will receive a warning, and the Group has the right to terminate the
employment contract with offenders for any serious violations. The
Group’s staff grievance mechanism provides confidential channels by
which staff may report suspected cases of rights infringement, which are
then handled according to formal procedures.

Work-life balance

We seek to cultivate a culture of healthy work-life balance. The working
hours management policy ensures no excessive working hours. The
Group, subject to the human resources policies of respective subsidiary,
assists staff to balance commitments outside of work. Regular reviews are
held to refine and improve work-life balance arrangements. To encourage
social bonding in the workplace, the Group arranged recreational events
during the Reporting Year, such as staff leisure activities that promote
cohesive bonding among employees.
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During the Reporting Year under review, the Group-wide employee
turnover rate was 33.3%. In terms of gender category, the male and
female turnover rate were 35.0% and 28.9% respectively.

Turnover rate

Group-wide
REE
By Gender
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Aspect B2: Workplace health and safety

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining a workplace that
minimises safety risk and maximises the health and welfare of our
employees. It is of paramount importance to ensure a safe and healthy
workplace for our employees. The Group’s “Guidelines on Occupational
Safety and Health” was established to inform employees the potential
health and safety hazards in the workplace, and the corresponding
preventative measures. During the Reporting Year, the Group has
encountered no incident of non-compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations related to occupational health and safety at all operating
regions. Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not limited
to, the PRC Law on Work Safety.

The Group spares no effort to safeqguard the safety of our employees and
the workplace. We adopt the best practices through the following safety
policies and procedures.

o All safety management system responsibilities and accountabilities
are identified and allocated. We conduct safety risk assessments that
identify and control work hazards within the prescribed hierarchy
of control, and residual risk evaluation within the guidelines. We
take a prevention-orientation approach where on-site inspections
are conducted frequently to rectify any non-conformances before
further complications.

o We implement transparent mechanisms for reporting hazards,
injuries, illnesses and close calls. It is ensured all accidents are
investigated and reviewed. By working with line managers,
corrective actions that address root causes are drawn up. Any non-
compliance to safety rules and regulations, negligence of duties,
irresponsibility is to be held responsible.

o We have systematic claims management mechanisms for personnel
injured at work. In the unfortunate event of an incident, we place
great importance on a healthy rehabilitation process. We assist a
smooth rehabilitation process whereby the well being and self-
esteem of the individual is promoted.

o We ensure that person who perform the tasks is competent
and training attendance records are well documented. All new
employees undergo general safety orientation. Sign-in procedures
are implemented for contractors and visitors to ensure their
safety. All subcontracted work, such as construction work, is to be
performed with equally stringent safety standards. Prior to work
commencement, we request the safety risk assessment reports and
monitor at regular intervals.
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Aspect B3: Development and training

People are our greatest assets. We tailor the macro-level development
of our human capital to the Group’s corporate strategy. At respective
subsidiaries, the Group develops yearly training plans that comply with
relevant statutory requirements and cater to the needs of our staff.
During annual appraisal sessions, in-depth consultation ensures micro-
level training needs are identified. Internal training programmes provided
by the Group include induction training, on-the-job training, mentoring
schemes, and cross-departmental training. To further promote continuous
development, staff is entitled to educational leave to attend external
programmes, such as external public trainings, lectures and seminars.
The Group provides tuition reimbursement for eligible staff to engage in
programmes that enrich job knowledge. During the Reporting Year, the
Group has encountered no incident of non-compliance with statutory
requirements related to staff training and development at all operating
regions.

During the Reporting Year under review, the Group has provided a total of
160 training hours that averages to 0.6 hours per staff.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group has established and implemented anti-child and forced labour
policies that meet the highest legal and ethical standards. We do not
engage in or condone the unlawful employment or exploitation of children
in the workplace or the use of forced labour. Staff handbooks contain
clear policies relating to relevant labour laws, regulations and industry
practices, covering areas such as compensation, dismissal, promotion,
working hours, recruitment, rest periods, diversity and other benefits
and welfare. Employment contracts stipulate terms and conditions in
adherence to statutory regulations, and are available in multiple languages
as necessary. The rights and freedoms of every individual are protected as
no worker is asked to surrender identification documents nor lodge fees
or deposits as a condition of employment. Cases of child labour in our
businesses are averted by conducting age verification of all job applicants.
Any employee that suspects a breach of the policy should submit reports
through grievance mechanisms of respective subsidiaries.

During the Reporting Year under review, the Group has encountered
no incident of non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
related to anti-child and anti-forced labour practices at all operating
regions. Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not limited
to, the Labour Law of the PRC.
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Aspect B5: Supply chain management

Leveraging on our status as a major industry player, we recognise
the multiplied impact through engaging our suppliers. The Group
is committed to developing and maintaining effective and mutually
beneficial working relationships with our business partners.

The supplier code of conduct of respective subsidiaries requires full
compliance with all applicable local and national laws while the
suppliers are expected to adhere to our high standards, demonstrating
continuous development in a variety of operational, economic, social and
environmental areas. Furthermore, they must ensure all operations are
environmentally-responsible, uphold human rights and business ethics. A
well evaluation program is taken for our suppliers’ selection, which reviews
the supplier profile and facilities, production capacities, quality control
system and other aspects related to manufacturing process. All engaged
suppliers are required to submit statements declaring conformity to the
respective code of conduct. Self-assessment questionnaires and/or internal
audits are used to evaluate supply chains. To promote accountability, the
Group also carries out regular reviews for suppliers. In case there is any
significant change for supplier qualification, the Group may suspend and,
if necessary, cancel its qualification as a qualified supplier to ensure that all
suppliers conform to the Group’s highest standard.

In addition to engaging suppliers, sustainable procurement is another
avenue to mitigate the impact of supply chain activities. We collaborate

with key suppliers in support of environmentally-responsible procurement
of goods and services. During the Reporting Year, we prioritise the
procurement of office equipment with energy-saving features, replaceable
parts as well as those part of supplier-provided recycling schemes.
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Aspect B6: Product responsibility

The Group offers quality products and services grounded on responsible
operating practices. We commit to meeting customer needs through
innovation and sound business ethics.

Product quality and safety

Displaying ability, professionalism and reliability in everything we do,
we offer products and services with added value. During the Reporting
Year, the Group has encountered no incident of non-compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations related to product/service quality and
safety at all operating regions. Major laws and regulations applicable
include, but are not limited to, the Product Quality Act of PRC.

With a customer-focused and evidence-based approach, the Group
strives for continual improvement to product quality. The Group’s quality
inspection management system is implemented through performing
quality assurance to examine the product’s quality against required
parameters at every stage of the production process. Input raw materials
are tested against customers’ technical specifications. Finished products
undergo inspections prior to packaging and delivery to clients. Each
department is tasked with achieving their own quality based targets in
consideration of both the industry and market standards.

The Group also implements a source-to-end inspection framework, which
is from material procurement and sourcing process to finished product and
storage. Any quality defect material or product will be suspended from
production line in order to prevent potential risks and protect interests of
clients and the Group.

Ethical operating practices

The Group places great value in conducting all aspects of our businesses
with integrity and honest values. From the protection of data privacy
and intellectual property to ethical marketing communication, our robust
management approaches ensure even the most trivial aspects are not
overlooked. During the Reporting Year, the Group has encountered no
incident of non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
related to the protection of data privacy and intellectual property to the
ethical marketing communication at all operating regions. Major laws and
regulations applicable include, but are not limited to, the Criminal and
Civil law of PRC.
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Information security safequarding

The Group is committed to protecting the privacy and confidentiality of
personal data collected. The Group has established clear protocols on
handling personal data recorded from our customers and employees. We
collect data only in a lawful and fair way, for directly related purposes
of which the data subject is clearly notified. Adhering to protocol
requirements, we ensure the data is accurate and not kept longer than
necessary. Personal data are secured to prevent any unauthorised or
accidental access, such as firewalls and physical protection.

The Group has established the privacy policy on handling personal data
recorded from our customers, staff, as well as end-users of our online
services. The Group secures the personal information from unauthorised
access, use or disclosure. Recognising the materiality of security risks,
the Group evaluates security risks related to the use of information
technology.

Advertising and product labelling

Responsible marketing practices are crucial for gaining customer trust
and confidence. All sales promotions should be dealt with in a fair and
honourable manner. The sales manager or equivalent of respective
subsidiaries ensures all public sales and marketing information are
reviewed and approved of its trueness and completeness. No forms of
promotions must not contain any misleading and designed to meet
reasonable consumer expectations. All product labelling is an accurate
representation of the sourcing and content of products.
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability. We adopt the lowest
level of acceptance for corruption risks to build a culture of zero tolerance
to corrupt and anti-competitive practices. Anti-corruption code of
conducts at respective subsidiaries stipulates our management approach
towards anti-corruption compliance. During the Reporting Year, the
Group has encountered no incident of non-compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations at all operating regions. Major laws and regulations
applicable include, but are not limited to, the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Criminal Law of the PRC.

The code of conducts applies to all employees of the Group, wherever
they are located, and must be complied at all times. Any suspected
criminal offence will be promptly reported to the relevant authorities The
Group prohibits the provision or receipt of gifts and/or entertainment that
could be considered of material value. Senior management is also clearly
provided guidance on what constitutes abuse of office, such as regarding
the misuse of company’s assets for personal interest. With regard to
conflict of interests, the fundamental rule is to avoid any conflict of
interest as far as practicable. In the event of an inevitable case, the conflict
of interest is required to be declared so that appropriate resolution actions
can be taken.

The development of robust internal controls is the key to our management
approach. Any offering and acceptance of gifts or advantages are
recorded and handled via a transparent mechanism. Each subsidiary
company has a form of whistle-blowing channel where any suspected
cases of misconduct or failure to act are reported and handled.

The Group promotes fair and open competition through code of conducts
on combating anti-competitive practices. We prohibit cartels, and any
activities of trade associations and industry bodies which prevents,
restricts or distorts competition. No discussion or agreement is carried
out on matters related to pricing, production volume and tenders with
competitors. The Group recognises that adherence to the principles of
competition is essential to the development of long-term relationships
with our stakeholders on mutual trust.
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Aspect B8: Community investment

The Group is committed to operating as a responsible corporate
and continually supporting the economic and social vitality of local
communities through corporate sponsorships and charitable donations.
Furthermore, the Group sees high literacy as a foundation for the
advancement of society. The Group believes public welfare is important
and necessary for the development of the Group. We always seek to be a
positive force in the communities in which it operates.

We believe that the development of a better future for our community
relies on joint participation of people, corporations and the government.
In addition, the Group also encourages all employees to actively
participate in volunteer activities and environmental protection activities.
We hope it can raise their community awareness and concern, and thus
inspiring more people to participate in community services and develop a
better future for our community.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Guo Yumin, aged 58, is the founder and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June 2012.
Mr. Guo is responsible for the overall management and formulation of
business strategy of the Group. Mr. Guo graduated from the distant-
learning college of the School of the Central Committee of Communist
Party of China in 1988, majoring in economic management. Since
1998, Mr. Guo has been engaging in cigarette packaging business and
established a strong business tie with the senior members of some
cigarette manufacturers. He brings extensive business and management
experience in commercial business to our management team. In 2005,
Mr. Guo established Guangdong Province Jiangsu Chamber of Commerce
and he had been the chairperson for six consecutive years. In 2010, Mr.
Guo established Shenzhen Xuzhou Chamber of Commerce and has been
its legal representative since then. Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu, an
executive Director.

Ms. Xia Yu, aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director on 22
June 2012. She is responsible for general management of the Group.
Ms. Xia studied financial accounting (distant-learning) in Jiangsu
Commerce College (which was combined with other colleges to form
Yangzhou University) and graduated in June 1992. Ms. Xia has 20
years of experience in the cigarette-related business, as well as business
management and financial management in cigarette packaging business.
Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director
on 1 January 2013. Mr. Zeng is responsible for the overall management
and business of the Group. Mr. Zeng graduated from Zhejiang University
with a Bachelor of Physic degree in 1988 and obtained a Master degree
of Materials Science from Zhejiang University in 1991. Mr. Zeng possesses
more than 19 years of experience in the cigarette-related industry in the
PRC and is familiar with the practice of the tobacco market in the PRC.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEERE

Ms. Fan Qing, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 June 2012. Ms. Fan has extensive experience in business
management and in-depth knowledge in the financial investment in both
the PRC and Hong Kong. Ms. Fan received a master’s degree in business
administration from the Graduate School of Renmin University of China in
2000. She obtained a certificate issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
after completing a training course for the senior management member of
a listed company in the PRC. She had been serving as the vice-president
of Shenzhen Capital Group Co. Ltd. for nine years. Ms. Fan is currently
the chairman of the board of directors of an investment management
company in Shenzhen and the independent director of Shenzhen Terca
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: $2002213), a company whose shares
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, BBS, JP, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Fong was admitted as a
barrister and solicitor in Ontario, Canada in 1980, a solicitor in England
and Wales in 1986 and in Hong Kong in 1987. He has practiced law
for over 30 years and is a member of the law societies of Hong Kong,
Upper Canada and England. Mr. Fong received his engineering degree
in Canada in 1974 and his Juris Doctor degree from Osgoode Hall Law
School in Toronto in 1978. Mr. Fong is appointed by the Ministry of
Justice of China as one of the China-appointed Attesting Officers in
Hong Kong. Mr. Fong is a member of the Hong Kong Communications
Authority. Mr. Fong is currently the independent non-executive director
of the following companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Guangdong Land Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 124), Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (formerly known as
SPG Land (Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 337), Evergreen International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 238), Xinming China Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2699) and WuXi Biologics (Cayman) Inc. (stock code: 2269). Mr.
Fong is also an independent non-executive director of Bank of Shanghai
(Hong Kong) Limited. From May 2010 to May 2016, Mr. Fong was an
independent non-executive director of China Oilfield Services Limited
(stock code: 2883), whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. From April 2011 to July 2018, He was an
independent non-executive director of China Investment Development
Limited (stock code:204).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Lo has extensive experience
in auditing, accounting and finance. Mr. Lo received a bachelor's
degree of business administration from the University of Hong Kong
in 1993 and a master's degree of professional accounting from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2000. He is a certified public
accountant, fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of CPA Australia and an associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. Lo is a practising accountant in Hong Kong, and has become
the managing partner of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited since 2014.
Mr. Lo is currently the independent non-executive director of Sun Hing
Vision Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 125), China Zhongwang
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1333), China Oceanwide Holdings
Limited (stock code: 715), Xinming China Holdings Limited (stock code:
2699), China Tonghai International Financial Limited (stock code: 952),
Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1718) and G-Resources
Group Limited (stock code: 1051). Mr. Lo is also the member of the
Shanghai Pudong New Area Committee of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference, the founding executive vice-president and
council member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association and the Divisional President 2019 — Greater China of CPA
Australia.

Senior Management

Mr. Dong Zhenghua, aged 64, graduated from a self-taught course in
Chinese literature from Nanjing Normal University in 1986, and obtained
the qualification certification as an economist in 1993. Mr. Dong passed
the uniform examination organised by the Chinese government authorities
and obtained the qualifications for enterprise legal adviser in 2003. Mr.
Dong possesses extensive experience in advising and handling corporate-
related legal matters. Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong graduated
from a 2-year course in laws jointly organised by the China University of
Political Science and Law and the Open University of China and obtained
the qualification of intermediate professional manager as approved by the
Jiangsu Province Enterprise Professional Manager Training & Certification
Committee. Mr. Dong is currently the in-house legal advisor of the
Company and is responsible for advising on legal matters of the Group.

Besides the senior management mentioned above, various business
of the Group are respectively under the direct responsibility of the
executive Directors as named previously, who are also regarded as senior
management of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERBME

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously abide by the principles of good corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort
to identifying and formalizing best practice.

The Group's corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board considered that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code during the Year except for the deviations from
code provision A.2.1 of the Code as stated below.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the year, there was no chief executive in the Company,
details of the deviation are set out in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer”.

The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as
follows:

Re-Election and Change of the Directors

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting after his/her appointment and any Director appointed by the
Board as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company.
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Pursuant to article 108(a) of the Articles, Ms. Fan Qing (“Ms. Fan”) and
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (“Mr. Lo") will retire as Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting in 2020 (the “AGM"). Ms. Fan, being eligible,
offer herself for re-election as Directors at the AGM.

Serving the Board for more than 9 years could be relevant to the
determination of a non-executive Director’s independence according
to the code provision A.4.3 in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Mr.
Lo has joined the Company for over 7 years since 22 June 2012 and is
of the view that the appointment of new independent non-executive
Director in replacement of himself is beneficial to the development of the
Company and in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
Accordingly, in order to enhance the corporate governance of the
Company, Mr. Lo has consented to retire and shall not offer himself for re-
election as independent non-executive Director at the AGM.

Mr. Lo has confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and
there are no other matters in relation to his resignation that need to be
brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the Shareholders.

With the recommendation from the nomination committee of the
Company, the Board proposes 1) the appointment of Mr. Dai Tin Yau
("Mr. Dai”) as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
the audit committee of the Company and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company; and 2) the appointment of Mr. Chan Yin Lam
(“Mr. Chan”) as an independent nonexecutive Director and a member of
each of the audit committee and nomination committee of the Company,
subject to and with effect upon the approval by the Shareholders at the
AGM

The Board, with the assistance and recommendation from the nomination
committee of the Company, has reviewed the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board from a number of aspects, and the professional
experience, skills and expertise Ms. Fan, Mr. Dai and Mr. Chan (if re-
elected or appointed) as independent non-executive Directors can provide.
The Board is of the view that the educational qualifications, background
and experiences of Ms. Fan, Mr. Dai and Mr. Chan (if reelected or
appointed) can create valuable and relevant visions and hence contribute
to the diversity of the Board. The Board also considers that Ms. Fan has
made positive contributions to the Company’s development, strategies
and performance during her tenure as an independent non-executive
Director with her independent advice and suggestions coupled with her
general understanding of the business of the Group.
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The nomination committee of the Company has assessed and reviewed
the independence of Ms. Fan, Mr. Dai and Mr. Chan based on the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
confirmed that they satisfied the aforementioned independence criteria. In
view of the above factors, the Board would recommend Ms. Fan to be re-
elected as an independent non-executive Director and each of Mr. Dai and
Mr. Chan to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director at
the AGM.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu and Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, being
executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 13 July 2018 and may be
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.

Each of Ms. Fan, Mr. Lo and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all being independent
non-executive Directors, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
13 July 2018 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least
three months’ written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as the required standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Director’s
securities transactions for the Year and up to the date of this annual
report.
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Board of Directors

The Board comprises three executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as at the date of this report, details of which are
set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

The brief biographical details of and relationship among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and (2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the Year. All independent non-executive
Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Guo Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu. Save as disclosed above, there
are no other relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.
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Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board's primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of other
stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group's business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management.

The Board is also delegated with the corporate governance functions
under code provision D.3.1 of the Code. The Board has reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this report, there
have been no chief executive officer in the Company. Mr. Guo Yumin
acted as the Chairman of the Board, and responsible for the overall
management and formulation of business strategy of the Group.

The Board does not have the intention to fill the position of the chief
executive officer of the Company at present and believes that the absence
of the chief executive officer will not have adverse effect to the Company,
as decisions of the Company will be made collectively by the executive
Directors. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the
Board and the need of appointment of a suitable candidate to perform
the role of chief executive. Appointment will be made to fill the post to
comply with code provision A.2.1 of the Code if necessary. During the
year, one meeting has been held by the Chairman of the Board with
the independent non-executive Directors, without the presence of other
executive Directors.
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Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior
to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views
at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments, the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination Committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are summarised as follows:
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Board Committees

The Board has established specific committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the website of the Company to assist them in the
efficient implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have
been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee currently has three
members comprising Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (being the Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all being independent
non-executive Directors.

During the Year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the final results of the
Group for 2018 and the 2019 interim results and report of the Company.
The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and the effectiveness of the internal audit
function for the Year. The Group’s final results for the Year had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual report, and
confirmed that this annual report complies with the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee at the Audit Committee meetings are
set out above.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the terms of the remuneration
package of each Director and member of senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof;
and (i) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual executive
Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable to them.
No Director shall participate in any discussion about his or her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
members, namely, Ms. Fan Qing (Chairperson), Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both
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of which are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Guo Yumin,
an executive Director. The majority of members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration of
the Directors was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities within the Group and general market conditions. The
Company has adopted the Code to make recommendations to the Board
on remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the
members of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings are set out
above.

At the meetings, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior executives and
reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of the Directors for
the Year.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with code
provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
include mainly: (i) reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition
(including the age, gender, cultural and academic background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience) of the Board on a regular basis
and making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
change; (ii) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; and (iii) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman),
an executive Director, Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both of which
are independent non-executive Directors. The majority of members of the
Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee adopted a diversity policy
setting out the approach to diversify the members of the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board. The Nomination Committee works to ensure a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business and objectives. All Board appointments would
continue to be made based on meritocracy. Selection of candidates would
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which would include but
not be limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision would be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates would bring to the Board, our business model as well
as the needs of the Company. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the diversity policy from time to time to ensure the
effectiveness of the diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting are set out above.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, reviewed the qualifications of the
Directors, the progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy
and other related matters of the Company.

Nomination Policy

Apart from the aforesaid, the Board has adopted a "Nomination Policy"
on 31 December 2018 in relation to the nomination, appointment, re-
appointment of new Directors and the nomination procedure of the
Company, which provides that in evaluating and selecting any candidate
for directorship, the Nomination Committee shall consider the candidates'
character and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience, independence, diversity on the Board, willingness to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and such other
criteria that are appropriate to the business of the Company.
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Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a "Dividend Policy" on 29 March 2019. A
summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and requirement of the
relevant law, the Company shall pay annual dividends to the Shareholders
if the Group is profitable, operations environment is stable and there is no
significant investment or commitment made by the Group, after taking
into account the factors as detailed below and determined by the Board
from time to time. The remaining net profits will be used for Group's
development and operations. The Policy allows the Company to declare
special dividends from time to time in addition to the annual dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account,
inter alia:

(@)  the Company's actual and expected financial performance;

(b)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c)  the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

(e)  the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(f)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's business
and other internal and external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

(g)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Any final dividends declared by the Company must be approved by an
ordinary resolution of Shareholders at an annual general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board
may from time to time pay to the Shareholders such interim dividends as
appear to the directors to be justified by the profits of the Group.

The policy shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the Board for
approval if amendments are required.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company as at the date
of this report.

Professional Development of the Directors

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors during
the Year, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin, Mr. Zeng Xiang Yang, Ms. Xia Yu, Ms.
Fan Qing, Mr. Fong Wo, Felix and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, had participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Directors had provided the relevant
record to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to
all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each Director
is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is fully aware
of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Group. All
the Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable trainings
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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Senior Management’s Remuneration

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group in the Year
fell within the following band:

RMB1,000,000 or below

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the report of the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. There are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

External Auditor's Remuneration

The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor for the
Year. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditor. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
fee payable to RSM Hong Kong in respect of its statutory audit services
provided to the Company was HK$1,330,000. Fees for non-audit services
for the same period was HK$98,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the senior management are responsible for improving and
monitoring the risk management and internal control of the Group. In
this regard, the Audit Committee had performed a regular review of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group within the
Reporting Period in which the results were summarised and reported to
the Board. The Board has also conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. The Group
also sets up an internal audit team comprise management of subsidiaries,
which plays a major role in monitoring the corporate governance of
the Group and providing objective assurance to the Board that a sound
internal control system is maintained and operated by the management.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities
of the members in the framework are described as follows:

Board of Directors

558

Board level
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Aud\t Committee
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Member Main Responsibilities =] FESE

Audit Committee

Set up goals for risk management strategy, assess
and determine the nature and extent of risk
acceptable to achieve the strategy goals;

Establish and maintain a proper and effective risk
management and internal control systems; and
Review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems annually.

Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level
and the design and performance of the risk
management and internal control systems;
Discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with the management;

Ensure that the internal audit function has
sufficient resources for operation and has a proper
position, review and supervise its performance;
Keep updated of various major risks confronted
by the Group and the risk management status,
make decisions for effective risk control;

Report the risk status of the Group and issues
to be concerned or improved to the Board on a
regular basis;

Facilitate risk management and assessment,
regularly appoint relevant accountable persons to
implement risk assessment;

Organise and promote the establishment of the
risk management system at the group level;
Review material risk assessment report and
various risk management reports; and

Engage relevant persons to organise and
coordinate various departments and projects
to carry out identification and assessment of
significant risks at the group level, summarise and
analyse such information, submit risk assessment
and various risk management reports.

Xl
0
i3

B

B EBREEEEEAZ - R
TFERRR B Za AT RIS
RIEE

R EE A RA R R E R
FASMEIR RS &
BFERITRAREERANIELE RS
FIRKRR

HESSEERBIKT A RER
ERRAEEERGR R
i
BREIRE T e R B TR R A EPES 1
£S5
BRABEZBEE TR EEEAR
MEERA - BEREEERS -

BHARBEL NS AEEAR R
AREIRR - (et RmR )
R

EMAEEFERAR ISR
AR ORI

BN R E IR Nt - EHEREMR
BB A ARITRRAE

BN RER Y SEEENRRE
BEE

EHEARRFERE R TRAEE
REERE &

RISIERAA LB % @B
NIBBAETEEEmEARRD
A REHE  MEROWEBE
o 2XERFERZ D RRERE

wE -

IERZEREEERAT
2019F F



Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

Member Main Responsibilities

Internal audit e Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk
team assessment in compliance with the risk assessment

manual formulated by the Group;

e Review and approve the risk assessment results of
the subsidiaries in respect of the business;

e Ensure that the subsidiaries implement effective
risk management;

e Monitor the principal business risks confronted by
the subsidiaries and the effectiveness of relevant
risk management measures; and

e Allocate resources such as fund and workforce
to the subsidiaries for implementation of the risk
assessment projects.

The Process Used to Identify, Assess and Management
of Principal Risks

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows:

Risk identification identify the current risks confronted.
Risk analysis - conduct analysis on the risk including the
impact extent and possibility of occurrence.

Risk response - choose a proper risk response method and
develop a risk mitigation strategy.

Control measures  — propose up-to-date internal control measures
and policy and process.

Risk control - continuously monitor the risks identified and
implement relevant internal control measures
to ensure the effective operation of the risk
response strategy.

Risk management - summarise results of risk assessment and
report analysis and internal audit, formulate and
report an action plan.
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The process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve material
internal control defects:

The Group establishes a risk management information and communication
channel that is functional within the whole basic risk control procedure,
connects different levels in the reporting system and different
departments and operation units, so as to ensure timely, accurate and
complete communication of information, laying a solid foundation for the
monitoring and improvement of risk management.

Different departments and business units of the Group regularly inspect
and examine their own risk management process in order to locate
the shortcomings and remedy the situation if possible. Their inspection
and examination reports are delivered to the Group’s risk management
department in time.

The Board further considers that (i) there was no material issue relating to
the Group’s risk management and internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group; and (ii) that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the Year.

Company Secretary

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (“Ms. Pang”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 1 October 2017. Ms. Pang has adequate knowledge on
the Company to discharge her duty as the Company Secretary. Ms.
Pang confirmed that she had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Year.
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The Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary
Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

In order to keep Shareholders well informed of the business activities and
direction of the Group, information about the Group has been provided
to the Shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The
Company has established its own corporate website www.sheentai.com
as a channel to facilitate effective communication with its Shareholders
and the public. The Company will continue to enhance communications
and relationships with its shareholders and investors. A shareholders
communication policy was adopted on 22 June 2012 to comply with code
provision E.1.4 of the Code.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly to
the Company through the following e-mail: investorrelation@sheentai.com.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

HK Address:  Room 1903,19/F Jubilee Centre, 18 Fenwick Street,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3998 4118/3998 4128

Fax: (852) 3998 4100

E-mail: investorrelations@sheentai.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board
and/or relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the Shareholders’ questions.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the Articles for including
a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting. The requirements and
procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed “The Shareholders’
Right to Convene an Extraordinary Meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person (other than a retiring
Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office
or at the Registration Office no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the Company
may be given will be at least 7 days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director is posted on the website of the Company.
Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

There had been no significant changes in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors are hereby to present to the Shareholders this annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

Principal Activities

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in the consolidated financial statements Note 23 in this annual
report.

Business Review

Further discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, Chapter
622, can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent to the businesses in which the
Group is engaged and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarised below.

i)  Price fluctuation in major raw materials may have
a material effect on the Group's performance

The major raw materials for production of the Group are
polypropylene and imported BOPP films. Any substantial increase in
prices of polypropylene and/or imported BOPP films may adversely
affect the profitability of the Group if the Group is unable to pass all
or part of such increase to its customers.

ii) The Group relies on certain major suppliers

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on certain
major suppliers for a significant portion of the purchases. If they
fail to make timely delivery of their products and the Group fails to
source from other suppliers in a timely and cost-effective manner,
the operation of the Group could be delayed. The relationship
between the Group and its customers could also be adversely
affected as a result of any such delays, which could in turn
materially and adversely affect the business operations and financial
performance of the Group.
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iii) The fluctuation of exchange rate may have a
material effect on the business and performance
of the Group

The sales of the Group are denominated in RMB and the purchases
are denominated in US$ and RMB. The Group does not engage
in any exchange rate hedging activities. Any fluctuation in the
exchange rates of RMB and US$ may have an adverse effect on
the results of operations and financial condition of the Group.
Appreciation of the value of US$ may increase the costs of the
Group and thus subject the Group to increased competition from
domestic competitors, and depreciation in the value of RMB may
adversely affect the earnings, as well as the value of the net assets
and dividends from the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

iv) PRC political, economic and social conditions and
government policies could affect the business of the
Group

All of the operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC and
the Group expects that a majority of the revenue will continue to
be derived from the operations in the PRC. The results of operations
and prospects are subject, to a significant degree, to economic,
political and legal developments in the PRC. The economy of the
PRC differs from the economies of most developed countries in
many respects, including the extent of government involvement,
the level of development, the growth rate, and government control
of foreign exchange. The Group cannot predict whether changes in
the PRC’s political, economic and social conditions, laws, regulations
and policies will have any material adverse effect on the current or
future business, results of operation or financial condition of the
Group.

Environmental Policies and Compliance with Laws and
Regulations

Details of environmental Policies and performance are set out in the
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Group is committed to ensuring that the Group’s operation is in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. As far as the Directors
are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Directors recognises that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group attracts and retains key personnel and talents with
appropriate skills, experience and competence which would complement
and meet the corporate and business objectives of the Group. The Group
ensures all employees are reasonably remunerated and the remuneration
packages of employees are reviewed regularly and necessary adjustments
are made to the remuneration packages to align with the market
standards.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and has
ongoing communication with the customers and suppliers through various
channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings to
obtain their feedback and suggestions.

Results

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of this annual report.

Final Dividends

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
Year (2018: Nil).

Closure of the Register of Members

For determining entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM") to be held on 29 May 2020, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 26 May 2020 to 29 May 2020,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. The record date will be on 29 May 2020. In order to qualify for
attending the AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30
p.m. on 25 May 2020.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in the consolidated financial statements Note
18 in this annual report.

Bank Borrowings and Lease Liabilities

Details of bank borrowings and lease liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in the consolidated financial statements Note
32 and Note 38, respectively, in this annual report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
in five year financial summary. This summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the Year are set out in the
consolidated financial statements Note 29 in this annual report.
Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company had repurchased an aggregate of 21,112,000 shares
of the Company for the Year. The aforesaid repurchased shares had
been cancelled on 6 March 2019. The Company did not sell any of the
Company's listed securities for the Year.

Details of the repurchases are as follows:

Purchase price paid per Share
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Transfer to Reserves

The Group recorded a loss attributable to equity shareholder of
approximately HK$47.9 million (2018: loss attributable to equity
shareholders of HK$26.5 million). There will be no transfer to reserves
for the Year. Other movements in reserve are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity in this annual report.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and significant
Investment

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Significant Investment, Material Acquisition and Disposal” in
this annual report, there were no significant investments held nor other
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies
and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Subsequent Events

Details of important event affecting the Group subsequent to 31
December 2019 are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Subsequent Events” in this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
72.1% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 41.1% of the total sales
for the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 86.3% of the total purchases for the Year and
purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 64.9% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the Year and as at the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

Biographies of Directors and Other Senior Management

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Directors Emoluments

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 15(a) in this annual report. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company.

Material Interests of Directors in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 15 and Note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements and contracts amongst group companies, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and other director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Interests of Controlling Shareholders in Contracts of
Significance

No contract of significance has been entered into during the Year between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders or
any of its subsidiaries.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

The independent non-executive Directors had, in the Board meeting
during the Year, reviewed the non-competition undertakings (the “Non-
competition Undertakings”) given by Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited
(“Sheentai BVI”) and Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo") in a deed of non-
competition entered into between Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo in favour
of the Company on 28 June 2012. The independent non-executive
Directors were not aware of any non-compliance of the Non-competition
Undertakings given by Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo for the Year and up
to the date of this annual report. Each of Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo
confirmed that he/it had complied with the Non-competition Undertakings
given by him/it from the date of the Non-competition Undertakings and
up to the date of this annual report.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in a state-managed retirement scheme operated by
the PRC government which covers the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employees in Hong
Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 4(s) in this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$714.1 million.
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Directors’ Interests or Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(a

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of the
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

() Long Position in the Shares and the underlying Shares

Name of Director Capacity/Nature

g HE

Mr. Guo Yumin

("Mr. Guo") (Note 1)
IER(BEE]) RIS EE R (A1)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

BESBAANHE2)

Interest of spouse (Notes 3 and 4)

fo B (M3 % 4)

Ms. Xia Yu (“Ms. Xia") Interest of spouse (Note 5)

BER(EZx)) BeiBea (M/aE5)
Beneficial owner (Note 3)
BEnEBA(HiE3)
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang Beneficial owner (Note 6)
(“Mr. Zeng") E=Ea A Hi7e)
M5 ([ EEE])
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() REBERDzHFAERRSD

Number of

Shares and
underlying Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of
interested interest

FissHAE
ERRA R AL
HHERHEE FOE
1,206,086,000 49.55%
272,356,164 11.19%
33,094,000 1.36%
1,478,442,114 60.74%
33,094,000 1.36%
4,000,000 0.16%
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Number of
Shares and
underlying Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested interest
e &) EREDL
EEpng B, HE ERBROHE HE
Ms. Fan Qing (“Ms. Fan") Beneficial owner (Note 7) 800,000 0.03%
et ([Bat]) BEnEBA(HEE7)
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix Beneficial owner (Note 8) 800,000 0.03%
(“Mr. Fong”) BnEB A (H:8)
FRsEE(FEE]D
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (“Mr. Lo") Beneficial owner (Note 9) 800,000 0.03%
EEESE(ELEED BEnEBA(H:E9)
(ii) Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of Associated (i) MEEEIEZERAZER

Corporation

Number of
Name of associated share held/ Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity/Nature interested interest
Fiss A
EEpE MREEE B 54 e EEROHBE BHEEDLL
Mr. Guo Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 1 100%
B BEnEBA
Ms. Xia (Note 5) Sheentai BVI Interest of spouse 1 100%
B+ (f15E5) [T
Notes: MHET

Mr. Guo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Sheentai
BVI. Therefore Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the
1,206,086,000 Shares held by Sheentai BVI for the purpose of the
SFO. Mr. Guo is the sole director of Sheentai BVI.

—_

20 4% 4 B 25 ¥ A Sheentai BVIK) 2 30 2 & 17
A At RBEBFHFRBERG - L
AR B SCE B A Sheentai BVIFE A B FT B
1,206,086,000 AR fh FHE B # 2w o BEER
Sheentai BVIH)M—E F ©

2. These 272,356,164 Shares and underlying Shares represent the 2. 5%272,356,164 f& A% 170 S A8 BAR% 1 15 36 %% HE
272,356,164 Shares owned by Mr. Guo. HH) 272,356,164 fZA% {7 °

3. These 33,094,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent the 3. 7% 33,094,000 A% A% 1 AR D IEE Z tH# A
33,094,000 Shares owned by Ms. Xia. #) 33,094,000 it ©

4. Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia. Accordingly, Mr. Guo is deemed, or 4. HEERELTHIRE - Flt - BEEWES

taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares in which
Ms. Xia is interested.

HEFNELXLHEERNTE KD KRR
DA
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Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo. Accordingly, Ms. Xia is deemed, or
taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares in which
Mr. Guo is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

These 4,000,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent:
(a) the 2,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Mr. Zeng; and

(b) the 2,000,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Zeng upon full exercise of the share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 22 June 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme”,
each share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is
referred to as “Share Option”) to him.

These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Ms. Fan upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to her.

These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Mr. Fong upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to him.

These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Mr. Lo upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to him.
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(b)  So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2019, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company as disclosed in paragraph (a) above) had interests or
short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who are,
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group:

The Company

Capacity/Nature of interest

g6 #EtE

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Sheentai BVI

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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Share Option Schemes

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 22 June 2012. A summary of the principal terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme is set out as follows.

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

2. Participants

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant or adviser of the Group, or any substantial shareholder
of the Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group, options
to subscribe for such number of Shares as it may determine in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the basis
of his contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares
in issue as at the date of listing of the shares of the Company (or
such numbers of shares as shall result from a sub-division or a
consolidation of the shares of the Company from time to time), i.e.
40,000,000 shares representing 10% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of listing. On 25 September 2015, each of
the existing issued and unissued shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company was sub-divided into four
sub-divided shares of HK$0.0025 each (the “Shares Subdivision”).
As such, the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme of the Company is adjusted from 40,000,000 to
160,000,000.

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to
subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (which were adjusted to 58,400,000 shares
of HK$0.0025 each after the Shares Subdivision) were granted to
certain Directors and employees of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme.

Therefore, as at the date of this annual report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme and
any other scheme of the Company was 51,650,000 representing
approximately 2.12% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

REBERETBTRITROER

IR IR B AR A 5T 8 S AR RIME ] E 5+ B AT pE 5%
PERESERO RS E KA T BBRRA
REID T A BEITARMDE 10% (5
RATRG TEFAE OB EEN B BRHD
ZH) - B140,000,000 %A% 5 + 16 £ B #A
NEIEEITIRADEI10% © FA20159F9 F25H -
RAFIRE AP FREEO0.01 B ITHNERALF
BB BT RAREITRG Do T ARSI
{E0.0025 % T HR A Rx 10 ([ AR Bl 1) o
it - R ERBE A AT B R AR RME R E A S AT
BER B AR E A IR (== #X B F 40,000,000
A% A% A 160,000,000 P& -

M 20151 298 « RIFFEIRETE - 2K
NEETESZRESR T B5 14,600,000 17
RS HE - LARRER 4251 14,600,000 B AR B &M
B0.01 B THERIE (AR BRMOIFAEE AR
%58,400,000 % &A% FI{E0.0025 BT AL 1D ) ©

EHitr RAFERBE REBEREFZR
RABMEREMEEI AT BTG EERA
51,650,0000% + (h ARG 3R EHA QB BT
RENEI2.12%

E2RENKSEHE

RAER 128 AFERER D A REERET
8IS R BT E A 8 AR R BIRA 1T 68 R AE ]
SEERDBRER S HTREEITRMNEE
(BRETERERITEBBRE) S THBELAR
AR EITRMDE 1% -



Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
grant of the relevant options, there is no performance target which
must be achieved before any of the options can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance of
the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall
be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a business day;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant of the option.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on the date on 22 June 2012 (the date on
which the Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the
Company) and shall expire at the close of business on the business
day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless
terminated earlier by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.
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On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to
subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company were granted to certain Directors and employees
of the Company under the Share Option Scheme. Among the share
options granted above, 2,100,000 share options were granted to
the Directors to subscribe for a total of 2,100,000 shares of the
Company. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 29 January 2015.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24
September 2015 in relation to the adjustment to the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme upon the share subdivision
of the Company becoming effective on 25 September 2015.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted under
the Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:

72015418298 » Al RIE A 14,600,000
B AR X A& BX M (E0.0175 JT Y T 3@ AL AY
14,600,000 17 HE AR 4 - EARIR AN B H) B AR A
FEETATARRESERES - RATRLE
&t - 2,100,000 BEARETIIX TESE - AR
BB 4 2,100,000 B AR A RN » FEIBRBLEA
NAEIBEA2015F 1 29 HEIAE -

F2MARTIBEA2015F9 A24 BHRE
ANABBEARRBIROIFMAN2015F9 25 HAE
A2 BRI TR o

RARE B - RIEBEET RO RITE
BRERIEEIIT

Number of ~ Outstanding Outstanding

options granted as at During the reporting period as at

on 29 January 1 January REESR 31 December

Name of grantee 2015 2019 Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2019

R2O15F  R2019% 20195

1A29R 1A18 12A31R

REARS EREREHE WA BAH WARTE
Director EF

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang BRGLE 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix FREE 800,000 800,000 - - - 800,000

Ms. Fan Qing BERt 800,000 800,000 - - - 800,000

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy Egass 800,000 800,000 - - - 800,000

Employees ESRER 52,400,000 47,650,000 - - - 47,650,000

and advisers
Total ait 58,400,000 53,650,000 - - - 53,650,000
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed approximately 245 full-
time staff members. The Directors and senior management receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in kind
and/or discretionary bonuses relating to our performance. The Group
also established the Share Option Scheme to incentivize the senior
management and employees, further details of which are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this report. When
reviewing and determining the specific remuneration packages for the
executive Directors and senior management, the Company takes into
consideration factors such as their individual performance, qualification,
experience and seniority, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration. The
Group determines the staff’s remuneration based on factors such as
qualifications and work experience.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles of Association, every Director is
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report as required under the Listing
Rules.
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Auditor

RSM Hong Kong ("RSM") had acted as the auditors of the Company for
the Year. The Company changed its external auditors on 12 October 2017
from KPMG to RSM.

RSM will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the

reappointment of RSM as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board of

Guo Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 203, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

By AR E

RSM

b S e
A SR E =1 /\5
FE—H—+h=FiE

ErE +8522598 5123
{2H +852 25987230

RSM Hong Kong

T+852 2598 5123
F+8522598 7230

www.rsmhk.com www.rsmhk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. The key audit matter we identified is the
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN

ERETEE (&)

Key Audit Matter
BERETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAREHERT N EEREETEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Refer to note 18 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

For property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
the Group. Impairment testing is performed when indicators of
potential impairment are identified. In performing impairment
testing of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets, management considered that the entire operations of
each business segment represented a separately identifiable
cash generating unit (“CGU").

Management assessed potential impairment by using the
value in use method and engaged a firm of qualified external
valuers to assist in preparing the value in use calculations. The
value in use calculations required the exercise of significant
management judgement and estimates.

HWE - BB RREREREEENBENE

BB A VIS mERME 18 % 20 ©

HRAKENYR  BERRKBREREEE - &35
ERERRR - ETRERNR - EHYE  BERRBERE
REEELETRENRR BEEERREXRHOMNEEE
BHRKR—ENEFRNReEL S ([ ReELEM]) -

B EEERAEREREFG %‘Z—E/WE YRS
HR & B B0 LA 1 BY AR (£ R B (EROFTE - B EEMS
TTEEREIEE FIE R fh5

BRI

g =
==

Our procedures included:

o Assessing the external valuer’s qualifications, experience
and expertise and considering their objectivity and
independence;

o working with our in house valuation specialists to
review the integrity of the value in use model and
the appropriateness of the discount rate adopted by
management;

o reconciling input data to supporting evidence including
approved budgets;

o challenging the reasonableness of management’s key
assumptions underlying the cash flow forecasts in
view of the historical performance of the CGU and our
understanding of the business; and

o considering the adequacy of the impairment testing
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
melEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F 12 A3 BLLEFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue A 8 376,208 453,827
Cost of sales SHE AR (295,748) (338,423)
Gross profit EF 80,460 115,404
Other income E A 9 23,917 12,687
Other gains and losses, net H b dzs K 18R 58 10 (21,002) (9,368)
Distribution costs 2SR (22,923) (18,260)
Impairment losses on trade and & 5 FENRIE I EAh
other receivables FEWGRIA Y B B 18 (5,911) (1,662)
Administrative expenses TERFES (73,540) (87,228)
Other operating expenses HAb AR (2,945) (2,880)
(Loss)/profit from operations K (F5E) u A (21,944) 8,693
Finance costs RUE KA 11 (7,229) (8,156)
Impairment of goodwill EERE 21 (2,830) -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment M - RE REERE 18 (12,089) (19,419)
Loss before tax BiAIEE (44,092) (18,882)
Income tax expense FriS#isz i 12 (3,781) (7,734)
Loss for the year FAEE 13 (47,873) (26,616)
Attributable to: BAUTF AL FE4G :
Equity shareholders of the Company NN EIREZAR R (47,873) (26,498)
Non-controlling interests AR - (118)
(47,873) (26,616)
Loss per share SREE
Basic (HK$ per share) HEA(FRBT) 17 (0.020) (0.011)
Diluted (HK$ per share) s (58T 17 (0.020) (0.011)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEakHMEAEREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F 12 A3 BLLEE

2019 PAONE:]
20195 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT

Loss for the year FREE (47,873) (26,616)
Other comprehensive loss: Hitt 2 HEEE !
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:  AJAEEFT HABEEes 1 EH -
Exchange differences on translating BREIRINESEFESRER 25

foreign operations (14,329) (41,658)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit DI RLENBARERAEN =5

or loss on disposal of subsidiaries - (2)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FREMEEESE

net of tax MBREE (14,329) (41,660)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREHEEHAEE (62,202) (68,276)
Attributable to: BUR AL HEAE :

Equity shareholders of the Company RA AR (62,202) (68,158)

Non-controlling interests SRR - (118)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEEEEE (62,202) (68,276)

BRI AR A A
20195 5,



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR IR R

At 31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZ -~ B R 18 401,534 458,835
Interests in leasehold land held for own use BELCEHERFIES A
under operating lease FMEE T A 19 - 26,288
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 46,069 -
Goodwill (5l 21 - 2,830
Intangible assets mREE 22 1,121 1,556
Other non-current assets Hib3EmeEE 2,050 1,380
Contract assets BHEE 26 59,398 39,478
Deferred tax assets RIERIIRE EE 33 2,183 4,691
Total non-current assets FRBEEHE 512,355 535,058
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit AR EETEAHE
or loss (“FVTPL") FFAEHEENeREE
(TA2REEFEAR
e AZER]) 27 1,696 15,199
Inventories FE 24 62,863 100,788
Trade and other receivables B 5 FEWRIA & E A FE R IR 25 238,312 274,618
Current tax assets BNEATI IR & EE 2,977 1,875
Restricted cash XPRHRE 28 - 8,881
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS e 28 165,438 185,386
Total current assets RENEEHAE 471,286 586,747
Current liabilities nEBE
Trade and other payables B 5 RS 3R T8 N E b e A 5k I8 36 107,311 116,795
Contract liabilities AHAaE 37 1,950 2,185
Lease liabilities HEBE 38 2,708 =
Bank borrowings RITER 32 69,902 159,625
Deferred government grants IR TR % B 35 262 =
Current tax liabilities BNEATHIE B R 7,926 6,049
Total current liabilities BB EAEE 190,059 284,654
Net current assets REEEFHE 281,227 302,093
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBEME 793,582 837,151

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBEMRRE

At 31 December 2019
M2019412831H

2019 PAONE:]
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 38 16,203 =
Deferred tax liabilities FEERTEEE 33 5,790 5,844
Deferred government grants 3R AE U #60 BY) 35 5,938 =
Total non-current liabilities FARBAERE 27,931 5,844
NET ASSETS REE 765,651 831,307
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXR G
Share capital &N 29 6,085 6,138
Reserves G 31 759,566 825,169
Total equity RS 765,651 831,307

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and are signed on ~ FAZEF &N 202043 A 31 B#L/EIW A FHIALRE

its behalf by: EEg%E:
Guo Yumin Xia Yu
BER qig

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

Share

capital

B
HK$'000

Share
premium

Biiiaf
HK$'000
TR

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
ARTRRER

Capital

Treasury ~ redemption

shares

L1 v
HK$'000
TR

feserve
2L
RERE
HK§ 000
T

Capital
reserve

Brif
HKS'000

AT

Statutory
reserve

AR
HK$1000

BT

Share-based
payments
Teserves
HERfRER
WA
Hk$'000
T

Exchange
feserve

EXRA
HK$'000
TR

Retained
profits

RERA
HK$'000
TR

Non-

Sub-  controlling

total

interests

Pt FERER

HK$'000
TR

HK$'000

Total
equity

L2 i
HK$'000
TR

At 1 January 2018 R2018%F 1718 6,138 605,502 - - 68,665 39,340 15,55 (8208) 171425 89834 (55)  8977m
Total comprehensive loss for the year A2 ESELEE - - - - - - - (Me60) (0498 (6818 (18 (68.276)
Share-based payments WRhEERGEE 3 - - - - - Kl - - 18 - 18
Appropriation o statutoryresene ~ HREEERE - - - - - - - - - -
Acquiston of partl sharesof ~ BFEERERNESS

subsidares fromnon-controling ~~ HEAER(A

Interess - - - - - - - - (670) (670) 670 -
Changes mequiy fortheyear ~ ERIERES) - - - - - 1811 (e %) @7.0m) 55 (66469)
At 31 Decerber 2018 R2018E 127318 6,138 605,502 - - 68,665 42,004 17363 (49958) 141503 831307 - 81307
At1 January 2019 R2019% 1718 6,138 605,502 - - 68665 42004 17363  (49,958) 141503 831307 - 831307
Total comprehensive loss for the year 2RSS - - - - - - - (1439 @813) (6220 - (62200
Repuchase ofshaes BERA - - ) - - - - - - () - @9
Cancelltion of shares Fis:li0) i (53 (4291 421 53 - - - - - = = =
Share-hased payments WRhEERGEE 3 - - - - - - 837 - - 837 - 87
Appropriation o statutory resene ~ SEZEERE = - - - -8 - - (18) - - -
Cagsnegiyforteyer  EREREH 53 (490 -8 S 8 (439 (00 (65656) - (5656)
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 127318 6,085 601211 - 5 68665 442719 18200  (64.287) 91445 765,651 - 765651

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F 12 A3 BLLEE

2019
20194

2018
20184
HK$'000
FBT

HK$'000
TR

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EZBHFMERERE

Loss before tax HATEE (44,092) (18,882)
Adjustments for: FEIER ¢
Impairment of goodwill PEIERE 2,830 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y% - WE REERE 12,089 19,419
Write off of property, plant and equipment VI - RE KR E 661 28
Allowance for inventories FERE 319 212
Allowance for trade and other receivables, net 2 5} JfE I IE Kz o {th [ U S TE 5 5
FER 5,911 1,662
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & E A R M EE = 1,629
Amortisation of deferred government grants R RE R 47 B EE 85 (213) =
Amortisation of intangible assets B B 550 462
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEf 2 & A i - 521
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #13 - = K&ETE 40,890 43,489
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENTE 4,267 =
Finance costs B R AN 7,229 8,156
Dividend income from equity securities AR AN 75 5 A% B A (13,617) (129)
Interest income FEUA (465) (940)
Fair value gain on convertible bonds ARRESH A BEKE - (94)
Net realised and unrealised gain on investment B ERIEENE IR
in wealth management products RAREE W F 8 = (592)
Net realised and unrealised loss on investment AN E SR EH S &R
in equity securities MREIE S E 1R 18,566 4,167
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWZE - RE REEN
and equipment Weas (25) (107)
Equity settled share-based payments LARE == 45 B LARR (D R ETR R 2 837 1,811
Operating profit before working capital changes 8 & & & 8 )AL & T 35,737 60,812
Decrease in inventories FERD 37,560 41,144
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 FEMGRIE I H b & WOk IR R 28,036 31,578
Increase in contract assets BHEEEMN (19,920) (39,478)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets  HAIERBNEE (380) @ (670) 2,090
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL AR BEEEEZFHTA
ERERNSREERD 8,198 -
Decrease in wealth management products 8 B E SRR > - 7,712
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 P15 58 R E A FE A R E R (9,484) (86,248)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHAaECRD) i (235) 2,185
Increase in deferred government grants R AE BT R B3 N 6,504 =
Cash generated from operations KEEBMERE 85,726 19,795
Dividend income from equity securities received 2 YRR TE FH AL B UL 356 129
Income taxes paid B FEHR (2,723) (5,990)
Income taxes refunded BIRFTIEH 2,201 1,823
Interest on lease liabilities BENEEEEFE (1,451) =
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBMEIR TR 84,109 15,757
BRI AR A A Q
20195 5,



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

2019
20194

HK$°000
FEx

2018
20184
HK$'000
FHET

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®REZEBFFABRESRE
Purchases of leasehold land held for own BEREBCEHERIEBA

use under operating lease KIFTHE i - (6,464)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and B E 1% - E K&K

intangible assets B EE (4,825) (69,171)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME - HEKEE

plant and equipment KIS 5K 547 213
Payments for right-of-use assets FREEEMNN (286) =
Net cash outflow for disposal of subsidiaries L EH B A RAE SR L FEE - (2,704)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SERHIRE SR, (3Emn) 8,881 (8,881)
Interest received BUF S 465 940
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing WEEEFTE, (FTH)

activities e FRE 4,782 (86,067)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEEFTSHEESRE
Bank borrowings raised EEBRITER 70,717 165,145
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEBITER (159,073) (152,222)
Principal elements of lease payments HENTOAE (3,001) -
Repurchase of shares O] RERR 2= (4,291) =
Interest paid EFE (5,778) (8,156)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing REES (FrA) FriE

activities REFH (101,426) 4,767
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRFELEHEER

EQUIVALENTS WA HEE (12,535) (65,543)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERBE L (7,413) (23,374)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MN1B1EMEE

1 JANUARY RELEHEER 185,386 274,303
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MN12 A31 BWERS

31 DECEMBER RELZHEER 165,438 185,386
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R&R B S EEER D47
Bank and cash balances RITRIR® AR 165,438 185,386

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 February 2012 and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries
hereinafter are collectively referred to as the “Group”. The address
of its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business is Unit 1903, 19/F, Jubilee Centre, 18
Fenwick Street, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 13 July 2012.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Sheen Tai Group
Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI"”), is the immediate and ultimate parent and Mr
Guo Yumin, a director of the Company, is the ultimate controlling
party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F 12 A3 BLLEE

—RER

BRI AR E AR AR ([ARRE] )R 20124F 2
R24 BRERSRSENE 22 E R EE(1961
FEIFEN - K45 E RER]) ER SRS M
B R—REBREERADT o NA R RENE
NASRHEA [ ANEE | o RATWEMIFEEM
1k A Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands ° 7%
NAFELEMEAEREF D HE 185R R
L 19481903 % » R A AR B 2012457 A
13ERRESHAERZFMAERAE ([HA])
FMR T o

RAR B —THREERAT - B ARNE
BEBEIIN R B ERARMTE23 -

ARBEERR  EREEZERERAR (P&
BHBARNE ((RBARREE ) EMAKIZA
AR REERRERRATE  MARRERE
REERIRAR B RAEEST -

AR

ZEGAVBRREZREESHAMAE(E
BENAE )BEMNAMBEEREBEYBRSE
ZA(TEBAMBREER ) MR - BAMH
BEENBERBBVHREER ([ FEYBR
A BREEA(EEGER D
K2k - ZEHE WIS MR I8 TR S P RE S
EFRR(TETRAD) 2 EBRABEEIREE
REGEPIZ BERE (F622F) - REBERMA
MBREBOREEL T

BEGMAERME TRAEEE NS5 H
8 B R A ek AR R 2 #TR] MR IERT &
BUBHREER - BRXERZFEHA5IHAR
SEEM AT ST AR ZEA S HRE
ERZEFHEMBEREARR - BRENHET
RPMEES

IERZEREEERAF
2019F F 5]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16 Leases, and a
number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments have had
a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC) 15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and HK(SIC) 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. HKFRS 16
introduced a single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as
either operating or finance leases using similar principles as
in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have an impact on
leases where the Group is the lessor. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17 substantially
unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
guantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect that
leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of an entity.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1
January 2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019. Comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options
applied are set out below:

(i) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the
Group has used the transitional practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases. Accordingly,
contracts that were previously assessed as leases under
HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for as leases under
HKFRS 16 and contracts previously assessed as non-
lease service arrangements continue to be accounted
for as executory contracts.

AR E ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

3. RMFIIREBIERMBREE
A (&)

(a)

AT REETERMBRE
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BRI REERE 1657 [HE ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(i)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17. Instead,
the Group is required to capitalise all leases when it
is the lessee, including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other than those
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets which
are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group has
applied the incremental borrowing rates of the relevant
Group entities at the date of initial application. The
average incremental borrowing rate applied by the
relevant group entities range from 2.55% to 11.18%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of HKFRS
16:

(1) elected not to apply the requirements of HKFRS
16 in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for which the
remaining lease term ends within 12 months
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
i.e. where the lease term ends on or before 31
December 2019;

(I excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application; and

() relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying HKAS 37 as an alternative
to an impairment review.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(i)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

3. RMFIIREBIERMBREE

B (4&)

(a) ERAHMIREBIEBUBRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIT REBITETBMBEHREE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) Al (4&)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) ER#FHITRLETEEMERE
(continued) %8 (48)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) SRR EERNE 1655 [HEI(H)
(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued) (i)  FAUACTEIEREEZE(E)
The following table reconciles the operating lease TR&#FIMN2018F 12 A31 H 2 &
commitments as disclosed in note 42 as at 31 LR EAYE (M 42T EE ) B
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease R2019F1 A1 BERZHERE
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019: R ER A4S SR ETER
HK$'000
T4
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at R2018F 12 A31 B2
31 December 2018 AR 22,167

Less: commitments relating to lease exempt from Bl * E R E AL 2 HEHRRAIE
capitalisation:

— short-term leases and other leases with - A E R FEISRFE R
remaining lease term ending on or 20194 12 A 31 B2 Al
before 31 December 2019 fEmz Bt E (663)
21,504
Less: total future interest expense B AR IRA B S AR (5,494)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 2019F1 A1 BERZEERE 16,010
Of which are: Hep
Current lease liabilities mEHEAE 1,083
Non-current lease liabilities ERBEEEE 14,927
16,010
The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously LRI ALEHE 2 HERAR
classified as operating leases have been recognised at AEEEERESENHRTHERE
an amount equal to the amount recognised for the HEERSTE SRR - Wik
remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount M 20184 12 A 31 B 2 x4 B sk
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to IR HER 2 HE A B 2 A TER 3
that lease recognised in the consolidated statement of EETHEEN RS HETHAE

financial position at 31 December 2018.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

So far as the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
on leases previously classified as finance leases is
concerned, the Group is not required to make any
adjustments at the date of initial application of HKFRS
16, other than changing the captions for the balances.
Accordingly, the depreciated carrying amount of the
leased assets is identified as right-of-use assets. There is
no impact on the opening balance of equity.

The following table summaries the impacts of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position:

Line items in the consolidated
statement of financial position
impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 16

ZRABBIBRELENZ 65382 (if::
GRuBRRRER

Assets EE
Right-of-use assets feREaE
Interests in leasehold land RELEHE
held for own use under HERAR
operating lease RELER ()
Liabilities &
Lease liabilties BEEE

3.

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

RAFIT RSB EEMBREE
B (4&)

(a) ERAHMIREBIEBUBRE

Carrying

amount as at

Note 31 December 2018
#2018 %
12A31AZGEE

HK$'000
TR

26,936

R ()
BRI REERE 1657 [HE ()
(i) AN BB BRTE ()

EXNOTRERSZSRIEEE
MBEHELENEISR ISR TA
(TBAMBRSEIEIR D A
B XRIR AR EERE - V)5
ERABHAABENARKESR
SMEERER - WEF AEREEEK
K o

SR BB MELAE 1657 Y
TR BABRERENHENTE
MmE - BREREHNBREIN - KK
BEBTEE NERBTEMBREE
RIS 16 SRBFER R - Bt -
HEEENTEREERRAER
REE - BUIBRERITARIIF
@,

TREGLRATBU B RELERIE
16 R AREREMBHARRKZF
2

Effects of adoption of HKFRS 16
RABERBREENE 165252

Carrying
Re- amount as at
Re- cognition of 1 January 2019
dassification leases R2019F
ExipE HEEZ  1A1AZRER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT TAL TAL

26,936 16,010 42,946
(26,936) - -
- 16,010 16,010
JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (continued)

Note:

(1) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") own used properties
were classified as interest in leasehold land held for
own use under operating lease as at 31 December
2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current and
non-current portion of prepaid land lease payments
amounting to HK$648,000 and HK$26,288,000
respectively were classified to right-of-use assets.

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the
Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease liabilities, and
the depreciation of the right-of-use assets, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. This does not result in a significant
impact on the reported loss from operations in the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss, as
compared to the results if HKAS 17 had been applied
during the year.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
Group as a lessee is required to split rentals paid
under capitalised leases into their principal element
and interest element (note 40(a)). These elements are
classified as financing cash outflows and operating
cash outflows respectively. Although total cash flows
are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in presentation of cash
flows within the consolidated statement of cash flows
(note 40(b)).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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3. RMFIIREBIERMBREE

A (&)

(a) ERAHMIREBIEBUBRE

P-4z |

b

| (4&)

BRI REERE 1657 [HE ()

(ir)

(iir)

RN BT IR B ()

0) MR2018F 12 A31H @ REAR
HAME([FEH]) BRmENEE
T TR SR D RE AR IRIR AL
EHEREE ANEE AR
o RIER BB HiRkE ERE
16514 + £ 885 Al /648,000
J0 % 26,288,000 78 S T T4
TR & 15 SR A9 BN EA AN SE BN EA 38 2 45
DRRERREE -

HAREEYERERHA T REL
&

R2019% 1 B 1 BYI SR AE
BERMEAER  AEBEERF
AABEREEAEZ REEEH
2RZAEMY  UARFEAEEE
E  MIEBEABEFEEAHER
ERBECEHEEE 2 AERY
ZEGR - BN FERNERE S
RIS 7SS EAEMRL - IH AR
SEZEEBRREBFZEEER

WRELABRTE °

RFERSRERT  AREER
EBABBRBEEANCEEMRX
NzBEn /RAESEHD RHMEMD
(FifaE40(@a)) * ZEF&A T3 RIH R
ARAERSROMEERERE -
BEREREALBIITE - B
BB TSRS 2R 16 SR G BUR
EHERERAREREZEZRT
ABEBAEH (MFE400)) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(iif)

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the
Group (continued)

The following tables give an indication of the estimated
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group's
financial results and cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2019, by adjusting the amounts reported
under HKFRS 16 in these consolidated financial
statements to compute estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been recognised under HKAS
17 if this superseded standard had continued to apply
in 2019 instead of HKFRS 16, and by comparing these
hypothetical amounts for 2019 with the actual 2018
corresponding amounts which were prepared under
HKAS 17.

Amounts
reported
under
HKFRS 16
it
BEIHRE
EAE16%
¥ Pk
HK$'000
ThL
Financial results for year SROERIRRS
ended 31 December 2019 impacted EdZ105yEy
by the adoption of HKFRS 16: BEN9ENANA
LEEZBHEE:
(Loss)/profit from operations % (B8)aA (21,944
Finance costs HANE (729
Loss before tax ) 7] (44,092)
Loss for the year 354 (47873)

3.

Add hack:
HKFRS 16
depreciation
and interest
expense

Il
BEUBRE
ERZ68TH
FERASER
HK$'000
Tin

4261
1451
5718
5118

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

RAFIT RSB EEMBREE

B (4&)

(a) ERAHMIREBIEBUBRE

2019
0195

"

B (&)

BRI REERE 1657 [HE ()

(iir)

HAREEYERERHA T RE L
(&)

TRETHEMNB BT EHREELSE
165 A AN EEEZE 20194 12 A 31
AtEEzHBEERBESREZ
HETRE - HERARZEREY
BWMERPIRIBER BB HREERE
16 T2 M2 ©RUGTEBIE SRS
SETERSE 17 RIERER Z BT RER
& B8 (W 5z 4 BV 22 Bl i JEH 8 B
TEREERIZE 1657 2019 F /&
BA) AR 2019F 22 E B R
SRE2018FRIEE S ST A
FN7 AR 2 BERIEESFEETT
g«jo

Deduct:

Estimated amounts
related to operating

|eases as if under
HKAS 17 (note )

BEf

(BRg
Bt

Hypothetical
amounts
for2019

as if under
HKAS 17
1952
BReE
(BRE

EheiEl
£17%)
HK$'000

Tin

Compared to
amounts reported
for2018

under HKAS 17
#0185
24268
HE(ENEE
BRETEN
1%
HK$'000

Thn

ik

Ex

-fiet]
£17%)
(1)
HKS$000
Thn

(4.452) (22129 8,693
= (5,778 (8,156)
(4.452) (42,800) (18,382)
(4.452) (46,607) (26,616)
JEZRIZREBER D E
20195 F3R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIT REBITETBMBEHREE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) Al (#)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) ER#FHITRLETEEMERE
(continued) %8 (48)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) SRR EERNE 1655 [HEI(H)
(i) Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the (i) HAEFEGERAREEREZ %
Group (continued) Z(4E)

2019
0195

Estimated amounts

related to operating
leases as if under Compared to
Amounts HKAS 17 Hypothetical  amounts reported
reported (notes 1 &1I) amounts for for 2018
under HBSE 2019 as if under under HKAS 17

HKFRS 16 gt HKAS 17 H018%
it SHE(ED 1952 2HEeH
ERUBRE REEAS BeRemE (Em t& (i
EA%16% AV E) REEAE REEAE
2He8 (IR ) RAEH) ERIE17%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn Thn BT FhL

Line items in the consolidated statement FREAERTHREEAE 16558
of cash flows for year ended BE195 128310 LFEL
31 December 2019 impacted GARSHERER
by the adoption of HKFRS 16:

Cash generated from operations REELE7BE 85,726 (4452) 81,274 19,795
Interest element of lease rentals paid EffEEREZNEHH (1,451) 1,451 - -
Net cash generated from BeTREL RETE

operating activities 84,109 (3,001) 81,108 15,757
Principal element of lease payments REMFZALHH (3,001) 3,001 - -

Net cash (used in)/generated from BETE(FR)/FEReFE
financing activities (101,426) 3,001 (98,425) 4767

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(ii)

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the
Group (continued)

Notes:

(0

(n

The “estimated amounts related to operating leases” is
an estimate of the amounts of the cash flows in 2019
that relate to leases which would have been classified as
operating leases, if HKAS 17 had still applied in 2019.
This estimate assumes that there were no differences
between rentals and cash flows and that all of the new
leases entered into in 2019 would have been classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still
applied in 2019. Any potential net tax effect is ignored.

In this impact table these cash outflows are reclassified
from financing to operating in order to compute
hypothetical amounts of net cash generated from
operating activities and net cash used in financing
activities as if HKAS 17 still applied.

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

RAFIT RSB EEMBREE
B (4&)

(a) ERAHMIREBIEBUBRE
2R ()

BRI REERE 1657 [HE ()

(i) HEEEYERERALTHELF
(&)

PRz

0) [HgEHEFENG 2]
EEAEBBETENFE1THRR
2019 F NARERAZBER TE SR
REEHE 2 HERBRBA2019
FHREREBZSHEMET o &bt
Ra% - EAESSFELFE 17 7R
2019FNREAZERT » e
BB ERECHWEEZR - MR
BRBEERF 17512019
FRN WM EHAEEENEA
KERE - FRBEFHERE
B BEEET

(I REEFERES  ZFHRLRH
HEEENABEEE  UE
KEEHRAZRLSFHELR
ERPREAZASFRANRRE
B BEE SRS A7 5D
SRR ©

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2019. These new and revised
HKFRSs include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

BRUBRELRE IR ZETEBNER

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

3.

RAFIT RSB EEMBREE
B (4&)

(b) T HEM{E i R 4 XAV HTR] R AE4E
R BB B REER

AEBVEREEACEMBEERR
20194 1 A1 A A8 EE E £ R
B RIEEET BB S 2R o Al gEEAAR
BB BT RS BB RS 4
AIBHETSIEIA -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
EUT g 2%
FRIR N E AR R

1 January 2020
20201 A1 H

1 January 2020

BAGTERE 1R RBEA ST ERE SR 2B EANER 20201 A 1H
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2020
BHBVISREERFE 5 - BASFTERFE 3R REBIBIRELERNZE 7 5% 2 E5] 20201 A 1H

EE S e

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

AR E ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

ETEERBR

ZEEBPBRRTIZRELKAERE - T
XEHABRRAERERINWMETIZAREE
AAENEmIA) -

WA ATEPBME LA P B MERARA
ATIBREE TREEEERAASHE
SIBEBRTEL A - S RSEHE RS
B8 - RERSEAMBRREE

HEZBRRRMT 2 BBRERE BB RRM
A5 KT

RMEZEGREVBRRAEAZEEZETEER
;T -

(a) #REHRHE

REMBHRREREARAREME R RE
E12A31 B NP BHRE - B A FE
AREZSNER - EAKER2EEE
EmARR #FHmBnaARIEALESR
AEEmE - BARNEEREREINE
NMFEZEOEE - RIAREZEGHZE
B - EAKEBESHB AT R AAH
EE (A EBEMBEREATEOEE)
HIRBERE - NEBNSERERE
H

FERHEE DR - AEESEEEEER
AN BHEMSTRANEERRE -
ERFAEABERENTREERZER
TEEBLTHERN -

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill and any accumulated exchange reserve
relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and equity shareholders of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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& BB R RIS Bk K45 i 2 B as s ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the equity shareholders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at
the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and
the services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.

AR E ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

TEEEBCR (8)

(a)

(b)

mEMRE (8)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(b) Business combination and goodwill
(continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value
is added to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
("CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

0]

(ii)

AR E ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F 12 A31BHILFE

TEEEBCR (8)

(0 SHEBRE

BEEREINEE

AEEEERZMBHRRMAEA
B DRAAHERSEMEZE
%ﬁ@%%ZE%U%%E%D%

o fRAMBHRERAET (BT
25 MATHARBZWERZ
FIEHE

BEEBCUBBRRZXS KGR

SNER BN SR IRR ZHE B
BITZEXBERNEEE - A5
BHEZEBEERABRERSE
IR ERIBE - WIRERRESE
2 BENESER -

A BEFERAINEEZ IE
BHEDEREEAAREBEEERZ
B -

EIFEREB ZEBREMEEK
SRR - A B EIER D
REMEEKEER - EFE¥R
B2 BEMNMERTERE - ZB8B2
EAIEE 3 AR D R B2 R

IERZEREEERAF
2019F F 5]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- Al resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (upon application of HKFRS 16 at 1 January
2019, the interest in leasehold land was reclassified to “Right-
of-use assets”, see note 3), held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold land held for own Over the term of the lease
use under operating lease

Solar power plants 20 years
Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5 —20 years
Office equipment and others 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Yacht 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(e)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

(i) The Group as a lessee
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Leases (continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets related to interests
in leasehold land where the interest in the land is held
as inventory are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in accordance with note 4(j).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Leases (continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment properties and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Leases (continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Policy prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group. Leases which did not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group were classified as operating leases.

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such assets were
recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
were recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation was provided at rates which wrote off
the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it was likely the Group would
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset.
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments were
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals were
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they were incurred.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases were
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis was more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received were recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals were charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
were incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Leases (continued)
(ii) The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL") in accordance with the policy set out in note
4(z) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Contract assets and contract liabilities

0]

()

(continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method.

Properties under development and held for
sale

Properties for sale under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
include the acquisition cost of interest in leasehold land,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other
direct costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

On completion, the properties are reclassified to properties
held for sale at the then carrying amount.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

Equity securities

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducing all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax (“VAT") or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of manufactured goods is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery) and accepted
by the customer. Following delivery and acceptance,
the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the
goods are delivered to and accepted by the customer
as this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is
recognised when control of the properties are
transferred, being when the construction of the
relevant properties has been completed and the
properties have been delivered, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to direct the
use of the property and obtain substantially all of the
remain benefits of the property. Revenue from sale of
properties excludes business tax and other sales related
taxes and is after deduction of any discounts allowed.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
contract liabilities.

Sales of electricity

Revenue from sale of electricity is recognised in the
accounting period when electricity is generated and
supplied to the provincial power grid. Revenue excludes
VAT or other sales taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Operation revenue of cloud platforms

Operation revenue of cloud platforms is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group operates various post-employments schemes,
including defined contribution pension plans.

(ii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and vest
fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of central pension schemes operated by the local
municipal governments. The Group is required to
contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and wages to the central pension schemes
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension schemes is
to meet the required contributions under the schemes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(®

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or, if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group receives the
services and is recognised as an expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Borrowing costs

(v)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset. Effective 1 January 2019, any specific borrowing that
remain outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intended use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-
of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

4,

TEEEBCR (8)

(w) BiE (&)

EXRBAEEZREERS RS HRR
& WA AT REA B SIME AR B A AU
Bl 22k ED B EMITR TELFNR o

BEEHBATRRERARNEEREHERE
EHEZRE WX REHRAIS /A
ERBMHHEAE  BEHANER
R BRIFRENE 2 E R ETER 2 TR E
AR ERNERER - RULBERT @ &
FERE IR IR EoA 2 [ W et ok B R P 2

7
e

BRERREER BB FTERRIZAEE
EHNRERRREHEEEEERAE
FREEZ A AELEZMBER

At EAREEREBEEENABREE
BENHERZNEERANS @ ~NEE
BEEERNEEE BN EREEESR
HERE -

HRBRENRBEARNEEABENEER
5 AEEHERERERSRAELES
ERNE12FORTE - BERAEEERH

BEEMNTEBBHEHEREASIHHNE
ENFER - EHAHRNEREZRFE -

BEHBEENBERRB R AENITE
SRR R E EREEINEAE - &
SRR BB PrSTAER - B
AEERHRFREESEANRHAEE
REBEZBERT T LA o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Taxation (continued)

(x)

(y)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land costs, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. LAT is recognised as an income
tax expense. LAT paid is a deductible expense for PRC
enterprise income tax purposes.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using
pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is
being measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y)

(2)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to profit
or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contracts assets. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over one year past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group'’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(aa) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

(ab) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt
with below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustments on sales of
electricity

Tariff adjustments represent subsidy received and receivable
from the government authorities in respect of the Group’s
solar power generation business.

In August 2013, the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC released the New Tariff Notice to
launch a new subsidising policy for distributed solar power
plants and adjusted benchmark on-grid price for electricity
generated by centralised solar power plants (which is known
as the ground solar plants).

Pursuant to the New Tariff Notice, a set of standardised
procedures for the settlement of the tariff subsidy has come
into force since 2013 and approvals for the registration in the
Catalogue on a project-by-project basis are required before
the allocation of funds to the state grid companies, which
then would make settlement to the Group.

Tariff adjustments of approximately HK$35,495,000 (2018:
HK$33,561,000) recognised for the year ended 31 December
2019 are included in the sales of electricity as disclosed
in note 8 and are recognised based on management
judgement that all of the Group’s operating power plants
have qualified for, and have met all the requirements and
conditions as required based on the prevailing nationwide
government policies on renewable energy for solar power
plants. Cumulative amount of tariff receivables relating to
power plants yet to register in the Catalogue amounting
to approximately HK$59,398,000 (2018: HK$39,478,000)
remains outstanding as at the end of the reporting period.

In making their judgement, the Directors, taking into account
the legal opinion as advised by the Group’s legal advisor,
considered that all of the Group’s solar power plants currently
in operation have met the requirements and conditions as
stipulated in the New Tariff Notice for the entitlement of the
tariff adjustments when the electricity was delivered on grid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)
Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustments on sales of
electricity (continued)

The Directors are confident that all of the Group’s operating
power plants were able to be registered in the Catalogue in
due course and the accrued revenue on tariff subsidy are fully
recoverable but only subject to timing of allocation of funds
from the government, after considering that there are no bad
debt experiences with the state grid companies in the past
and the tariff subsidy is fully funded by the PRC government.

Legal titles of certain buildings

As stated in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
the titles of certain buildings related to a production plant
acquired from a third party were not transferred to the
Group as at 31 December 2019. Despite the fact that the
Group has not obtained the relevant legal titles, the directors
determined to recognise those buildings as property, plant
and equipment, on the grounds that they expect the transfer
of legal titles in future should have no major difficulties and
the Group is in substance controlling those buildings.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for
stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets.
An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In
assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Group takes into account qualitative and
quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2019 was approximately HK$401,534,000
(2018: HK$458,835,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During the
year, income tax of approximately HK$3,781,000 (2018:
HK$7,734,000) was charged to profit or loss based on the
estimated profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(9]

(d)

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGU to which goodwiill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The carrying amount of goodwill
at the end of the reporting period was approximately
HK$Nil (2018: HK$2,830,000) after an impairment loss of
approximately HK$2,830,000 (2018: HK$ Nil) was recognised
during the year. Details of the impairment loss calculation are
provided in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the assets belong. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2019
were HK$401,534,000 (2018: HK$458,835,000) and
HK$46,069,000 (2018: HKS$Nil) respectively.

(e) Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets based on the credit risk of trade receivables and
contract assets. The amount of the impairment loss based
on ECL model is measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash
flows are less than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a material impairment
loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets is HK$216,837,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$2,178,000) (2018:
HK$264,064,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$5,066,000)).

5.

AR E ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

BREF T & B fh t (AR)

fhEr FEAE R 2 T ERIR ()

(d) ¥% - BERREREAREENRE
(#%)

M2019F 12 A31 BWMWIZE - KRB MEE
MMEEAEEENEEES AR B
401,534,000 7T, (2018 4F : 458,835,00075
JT) & 46,069,000 78 7T (2018 FF : £&) o

() EBEZEURERSHNEENRE

AEEEREENEZRERARANE
ENEERRMENEZIBRRFTARSHE
ENRHEEERNBESHE - ZNEH
FEBEREXNREERSBENERES
HENAKRENRESORERRAEE
BREBMAERSRENERTE -
R TER R B M BRI RAER - R
KRERINERLEAEERIERBEE
FTMEL - AR BEEA B ARERE

R2019F 12 8310 E5EWREIE K
AEHEEMNIREE 216,837,000/ 7T
(0B R BR#52,178,0007 7T ) (2018
£ 1 264,064,000 7T (40 Br R BR B &
5,066,000 7T)) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(f)

Allowance for slow-moving and net realisable value of
inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.
Allowance for slow-moving inventories amounted to
approximately HK$319,000 (2018: HK$212,000) was made
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on current market conditions and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer’s demand and competitor’s actions in response to
severe industry cycles. The Group will reassess the estimates
by the end of each reporting period.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in equity securities. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk
is mainly concentrated on equity securities quoted on the
Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2018: 10%) higher/lower,
loss after tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$170,000 (2018:
HK$1,520,000). This is mainly due to the changes in fair value
of held-for-trading investments.

AR E ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

SRR EE

AEBZ XA ZRERBEAR - IMNERRE
BERR  EERKR  RBEZEREFEER
o NEEERRERERGIHESRTS
ZEATRRAINE - WBKEAEE 2 BIERIE
EZBENNZERERK -

(a) sMERBR

AREEmEEMINER R - REAE AR
DEBR S BEMABEEUAKEE
Bz EHE - A% E B A &SN
¥R BERAEGIRIINEERHEER
AEETYEFREINERR - WE BN
R LT EARINERR

(b) KERE

R E B B E AR AR SR A T H Ee A
BRER - EEEEEETRR KRS R
MIREHAEEAHRR - ARERAE
R\ fi 3 2 5% Fp FE B 2 P P ERAR ANRE 55

LATN 8RR E AT TH BN A 5 B R E R A
IERRERE

HR%(B 7t T B&10% (20184 : 10%) -
Bl & 20196 12 A318 It FE & K
i 1% B 18 15 R 4> 38 N 49 170,000 7T
(20184F : 1,520,000 7T) ° LTI EZMH
PHEEBIREN AR BEZEAHK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and
from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with high
credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject
to the Group's established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due ranging from 30 to 180 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. TRIEMEE (HE)
(c) Credit risk (continued) () EERB(E)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) ESRWAREREGNEE (E)

Based on the track record of regular repayment of receivables RIEE N E R IE Z EHEMEEL
from sales of electricity and the settlement of tariff adjustment 8% UNEEARERZE £EKEE
receivables is in accordance with the prevailing government TTHNECR - BRIPREENHEE B E
policies, all trade receivables and contract assets from sales SRBSTIERGNEE (BEEERAEE
of electricity, including tariff adjustment receivables, are WIE) Bk E - mEHNEERREE
expected to be recoverable and the ECL provision on contract EEBWRABTER °

assets is considered to be insignificant.

The following table provides information about the Group’s TRREEEAEEEREERRLTE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and HEEBEENER - B8R 2019412 A
contract assets, as at 31 December 2019: 3NMEMEBZREURGERENEE !
2019
2019 F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FAHERE AR {E BREE
% HK$'000 HK$°000
% FTET FET
Current (not past due) BUER (I 4780 2R ) 0.06% 186,964 112
Less than 1 month past due B —1E A 0.21% 22,625 48
1 to 3 months past due g1 =31@A 0.33% 3,071 10
More than 3 months past due 1 HAiA:E 3 {@ A 31.60% 6,355 2,008
219,015 2,178
2018
20184
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHA TR 2 EEREE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET BT
Current (not past due) BVER (I 780 R ) 0% 197,933 =
Less than 1 month past due #0 B P —1E A 0.08% 44,284 36
1 to 3 months past due w1 =3(EA 0.23% 15,926 36
More than 3 months past due  7EHA 238 3 @& A 45.45% 10,987 4,994
269,130 5,066

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected

lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables during
the year is as follows:

6.

TREREE ()

(0 FEERRE)
EZRUHERSNEE (F)
BEHBEEREE S FNERERERT
o WFHERRRMRBMA(EEBEEHR
HAfR SR ) IR E R ~ B AT R AR

SES EWSIRTREIF BN LB R Z
BR - MINATE

FANEBE S RERZBEERESENE
AR :

2019 2018

2019 F 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FT

At 1 January m—H—H 5,066 3,655
Impairment losses recognised for the year — ZAEEFERRIERE 6,425 2,066
Amounts written off during the year REEMIEEEE (6,491) =
Reversals o (2,769) (404)
Exchange differences PEHZE%8 (53) (251)
At 31 December M®12A831H 2,178 5,066

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the decrease in

the loss allowance during 2019:

a reversal of trade receivables with a gross carrying
amount of HK$2,769,000 resulted in a decrease in loss
allowance of HK$2,769,000.

a write-off of trade receivables with a gross carrying
amount of HK$6,491,000 resulted in a decrease in loss
allowance of HK$6,491,000.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6.

(c)

Credit risk (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost

All of the Group’s financial instruments at amortised cost are
considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was therefore limited to
12-month expected losses. These instruments are considered
to be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default and
the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term.

Financial assets at amortised cost include other receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance for financial assets at
amortised cost during the year is as follows:

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

TEEREE ()
(0 FERRE)
REHRAT R SHAE

AEBEMARBERATEN SR TAR
BRAKGERR - Bt - AAERNE
BRERNI12EABHEER -ZETA
HEAERRYRRKHEESEEERRE
BITARBOHBETEANRSREED
SEARBETT ©

REHERAFTEC S REERREMEW

A °

AEE BT B2 SRAERIAR
BEEBIT :

Other
receivables
H fth FEW R IE
HK$ " 000
FHET

At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 20181 H1H 201812 A31H
and 1 January 2019 %2019 1H1H 1,345
Impairment losses recognised for the year RNEZHERRERE 2,255
Exchange differences R (52)
At 31 December 2019 R2019412 A 31 H 3,548

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to equity
investments that are measured at FVTPL. The maximum
exposure at the end of the reporting period is the carrying
amount of these investments of HK$1,696,000 (2018:
HK$15,199,000).

REEBNTEBREAR EET=HEZ S
ABHERTENREREEHAEER
R RIREHAAEBRN R AR AR
{8 1,696,000/8 T K 72 1% & (2018 F
15,199,000/87T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities is as
follows:

Less than

1 year or
on demand
1FHIRER
HK$'000
FHT

At 31 December 2019 20194 12H31H
Trade and other payables & 5 &~ FUE &

H b fE 1T 5/ IE 107,311
Bank borrowings RITE 71,660
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,880

At 31 December 2018 7R 20184 12 A31H
Trade and other payables & 5 & FUE K

H fth JEAT FRIR 116,795
Bank borrowings IRITER 163,069

(e) Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
variable-rate bank borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s bank deposits bear interest at variable rates that
vary with the then prevailing market condition.

The Group's bank borrowings of approximately
HK$55,875,000 (2018: HK$45,544,000) bear interest at fixed
interest rate and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risk. Other bank borrowings are arranged at variable
rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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6. TRIEMREE ()

(d)

Between
1 and

PACELD
1622F
HK$'000
FHT

2,618

(e)

RBES R

REE 2 BRAEMES B AT RIAHZ R
HELHK - EMBERAKEERRHER
TRBABNEEHEBRRBORDES

Fk o

REAEESHTESRBEZ SRR
BemfELIHamT :

Between
2 and Over
5 years 5 years Total
2FFESF 5EME &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET

- - 107,311
- - 71,660
4,469 20,743 31,710
- - 116,795
- - 163,069
AR E

AEERNRSBMNEEREERT BRIR
TERAR - AEBZBRAFEEER
RSB EKF ARG A A EEFEER

fEE&IK -

AEBMRITFRIZBEERRTHREL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(e) Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$566,000 (2018: HK$430,000) higher/
lower, arising mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on bank borrowings.

(f) Categories of financial instruments at
31 December 2019

ERMEE

Financial assets:
Financial assets at FVTPL — Held for trading

AR EETRARE

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

6. TEmAREE(HE)
(e) F=REB2 (&)

2019412 A31 8 » A= EF T
k100 [EEE MAT A SR
REEF 2 A BRTRBERSE M W8
566,0007% 7T (2018 4F : 430,000% 7T ) *
FERRIBITERZF ST,

Ao

(f) 2019 12A831EHNEMIT AESD
|

2019
2019 &

2018
20184
HK$'000
FBT

HK$°000
TExT

SEA

BN eREE - FIEER 1,696 15,199
Financial assets measured at amortised cost  LABE SR ARG 2N S FIEE 400,251 454,698
Financial liabilities: EHMEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost A SHRC AT EN S AR 177,213 276,420
(9) Fair values (9) AREHE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

REFEUBARARMRRZ A EESRE
EltBBEZRAEREZXBZAAE
(EEEES

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AREERE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or ARBEEMS2EEZERFEAHERRF

paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market RSP HEEEBKENEZEEE I NNE

participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of % TXWEEAAABEERGTENAAE

fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises B B2 A BEMNGEEL AHABREL

into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure =R 7 :

fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F—ERBAE: NEEARGTEAER 28
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can REEXBBERNERTS L
access at the measurement date. HHRME CRACAE) °

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within E_BLRBAGE: E—EBRFABEHREMN
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, Sy BENBEEESHE
either directly or indirectly. ABRZBAE -

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. FEEBRBAE: EEREBHTAIEHEH A

fE o
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out AEENBERAERBE S Fa &L HEEE
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in ENER= AR REARELER -

circumstances that caused the transfer.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at (@) N2019F12A3MBAAREEE
31 December 2019: BOEREBEOT

Fair value measurements using: Total

DRAEEHERAER G

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019

fit F-EBR FER F=ER 20195
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TR TET

Recurring fair value measurements: ZEH#AAEEE :

Financial assets: SREE !
Financial assets at FVTPL NAREESEAEES
SAEHERENSRHEE
— Listed equity securities - B EmRAES 1,696 - - 1,696

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. DREEFE(E)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at () R2019F12A31B A AREEE

(b)

31 December 2019: (continued)

ROSRFEOT ()

Total

MEEHEHRER - et

Description Level 1

il E-BH&
HK$'000
FTET

Recurring fair value measurements: ZEMAREEE :

Financial assets: SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL WA EETEAEES
SAEHEENSREE
— Listed equity securities - B EmRAES 15,199

Level 2 Level 3 2018
EER E=ER 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THL THT

= = 15,199

During the two years, there were no changes in the valuation
techniques used.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there

were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

Reconciliation of liabilities measured at fair (b)
value based on Level 3:

RMEFE - FBNKETEDRAER

=

RELZE 20194 %2018 12 A31 B 1L
B REEMIEERAABENE—E
& FERRE=EREER -

BEF="BERELAEBEFEN
BEHER

Convertible bonds

CIE:Y 3¢
2019 2018
20195 20184
Description HK$'000 HK$'000
Eipa THET FHT
At 1 January ®R1H1H - 94
Total losses recognised in profit or loss MiBa R BB R - (94)
At 31 December Mm12A31H - -
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are RIBE RN =S BB AE R RE Bamk
presented in other gains and losses in the consolidated AEY Bt U e KR R 251 o
statement of profit or loss.
BRI AR A A
20195 5,




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WARZDEHE
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (a) WA#D
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BEEERIRESDAFERERTFE
major products or service line for the year is as follow: KW A DT

2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THT

Revenue from contracts with BEBVEREEL

customers within the scope FISREERRE

of HKFRS 15 EFEAHHBA
Disaggregated by major products REEEM

or service lines ARG 48 5
Manufacturing and sales of EEERNGER

BOPP films R fERSE AR

- Cigarette films - BIEER 219,631 58% 220,424 48%

— Non-cigarette-related films - FEBEMER

BEME 81,318 22% 121,589 27%

Sub-total NET 300,949 80% 342,013 75%
Sales of sub-processing cigarette films 5% Hl T & /& EE 7,508 2% 50,083 1%
Properties development and Y53 e B RE AR TS

related services 8,778 2% 10,377 2%
Generation of photovoltaic power KRBT 54,695 15% 50,181 12%
Cloud-related business EXEB 4,278 1% 1,173 -
Total CE 376,208 100% 453,827 100%

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WAKRSDHHE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (continued) (a) WA#Hz (%)

REBEN T ERE RN R B BERE
B ks AR A o M ARTS EE R M.

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and
services over time and at a point in time in the following
major product lines and geographical regions:

For the year ended
31 December
EZNANALEE

Manufacturing and  Sales of sub-processing Properties development  Generation of
salesof BOPPfilms ~ cigarettefilms  and related services  photovoltaic power Cloud-related business Total
A A

ERIMRYOAREE BENIEERE  NRRRAERE {88 55 CHl

Primary geographical markets ~ EHEHIE
Mainland China hER 300949 342013 © 7508 50083 - 8718 10377 54695 50,181 4218 1173 376208 453827
Timing of revenue recognition ~ WARERRRE %
Products ransferred at a point in time. - a5 — 5%k
@;’5 300949 342013 7508 50083 818 7752 - = - - 317235 399848
Products and senvices transferred AT
over fime Bt - - - - - 265 SA6%S 0181 A28 1173 B8O 53979
Total Air 300,949 342013 1 7508 50083 8718 10377 = 54695 50,181 4218 1173 316208 453827
(b) Segment reporting (b) ZEwHE
The Group has five operating segments as follows: REERELED T -
. Manufacturing and sales of BOPP films: this segment o EHBARBE RN AERE : kD26
engages in manufacturing and sales of cigarette HERBEREMIERERENE

019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% M9 NIBE  W9E  08E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000
T T T Thn

2019
W
HKS'000
TETL

2018
WIBE 2019
HKS'000  HKS'000

i TER

019 2018

0185

2019
e
HKS'000
thn

2018
W18
HK$ 000
Tin

packaging films and non-cigarette-related packing
films (e.g. films for packing straws, food, cassettes and
stationery tapes);

o Sales of sub-processing cigarette films: this segment
engages in trading of sub-processing cigarette films;

o Properties development and related services: this
segment engages in development and sales of
properties and providing property management
services;

o Generation of photovoltaic power: this segment
engages in generating and sales of electricity; and

. Cloud-related business: this segment engaged in . EEF o EPIRBREETEAE
provision of development of cloud computing related EUE - IV ET S RIREEE
software, outsourcing cloud platforms and providing iR 2= R AR RS o
cloud computing solutions and related services.

BRI AR A A

KER(WAERXRE R
il e BB R I SCELRB 5 B RO SE

)

s  HENMIHZER: KONEER
Z I TEENEERREIR

o  MXBBRIABIRS : Lo BER
KIHEMERIERYEE R

o REE : WAREHEN Rk

2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires different
technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include unallocated head office and corporate expenses,
loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net realised and unrealised
loss on investment in equity securities, dividend income
from equity securities and impairment of unallocated other
receivables. Segment assets do not include equity securities
and unallocated head office and corporate assets. Segment
liabilities do not include unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WAKRSDHHE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEHE ()
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) HEE BERES
Information about operating segment profit or loss, BERAEE ER  BEMAEBZ
assets and liabilities is as follows: AR

Sales of Properties
Manufacturingand ~ sub-processing ~ developmentand ~ Generation of Cloud-related
sales of BOPPfilms ~ cigarette films related services  photovoltaic power business Total

EERMASOARER EENIEEEE  NFUBREBRE HREE £55 it

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 20018 2019 2018 2019 2018
WOE 018 N9F  N18F  N9E  018F  N0EF  NBE  N0F  NBF  W0E 0%
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS(000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000
TR Tt TAr TEr TEn  TEr TR TEr TEr  TEr  TEn TEn

Year ended 31 December ~ £% 12831 BILEE

Revenue from external ~~ RESNIEFME
customers 300,949 342013 7508 50,083 8718 10377 © 5469 50,181 4218 1173 © 376208 453827

Reportable segment  AHHAPHA
revenue 300949 342013 © 7508 50083 878 10377 54695 50,181 | 4218 1173 | 376208 453827

Reportable segment AT
gross profit/(loss) £/ (28) 44004 68095 - 2,087 14534 | (109) 2339 33356 31670 1,683 (1234 80460 115404

Reportable segment  WERRAZHHAS
(ossyproftbeforetar ~ (B8) /%A (188) 1763 | (14303 So | (5am)  G0) M 100 | (12629 (4060 (2040) 2171

Interest income from bank 7RISl

deposits 118 64 54 54 250 755 13 17 2 50 462 940
Interest expense FgHx 505 6003 1299 1,960 - = 871 193 - -0 29 81%
Depreciaton and N

amortisation 17,288 15,781 3035 2077 206 432 © 16528 14826 14200 3891 © 38411 37,007
Other materialnon-cash ~~ EfER

ftems: FREER:

(Reversal)impaimentof ~ 2HEUFIAR
trade and other receivables  EftfEIEE
(Bm)/HE (355 1,662 - - 3534 - - - Y ¥ | )

Impairment of goodwill ~ EEH(E - - - - - - - -8

2830 =

Impaiment of property, 1%~ RERRE
plantand equipment ~ JifE - - 5005 - - - - -0 70 19419 1208 19419

As at 31 December #M2A31A

Reportablesegment  HBAFEE
assets 201897 372804 - 73120 125439 | 190,751 163576 © 401,567 393694 | 9092 35365 | 966427 1,090,968

Additions to non-current EAEAES S
segment assetsduring ~ EENSEE

the year 110 28720 1848 9143 - 70 38% 65244 - - 12854 77266
Reportablesegment ~ TRHAPEE
liabilities 144259 168122 =~ 35334 62025 10310 45452 0 23391 10351 4484 3434 0 217838 289,384

JERZEREBERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WAKRSDHHE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEHE ()

(i) Reconciliations of segment profit or loss, assets (i) 2WHEANEE BEREGENHY
and liabilities AR

2019
2019 £

2018
20184
HK$'000
FBT

HK$°000
TExT

Profit/(loss) wmAl (EE)

AT ER R BB BLAT (B51R) s A

Reportable segment (loss)/profit

before tax (22,040) 2,171
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries ST B A REE = (1,629)
Net realised and unrealised loss on A FEAFIEE BB EIE K&

investment in equity securities REIR R ETR (18,566) (4,167)
Dividend income from equity securities F%ZN3& % HI A% S UL A 13,617 129
Impairment of unallocated R ERE M FE IR R E

other receivables (1,300) -
Unallocated head office and ROFCARE AN E] X

corporate expenses (15,803) (15,386)
Consolidated loss before tax RE T ATEE (44,092) (18,882)
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AR FEE 966,427 1,090,968
Equity securities AR ANTE 2 1,696 15,199
Unallocated head office and RO TRABEA A B & E

corporate assets 15,518 15,638
Consolidated total assets e BEMRR 983,641 1,121,805
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AR FEE 217,838 289,384
Unallocated head office ROEREMABEE

and corporate liabilities 152 1,114
Consolidated total liabilities e BEERE 217,990 290,498

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(iii) Geographic information

No geographic information is present as the revenue,
contribution to operating results, assets and liabilities
of the Group are attributable to operating activities
which are carried out or originated principally in the
PRC including Hong Kong.

(iv) Revenue from major customers

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

8. WARZDHHRE ()

(b) ZEB#RE (&)
(i) HWEEH
MR AEEEIRA - HELEEN
B AERABHBBREER
hE (REEE) BITRRENEE
E - AR 2HEEER -

(iv) REETEEFHKA

2019 2018
2019 5 20184

HK$"000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Segment of manufacturing and sales 2 $5 35 s & A S IR

of BOPP films and sale of RIHE N T HE SRS 5B

sub-processing cigarette firms

Customer A B 154,898 150,949

Customer B BRZ 46,620 95,988
201,518 246,937

Segment of generation of FIRFEE D F
photovoltaic power
Customer C EFER 54,695 50,181
JEZRIZREBER D E

2019 F R
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R SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HWA
2019 PAONES]
2019 F 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FT
Compensation G = 358
Dividend income from equity securities IR FE HF R AR B M 13,617 129
Government grants (Note (i) AT B (BREG)) 1,996 497
Amortisation of deferred government EIE BT fE B aE (M= 35)
grants (Note 35) 213 -
Interest income on bank deposits RITEFABIA 465 940
Loan interest income ERAEHA 1,665 =
Rental income AW A 983 =
Sales of scrap materials HERER 4,139 10,581
Sundry income FETAUWA 839 182
23,917 12,687
Note: Mk
(i) Government grants mainly related to the subsidy received from the (i) BT B E E6 E A S BB 8 77 BUT #

local government authority for the achievements of the Group.

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

B fB) ©

10. Hftts K EIRFE

2019
2019 F

HK$"000
TERT

2018
20184
HK$'000
THAT

Gain on disposal of property,

HEWE - BE &K

plant and equipment hE 25 107
Write off of property, plant and equipment I - R IR ERE (661) (28)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries L EHTB A BRI EsE - (1,629)
Net foreign exchange losses IE VB 18558 (629) (2,337)
Net realised and unrealised gain on investment B ERKRENS SR RRER

in wealth management products Wzs 358 - 592
Net realised and unrealised loss on investment RAFBHIGENE FR R

in equity securities REIR R EE (18,566) (4,167)
Fair value gain on convertible bonds AR ES A B E RS - 94
Others Hity (1.171) (2,000)

(21,002) (9,368)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



11.

12.

FINANCE COSTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

11. BERAK

2019 PAONES]

2019 F 2018 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FH&T

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 20) HEBFENF SR (FFE20) 1,451 =
Interest on bank borrowings SRITERF B 5,778 7,786
Other interest expense HiF B FHE = 370
Total borrowing costs BEX B8 7,229 8,156

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

12. BB
PSRN BRI ¢

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHT T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax NEARIIE - BB RS
Overprovision in prior year iR F R B - 917)
Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax BNVEARRIR — AR B SEFTIS AR
Provision for the year REZEME 3,758 4,720
(Over)/under-provision in prior years ERNBREEE GBRERE)
BET e (2,506) 1,485
1,252 5,288
LAT T HRER 118 71
Deferred tax (note 33) EIERIE (Pi3E33) 2,411 2,375
3,781 7,734

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands

and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in

these jurisdictions.

() REFASHSNMABEBEFSHNRA
WP - NEEEANZE R A RBNE
AFEH -

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

12.
(ii)

(iii)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit for the year (2018: Nil).

Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax rate
for the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying
corporations established in Hong Kong will be lowered to
8.25%, and profits above that amount will be subject to the
tax rate of 16.5%.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC (“New Tax Law”) which became effective on
1 January 2008 and the PRC’s statutory Corporate Income Tax
rate is 25%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable to advanced
technology enterprises established in the PRC, Jiangsu Sheen
Colour Science Technology Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Ener
Packaging Technology Co., Ltd. are subject to PRC corporate
income tax at a preferential tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Entities engaged in qualified power generating projects,
are eligible for a corporate income tax exemption for the
first year to the third year, and a 50% reduction for the
fourth year to the sixth year starting from the year in which
the entities first generate operating income (the “3+3 tax
holiday”). Xuzhou Sheentai New Energy Power Generation
Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group)
obtained the “Notification of Corporate Income Tax (“CIT")
3+3 tax holiday” in 2016 and was entitled to the 3+3 tax
holiday retrospectively from 2015 to 2020.

Entities engaged in software related business are eligible for
a corporate income tax exemption for the first year to second
year, and a 50% reduction for the third year to the fifth year
starting from the year in which the entities first generate
operating income (the “2+3 tax holiday). Xuyi Guangcai
Information Technology Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group) obtained the “Notification of CIT
2+3 tax holiday” in 2018 and was entitled to 2+3 tax holiday
retrospectively from 2016 to 2020.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

12. FrSHis i ()

(ii)

(iii)

WERESFESHELRE  BALEE
RAFE W EERTa(2018F : &) o

RBEMAMEE G - REBKILHE ERS
7B H 200 875 TR FE ST R A B A RIS B
ARG TNFAE825% * #BiE 200878 THI
FI B S4BT 16.5% B RIHF

RK2007F3816H F+EZBEAR
REAGEAXREZESHAEB T(PEA
REMBIMEMASTEY ([FFE]) - R
20084 1 A1 BAEX - FEUEERFEME
FREE25% -

AR ABE FB A E R B A A RO e e IR AT 1 2 Y
ERER  IEe R BERHE AR ARMNE
EXRHBEBEERARAEREZE2019
FNRANBULEFEREFREI15%H
MR B EEFTSH o

HEABRERELEBENCETAHY
REERERANFERFE—EF=F
EABRESHEHE  WREMEEHN
FEOR R 50% M EATEH ([3+3F
BERH]) - BMIERFEBRLEERA
Rl (AEENBEE2ENBAR) K 2016
FEMB[CEMESR(EEMSR]
33 B EREBMBMA] - B2015F =
2020 F E AR B M Z A 3+3 s E R
/H\,q °

NERHEEESODEAT AR REL
LEWANFERTE—EFE_FELE
RESHBERR  URE=2FAFEA
R 50% MEEMEH (243 B ER
H]) - FREMEERMEERAR (K&
ERNEEEEHBAR )R 2018 FEME
[EMER 23 FBERINBA] - B
2016 F £ 2020 FE M A E M= A 2+3
A= R -



12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(iv)

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC-resident corporate investors
from PRC-resident enterprises are subject to withholding
tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January 2008. Under the tax
arrangement between the Mainland of China and Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the relevant regulations,
a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the “beneficial
owner” and holds a 25% equity interest or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%.
The withholding tax rate applicable to the Group is 5%.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules,
where the research and development expenses incurred by
an enterprise in its research and development activities do
not form intangible assets and are included in the current
period’s profit or loss, 50% of such research and development
expenses shall be deducted from the taxable income amount
of the year; where intangible assets are formed, pretax
amortisation shall be made based on 150% of the costs of
the intangible assets.

(iv)

(v)

AR E ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

12. FrSHis i ()

RIEFFEREE AL - BRIE2008 F
1 A1 B B ERER A G FIE RIS 155 3 &2 E
ERc RAGEFBERMGEREEREK
FEERMFEAREEIZI10% HATEN
it o IRIEAP BN R E SR RITTE 2
MBS RRRER - B ATFREMER
EmEA A WiEH 25% sk A _ERRER
BERESTHIEERAIZEER BN X
5% ° BARAEBRITEIHER5% °

RIEFROE R EBIEAE - SRR
EHRERBENNEER  KAEKE
FEESAZHERN  CERATES
MBER L ERAFEERBLRE
HI50% -+ AN e Fi FTiS BB AR 4Rk
FREVEEN  BBREFEEKADN
150% fEFLATEEGH o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The reconciliation between income tax expense and product of loss

12. FrSHis i ()

PS5t se i B ER TR AT RS A B AR K 2 45 R

before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as follows: HERT
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Loss before tax HAIEE (44,092) (18,882)
Notional tax on loss before tax, calculated RRREM A R AR RS
at the rates applicable in the jurisdictions AT R E R AEE
concerned K EZETIE (8,325) (2,020)
Tax effect of the preferential tax rates BEHERNTIETE 351 (3,058)
Additional deductible allowance for ATIEANFR 2 B 3 & A
research and development expenses (833) (989)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR R T IE R 2 11,005 8,752
PRC withholding tax AR B TE N 14 912
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFETIU A TR 2 (2,966) (102)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ANERN I EENTIET 2 5,164 2,739
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FIA LRI AR T IB B 15
not previously recognised EOpTREY -7 (723) =
(Over)/under-provision in prior years RBAEFE GREERME) BET 2 (2,506) 568
Overprovision in current year RE AT SRR G = (120)
LAT + IR (ERL 118 71
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary REREREZRENHEYE
differences 2,482 981
Income tax expense FriSiisz i 3,781 7,734

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FREE
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the Kk (FEA) THIEIEER - AEBFREE
following: R
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in A ERE

cost of sales) (BFEREEKRAR) 550 462
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment M - RE RERETTE 40,890 43,489
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 4,267 =
Amortisation of leasehold land TS 1 SH - 521
Operating lease charges: KERERS :

— Land and buildings - T RIEF - 3,975
Auditor’s remuneration ZERME & 1,330 1,330
Cost of inventories sold B EFERA 206,299 248,569
Allowance for inventories FEREE 319 212
Allowance for trade and other receivables, net B 5 FEWGRIE J HoAth FE Y 5k IE

BimEE 5,911 1,662
Research and development expenditure R 12,559 16,214
Write off of property, plant and equipment M - BREE IR 661 28
Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation, EEFENABEEIRA  FTE  BHK
amortisation and operating lease charges of approximately 42 7 & R 2 £945,959,0007%8 T (2018 4F
HK$45,959,000 (2018: HK$52,728,000) which are included in the 52,728,0007&7T) - B at A EXEIEHH BRI
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 14 for each of these 145 R SRR 2 A °

type of expenses.

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

14. EERABEX

2019 PAONES]
2019 F 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH&T
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - B KERL 39,103 47,822
Equity-settled share-based payments LARE 2 45 B DA D AETR A S 837 1,811
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAEFET B HY LR 5,475 6,656
45,415 56,289

Five highest paid individuals AfuBEMEAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 2 (2018: 2) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in note 15(a). The emoluments of the
remaining 3 (2018: 3) individuals are set out below:

NEBARFE R &= ME ATRIE207(2018
F M) EE - A E RS MISHREMN T
15(a) T3 A AR BR o ELeR347(20184F : 3f7)
AT ZHESHEHNAT -

2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - RBE K2R 1,826 1,978
Equity-settled share-based payments LARE 2 45 B DA 0 AETR A 65 65
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RINEFET SRR 24 =
1,915 2,043

The emoluments fell within the following band: MeEA T £ EHEA

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Number of individuals

A

2019
20195

2018
20184

Z % 1,000,000 7T 3 3

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. EEEARER
(a) Directors’ emoluments () EE=M=E
The remuneration of every director is set out below: EZEBEEMEEIWOT :
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s AEBATIERES(THRAANTISHE
services as a director, whether of the Company or its M8 AR E) WE IS :

subsidiary undertaking:

Employer's
(Note i) contribution
Estimated toa

money value  retirement

of other benefit
benefits scheme
Discretionary GED) Exs
Fees Salaries bonus  EAEFIA RIRGE Total
e 2 MERA FESE  GrEINER =h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx TEx S TEx

Executive directors HITES

Guo Yumin IER 550 - 1,000 - 18 1,568
Xia Yu ER - 360 100 - 5 465
Zeng Xiangyang Bl - 764 300 34 28 1,126
Independent BYFHTES

non-executive directors

Lo Wa Kei, Roy EER 250 - - 14 - 264
Fong Wo, Felix il 250 - - 14 - 264
Fan Qing Bl 250 - - 14 - 264
Total for 2019 2019F 45 1,300 1,124 1,400 76 51 3,951

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. EE{EM R #E#% (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEEE (E)
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s MR BALTEAEE (T mARNARIKEHE
services as a director, whether of the Company or its B ARHE) NE kBB

subsidiary undertaking:

Employer's
(Note i)  contribution
Estimated toa

money value retirement

of other benefit
benefits scheme
Discretionary (MizED) EEst
Fees Salaries bonus  Ef RIER] Total
He 2 MiEEa HESHE  EMOER CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TAT TAT TAL TAL TAT
Executive directors HTES
Guo Yumin PER 550 - 2,750 - 18 3,318
Xia Yu B - 300 100 - - 400
Zeng Xiangyang 2 mkG - 787 500 74 43 1,404
Guo Cheng (Note (ii) EEAGEIO) - 120 - 21 - 141
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Lo Wa Kei, Roy BER 250 - - 30 - 280
Fong Wo, Felix oLl 250 - - 30 - 280
Fan Qing Bl 250 - - 30 - 280
Total for 2018 2018 F 45 1,300 1,207 3,350 185 61 6,103
Notes: (i)  Estimated money value of other benefits represented MEEE : () HthEFHEE S ABRE -

share options.

(i)  Resigned on 25 May 2018. (i)  F20184 5 A 25 HEHE -

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

Save as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements and contracts amongst group companies and
aforementioned transaction, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and other
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$47,873,000 (2018:
HK$26,498,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 2,437,838,000 (2018: 2,455,248,000) in issue during the
year.

Diluted loss per share

As the Company’s share options as at 31 December 2018 and 2019
do not give rise to any dilutive effect to the loss per share, diluted
loss per share was the same as the basic loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

15.

16.

17.

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

ESEN RS (R

(b) EERXS  RERBHZEK
e

BiRa MMk M43 WEE AR EE
ARBREEHR LRRZZIN - RERKEF
AEAAIE L B AT E A RFR L
MARREEREBEA T ERAFEE
BEARS AEARERBEBAIEAR
5 BHERAEH

IR

AAREZWTIEZRNEZ2019F 12 A 31
HIEFEMTMAARE (20184 : £) o

BRER
BREXEIE

RABEEAEBEEREABEEIEREAR
BIHEA A FE(E AN 2 F5 18 4947,873,0005%8 7T
(2018 4F : 26,498,000/ 7T ) I & @A MEF 5
£02,437,838,000 % (2018 £ : 2,455,248,000
fi%) o

BRE#ESEE
HRARFR2018F KX 20194 12 A31 HAEE
BETSHEREBEEETNESTYE - At
R EEIEEFEE 2019412 A31BILFEE
R ZRREANEEAR °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

18. 1% - BERRE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(0]i(
Solar power Plantand  equipment Motor Construction
plants  Buildings machinery and others vehicles Yacht in progress Total
BRRME
N EF N BEY HWEREE KA RE EE ERIE fi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT Ti5n THT Tibr THT Tisn Tibr
Cost A
At 1 January 2018 R2018E 1810 282,527 100,817 231,395 10,614 9,119 35,716 256 670,444
Additions ®E 63,813 = 2,636 243 715 = 1,748 69,155
Disposals RE - = = (3) (1,528) - = (1,531)
Wite off fis = = = (86) (468) = = (554)
Transfer from construction ~ HEERTR
in progress 713 - - - - - (713) -
Disposal of a subsidiary REMNBAR - - = (29 = = = (29)
Exchange differences EiER (16,668) (5,046) (11,736) (449) (344) - (52) (34,295)
At 31 December 2018 M2018% 12 A318
and 1 January 2019 R2019%171R 330,385 95,771 222,295 10,290 7,494 35,716 1,239 703,190
Additions #E 349 - 1,14 265 949 205 1,943 4,825
Disposals RE - - (2,216) - - - = (2,216)
Write off kit = = = (225) (874) (123) (574) (1,79)
Transfer from construction ~ EEERTE
in progress 2,428 - - - - - (2,428) -
Exchange differences EiES (6,162) (1,767) (4,099) (156) (116) - ® (12,308
At 31 December 2019 M2019F 12 A31H 327,000 94,004 217,094 10,174 7453 35,798 172 691,695
Accumulated depreciation ZFHTER{E
and impairment
At 1 January 2018 R2018F 1A 1A (23,986) (32,723) (104,798) (8,077) (7,589) (16,675) - (193,848)
Charge for the year REHE (14,807) 479)  (14953) (1,114) (666) (7,157) - (43,489)
Disposals RE - - - 2 1423 - - 1425
Write off ik = - - 80 446 - - 526
Impairment loss VEHEL ! - - (19,419) - - - - (19,419)
Disposal of a subsidiary RENBAA - - - 19 - - - 19
Exchange differences EXER 1,770 1,805 6,208 377 2 - - 10,431
At 31 December 2018 R2018E 12 4318
and 1 January 2019 R&2019%1 718 (37,023) (35710)  (132,962) (8,713) (6,115) (23,832) - (244,355)
Charge for the year TEfE (15,775) 4581  (12,163) (714) (509) (7,148) - (40,890)
Disposals RE - - 1,694 - - - - 1,694
Write off fisH - - - 213 831 91 - 1,135
Impairment loss HEEE - - (11332) (273) (484) - - (12,089)
Exchange differences EiES 913 720 2,474 145 ) - - 4344
At 31 December 2019 M2019512 A318 (51,885) (39,571) (152,289 (9.342) (6,185) (30,889) - (290,161)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2019 ®2019%12 4318 275,115 54,433 64,805 832 1,268 4,909 172 401,534
At 31 December 2018 M20185 12 A31H 293,362 60,061 89,333 1,577 1,379 11,884 1,239 458,835

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$103,736,000 (2018:
HK$105,695,000).

At 31 December 2019, the Group was in the process of obtaining
the relevant building ownership certificates of certain buildings
with carrying amount of approximately HK$17,548,000 (2018:
HK$18,763,000).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment attributable to Treasure Cloud
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Treasure Cloud Group”) of the
cloud-related business segment, having regarded to the fact that
the operation of certain cloud platforms was temporarily ceased
since the Group terminated the operation and maintenance services
previously provided by a third party operator on the cloud platforms
in previous year. The review led to the recognition of impairment
losses of approximately HK$7,075,000 (2018:HK$19,419,000) for
property, plant and equipment, that have been recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment attributable to the sales of
sub-processing cigarette films segment, having regarded to
the substantial losses due to loss of sales orders from a major
customer. The review led to the recognition of impairment losses of
approximately HK$5,014,000 (2018: HK$Nil) for property, plant and
equipment, that have been recognised in profit or loss.

18.

AR E ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

W% - BERRE ()

MW2019E 128310 @ EEBIEAREBRTT
BERERZYE BEMEKEBEZEAESHE
#49/%103,736,0007 7. (20184 105,695,000/%
JT) °

R2019F 12 A31H ' AEBFERKEESE
%) /17,548,000 7T (20184 : 18,763,00078
TL) A TEFHEBEFTMARER -

KEEARNEERNEFRIEE=HBERE LA
FEFELREMNEEREERBUR - BT
EFEMELCERELENEE  AEEY
A 52 AH B 2£ 75 5 S0 Y Treasure Cloud Limited &
H f B A 7] ([Treasure Cloud Group) F& 15 4
¥ BERSEHOTRESEET TR -8
SEHERAYE  WEREENRAERED
7,075,000 7T (2018 4F : 19,419,000/ T ) -
BB HER o

MERFTERFHEEMAEHE NEIE -
AEBHEZBINIEEEES MHEENY
¥ BERZENAE S EET TR R
NEBHERARNIBRPERYE  BEREED
SHEE18#5,014,000/8 7T (2018 4F « £) o

IERZEREEERAF
2019F F 5]
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HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

19.

INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR OWN
USE UNDER OPERATING LEASE

The Group’s interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease represent prepaid operating lease payments and
their net book value are analysed as follows:

19. REKLEHERFERANESE L
AR
AEERBKEHERFEERANEE T iR
EIETER &S & IE R B REFE D T A
T

At 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1H 20,357
Additions HE 8,103
Amortisation i (521)
Exchange differences MR =5 (1,003)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 72018 12 A31HX 201941 81H 26,936
Reclassification due to adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 3) EERAE B M55 S /IS 16 5 i E= #7548 (FIFE3) (26,936)

Restated balance at 1 January 2019

R201941 B 1 BESI4E# -

2018
20184

HK$'000
FHT

Current portion (note 25) BNEAER (7 (Bi3E 25) 648

Non-current portion FERNERER (D

26,288

26,936

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of interests in leasehold
land for own use under operating lease pledged as security for the
Group's bank borrowings amounted to HK$18,847,000.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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20.

Notes to the Co

nsolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. FRAREE
Leasehold Leased Plant &

land properties  machinery Total

HE L HEWME BERBMES &%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHET FTHET FHET
At 1 January 2019 (note 3) 7201941 A1 8 (MFE3) 41,905 1,041 = 42,946
Additions BE 1,998 353 5,883 8,234
Depreciation e (1,378) (928) (1,961) (4,267)
Exchange differences MEH =R (785) (3) (56) (844)
At 31 December 2019 M 2019412 A31H 41,740 463 3,866 46,069

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$18,911,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$18,352,000 as at 31
December 2019. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

720194F 12 A31H » B #384718,911,000 %
JCRIFE B {5 K 18,352,000 7% 7T Y A8 B8 {5 FA &
BE BREBEAMBEHEEERNERES
AN FEHE T EIE A EMRY - HEEE
NMSREEEER

2019
2019 F
HK$'000
FHEx
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets EREEENTEER 4,267
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBENFEXH (Bt ARERKA)
(included in finance costs) 1,451
Expenses relating to short-term lease B HAEBEMNER (G ABERARITERAR)
(included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses) 1,284

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 40(b).

MER R BBRNFFHNFE400b) °

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 20. EAEEE (&)
For both years, the Group leases various land, offices and plant and MEHE AEEAESELH - HAE R
machinery for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for P B ER DUETTAR S - THE A AR EEHES 2
fixed term of 2 years to 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated on ZF 504 o HEBRREREERIER HEEE -
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and HEhaSK B INEMNIGERLIGE - NEB R
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length TE R EA AN ST G T Al BUHA BRI - IR A KV
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition EEWHEEAS A REIENITEER

of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of right-of-use assets M2019F 12 A31 8 * XEE ARITERIER
pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings amounted to R B E ERRRE(E 4 18,020,000 77T ©
HK$18,020,000.

21. GOODWILL 21. &8
2019 PAONE:]
2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Cost AR
At 1 January and at 31 December R1A1TEER12A31H 52,475 52,475
Accumulated impairment losses 2R EER
At 1 January W1A1H (49,645) (49,645)
Impairment loss recognised in the current year RAFE R HEREREEE (2,830) -
At 31 December Mm12A31H (52,475) (49,645)
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December R12A831H - 2,830
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at REBEHREE 2 HEDREERSEEETE
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that HAXEREREHcReELEMN - BB
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been FREEDBCANT :

allocated as follows:

2019 AONE:]
2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT
Cloud-related business: X

Treasure Cloud Group (note (a)) Treasure Cloud Group ({7 (a)) - -

Yancheng Renhe Network Sci. & Tech. Limited B AT R AR AT
("YCRH") (note (b)) (Mg AF0 1) (i EE (b)) = 2,830

= 2,830

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Treasure Cloud Group

Goodwill allocated to Treasure Cloud Group of approximately
HK$49,645,000 was fully impaired in previous year.

YCRH

For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing in respect
of acquisition of YCRH, goodwill arising from the business
combinations was allocated to the CGU of YCRH, which is
the YCRH’s cloud-related business.

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU
is determined based on value in use calculation, which uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 2% (2018: 2%) for the
CGU which is consistent with the forecast included in industry
reports. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the business in which the CGU
operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate
of 19.5% (2018: 19.5%). The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the segment.

As at 31 December 2019, before impairment testing,
goodwill of HK$2,830,000 was allocated to YCRH within the
cloud segment. Due to a slow-down in the cloud business,
the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts for this CGU.
The CGU has been reduced to its recoverable of HK$Nil and
an impairment loss of HK$2,830,000 recognised on goodwill.

(a)

(b)

AR E ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

21. BE (@)

Treasure Cloud Group

% Bt ¥ Treasure Cloud Group #J & 2 49
49,645,000/ 7T L AT FJE E B EURIE

B3 A

HRWRE R AMNEERENR - Al
EEHELNBEDRERANMNRSE
B BB AT EERT -

MR2019F 128318 WEEAENN
Al B S REIRREREETEHAERE
FABEFE D ZRANRSRETENZ
VA 12 [ it f 80 2 S BRI R B 75 78
BEAER - ZHEELEBNRAFHREE
RIRSMEHA 2% (20184 : 2%) M1l
ETONEFIEREEE - ZIERERELT
ERERNAIERR —Z - ZERERE
BRREELEMAMICEERNEHE
HA R R « WS REE 19.5% (20184 :
19.5% ) FALIR FKETTALER - FARELE
KA R IE - B KRS 26 4 E
B e

2019412 A31 8 » & ET7RER R
Al * 2,830,000 7T K9P & B 5 Bl 45 BE I
AFIREFE DI - HREEBHRE -
AEBEETHRESEABNNBESRE
188 - WS ELEBEMD R EEATKE
HET BT R BRI EE1E 2,830,000
BT o

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

22.

BEE

Cloud
platform
operating
Software agreement Total
EF¥EH
B4 &E &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1H 12,701 183,707 196,408
Additions BE 16 - 16
Write off HEH - (183,707) (183,707)
Exchange differences MEH =5 (634) = (634)
At 31 December 2018 and M2018F 12 A31 B K&

1 January 2019 20191 A 1H 12,083 - 12,083
Exchange differences VE =58 (222) - (222)
At 31 December 2019 M2019F 12 A31 H 11,861 - 11,861
Accumulated amortisation and Rt B RRESE

impairment losses
At 1 January 2018 M20185F1 A1 H (10,615) (183,707) (194,322)
Amortisation for the year AN E (462) = (462)
Write off s - 183,707 183,707
Exchange differences bE X ZERE 550 - 550
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F 12 A31 B K

1 January 2019 20191 H1H (10,527) - (10,527)
Amortisation for the year NEZEE (550) - (550)
Exchange differences R 337 - 337
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H (10,740) - (10,740)
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2019 MR2019F 12 A31H 1,121 = 1,121
At 31 December 2018 M2018F 12 A31H 1,556 - 1,556

The average remaining amortisation period of the software is 1.7 R RIS A1.7F (201846 : 2.6
years (2018: 2.6 years). F) o

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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23.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as

follows:

DECEN

place of

incorporation/

Name of company establishment
AR%ER AL AGRBE
Ling Xian Fei Yulmportand Export ~ EXRFELA (RN 10 September 2007/
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ("LXFY") BRAF(TLXFY) The PRC
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (WO R(WE) 2007898108/
i

Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science e R ENRERAR 6 March 2002/
Technology Co, Ltd. (*J55C") (f1ssc) The PRC
(Note 1) and (Note 4) (W) R(KE4)  20053R68/
GlE

Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology B EREDERE 27 June 2007/
Co, Ltd. ("QD Ener” (Note 1) ARAF QD Ener) The PRC
and (Note 2) (WEF)R(MEE) 2001568278/
i

Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate ~ MFIEZRIERE 24 July 2013/
Development Co., Ltd. (“"NARED") ~ &R/A&](TNARED)) The PRC
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (ErORME)  013%7848/
i

Hong Kong Sheen Tai Investment ~~~ B/&IERREARAT 10 May 2013/
Limitedt (“HKSTL") (THKSTIL)) Hong Kong
013558108/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Place of
operation and

business
BER
£ 5L

The PRC
“F

5=

The PRC
P

The PRC
i

The PRC
P

Hong Kong

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

23. AMIBARIMIKRE
R2019F 12 A 31 HHMB A BT :

Issued Group's
and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
up capital interest  the Company  the subsidiary activities
BEfR AREN

HRER EREE ArRERE AWRARKE IEEH
HK$23,180,000 100% - 100% Investment
23,180,000770 holding and
trading of
cigarette films
RAERA
15§9,000,000 100% - 100% Printing of
9,000,000%7 digarette films
BERRDR)
15$12,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing
12,000,000 of cigarette and
BOPP films
EERZRAE
EGls
R
15$30,000,000 100% - 100% Property
30,000,000%7 development
nxER
15$25,000,000 100% = 100% Investment
25,000,007 holding
REER

JEZRIZREBER D E

20195 5,




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 23. RBATMKRE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as AR2019F 12 A31 BB ARIFEBWT « (8)

follows: (continued)

Date and
place of Place of Issued Group's
incorporation/  operation and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment husiness up capital interest  the Company  the subsidiary activities
RlAYE EXR BEfR AREN
AR R ASRLE £330 HRER EREE ArRERE AWRARKE IEEH
Sheen Tai (HK) New Energy Investment  JEZR(£78) 31854 27November 2013/ Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100% Investment
Limited ("STNEIL(HK)") BRAT Hong Kong &% 10077 holding
([STNEI(HK).) 0311278/ REZR
Sheen Tai Fnergy Investment Ltd. JEZEREABRAR 18 November 2013 HongKong Us$100 100% 100% - Investment
("STELL") ([STEL) Bl &k 100X holding
W13EN1A188/ REAR
EREARNS
Sheen Tai International Ivestment~~ |ERER R AR AT 2May2013  HongKong  US$20,000,000 100% 100% - Investment
Limited ("STIL") (fsmi)) BV &% 20,000000%T holding
01385828/ REBR
ERGRRNS
Century Leader Asia Limited ("CLAL")  BEZHERAA 2Apil 20077 HongKong  HK$10,000 100% - 100% Investment
(fciaL)) Hong Kong & 10,000AT holding and
20074828/ trading of
Bk cigarette films
RARRA
Sheen China Group Holdings Inc. ~~ |EZSBIHRARRE 27 November 2008/~ Hong Kong Us$10 100% 100% - Investment
("SCGH") ([SceHI)) BVl ) 0% holding
200851182718/ RARR
ERGARNS
Sheen China Group Holdings Limited ~ |EZSEAHRARAT 5 September 2008/ Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100% Inactive
("SCGHL") (TSCGHL)) Hong Kong 5 17T B2
200859758/

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as
follows: (continued)

Name of company

AR%R

Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited

("HKSC")

Shenzhen Shuntai New Energy
Science Technology Co., Ltd.
("SINE") (Note 1) and (Note 2)

Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy Power
Generation Co, Ltd. ("XZNE")

(Note 1) and (Note 3)

Hong Kong Taiwo Holding Limited

("HKTHL")

Treasure Cloud Limited ("TC")

Bz (B%) R AT
(THKsc))

I BRF AR
BRAR ([SINE])
(GEIED)

BB REE
BRAR(TXINE])
(BfsE1) R (Rf3E3)

EASNERERAR
(THKTHLI)

Treasure Cloud Limited

(el

DECEN
place of
incorporation/
establishment
#i/
AL AR

20 August 1997/
Hong Kong
197684208/

31 March 2015/
The PRC
015538318/
i

21 Aprl 2015/

The PRC
WI554A18/
i

31 July 2015/
Hong Kong
015878318/

4 January 2016/
BVI
01651748/
ABEATES

Place of
operation and
business
BER

£ 5L

Hong Kong

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

23. AMIBARNKRE (&)
2019612 A31 BB A RIFERBIWT : (8)

Issued Group's
and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
up capital interest  the Company  the subsidiary activities
BEfR AREN
HRER EREE ArRERE AWRARKE IEEH
HK$12,600,000 100% - 100%  Investment and
12,600,000 %7 trading of
cigarette films
RERRA
15$36,663,640 100% - 100% Investment
36,663,640 57T holding
and trading
RERRA
85
RMB39,000,000 100% = 100%  Generation of
AR% photovoltaic
39,000,0007T power
EREE
HK$100 100% - 100% Inactive
10087 BX%
US§1 100% 100% - Investment
1% holding
RERR
JEZRIZREBER D E @
20195 5,



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 23. RBATMKRE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as AR2019F 12 A31 BB ARIFEBWT « (8)

follows: (continued)

DECEN
place of Place of Issued Group's
incorporation/  operation and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment husiness up capital interest  the Company  the subsidiary activities
RlAYE EXR BEfR AREN
AR R ASRLE £330 HRER EREE ArRERE AWRARKE IEEH
Sheen Tai Cloud Network Limited ERERERRAT 31 August 2016/ Hong Kong US$100 100% 100% - Investment
("STCNL") (TSTeNL]) BV B 100%7T holding
01658318/ REAK
AREERES
Falcon Wisdom Limited (“FW") BEERAR(FW]) 18 December 2015/ Hong Kong HKS$1 100% - 100% Investment
Hong Kong B 1T holding
20158128188/ RERR
China City Cloud Network Sci. & RERTERRRE 29 August 2016/ Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100% Investment
Tech. Limited (*CCCN’) BRAF(TCCON) Hong Kong B 1008T holding
2016587298/ RAR
Sheyang Tengyun Information SAREE SRR 30 May 2016/ The PRC ~ HK$25,000,000 100% - 100%  Cloud-elated
Technology Co,, Ltd. (*SYTY") ERAA(TSYTY]) The PRC B 25,000,007 business
(Note 1) and (Note 2 (rORME)  2016%5A8308/ e 3
h
Xuyi Guangcai Information Technology  AFREEHESRIA 27 May 2016/ The PRC  HK$25,000,000 100% - 100%  Cloud-elated
Co, Ltd. ("XYGC") (Note 1) BRAA(Txvac)) The PRC E 25,00000077 business
and (Note 2) (MErORME) 2016858278/ X5
i
Xuzhou Shuntai Agricultural Technology /MIBZREERR 16 February 2016/ The PRC  RMB10,000,000 100% - 100% Agiculture
Co,, Ltd. ("XZNY") (Note 1) BRAR (XN ]) The PRC i ARE technology
and (Note 3) (W) R(KE3) 2016528168/ 10,000,000 AR
hE

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 23. RBATMKRE (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as R2019F 12 A31 BB ARIFEBWT « (8)

follows: (continued)

DECEN
place of Place of Issued Group's
incorporation/  operation and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment husiness up capital interest  the Company  the subsidiary activities
RlAYE EXR BEfR AREN
AR R AHRLY WY HREA EREE ArRERE AWRARKE ITXR
Shenzhen Qianhai Tengzhiyun Network 31381 2 SRR 5 May 2016/ The PRC - 100% - 100% Inactive
Sai. & Tech. Limited ("SZQH") (Note 1) BRAR([SZQH]) The PRC e BXT
and (Note 2) (M R(KED)  201685A58/
fh
Harbin Binghe Information Technology BB BAFIEE R 7 June 2016/ The PRC - 100% - 100% Inactive
Co, Ltd. (*HEBBH") (Note 1) AR ([HEBBH ) The PRC i EER
and (Note 2) (WEDRME) 201656778/
i
Shenzhen Qianhal Taizhiyun Network  AHIATE% 2 8RR 14 December 2016/ The PRC - 100% - 100% Investment
Sci. & Tech. Limited ("SZQH") (Note 1) BRARI ([ SZQH]) The PRC EF holding
and (Note 2) () R (HsE2) 20168128148/ RERR
4
YCRH (Note 1) and (Note 3) BHAR 12 September 2013/ The PRC  RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  Cloud-related
(PzE 1) R (BtzE 3) The PRC R N business
013594128/ 1,000,00070 e 3
h
City Cloud Network (China) Sc. & ST ER4E (BB 1June 2017/ Hong Kong US$46 100% 100% = Inactive
Tech. Limited ("CCNC") BRAR(TCoNC)) BvI & 65T BX7
01756818/
ABERRES

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 23. RHERAANKRE (&)

Note 1:  The English translation of the names is for reference only. The BIEET : AXNAHAZEZBERRE - ZSEENE
official names of these entities are in Chinese. T BTEARSURE o

Note 2:  These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in PRC. MizE2 : ZEEEBATBERINEDRSE -

Note 3:  These entities are limited companies established in PRC. MizE3 : ZEEEATRNKIL 2 EREMEAT °

Note 4:  The entity is a sino-foreign joint venture limited liability established Mzt s : ZEBAPREKLZFPINEEFREMEDRE
in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances of the MR2019F 12 A 318 » AEEF K E A A

Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) UIARE(TARKE|)TEZRITERIRE &5

amounted to HK$147,262,000 (2018: HK$159,804,000). 5 147,262,000 70 (20184 159,804,000/

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s JL) ° AR KR AN 838 ST B JNEE 12

Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of 155 2 4508 - SIE MMIEEIERE o

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

24. INVENTORIES 24. &

2019 2018
20194 20184

HK$"000 HK$'000
TERT THAT

Packaging materials manufacturing and trading ~ E$S @R

Raw materials R 23,823 24,549
Work in progress &M 6,844 12,922
Finished goods UK T 18,407 37,278
49,074 74,749

Property development ey
Completed properties held for sale FHEEERNE BRI 13,789 26,039
62,863 100,788

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

24. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 24. FE (&)

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense RESTHIW A ABSHOFEEEEITWT :
and included in profit or loss is as follows:

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEMNREE 205,980 248,357
Allowance for inventories FERE 319 212
206,299 248,569
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. EZEWFIER HEWRIE
2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHT T
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R IGRIE K RN E R 159,617 229,652
Allowance for doubtful debts REREHHE (2,178) (5,066)
157,439 224,586
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Ze - TR R E M EUGRIE
— related parties - BAE 1,196 334
— third parties —E=7 35,839 49,050
Loan receivable (note a) JEWE R (M5t a) 43,838 =
Current portion of interests in leasehold land B EHERFER AL
held for own use under operating HE TS BRNEAE o
lease (note 19) (FzE19) = 648
238,312 274,618

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Note a:

Loan receivable of HK$43,838,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$862,000) represented a loan agreement entered into
by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 10
December 2019 with Suining Chuyue Zhiye Company Limited (#E
B EEEAR2A]) (“Suining Chuyue”), a company established
in the PRC with limited liability, and Mr. Sun Chuyue, 70% equity
interest owner of Suining Chuyue, and Mr. Sun Yong, the father of
Mr. Sun Chuyue. Pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
to Suining Chuyue a loan amount of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$44,700,000) for a term of six months, which
carries interest at an interest rate of 1% per month and is secured
by (1) 40% equity interest in Suining Chuyue which is held by Mr.
Sun Chuyue as the share charge in favour of the subsidiary and
(2) personal guarantee given by Mr. Sun Yong in favour of the
subsidiary.

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. The
credit terms generally range from 30 to 180 days from the invoice
date. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

25. B BWRAR At EWEIE (&)

JE UL & 7% 43,838,00078 7T (1B R AR B4
862,000/ 7T) RRAR RN —HHEEE2E
WERARNK2019F 12 A 10 B =B &
EXFRAR([EEEE] - —RERBEK
VHWBREEAR) BREELE(HER
EM70% REFEE) RIEBLE (B
FEMRR) ST E RS © IR - A&
E 7 = [ i 2 2 E et A R ¥ 40,000,000
TC (A8 R #9 44,700,000 87T ) NER © A
HMEA R A1 BFIREE - ()
BRRELEFBNEERE40%RE - /£
BURB AR BZEANBKRMGIER - Q)
FRBRENE AR AZ S AR EAER
VERIAF o

MizEa :

AEBHEEFPHESEFAEEARRE 5
FREARR — N A= A HBET 30 HE 180 H 2
Mo SRFPHAZAEERE - A5E KR
B RS RERBR A BRI - ES
BREREITE IR -

RIBBHZAH  AEEEZERUFAREKRE
R (IR B < BRI T -

2019 2018

2019 20184
Trade Bills Trade Bills
receivables receivables receivables receivables
B 2 EIGRIE EBWEE Z5EIKKRIEA FEME &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTHET BT FAT
Unbilled (Note) ARARE (M) 27,540 - 23,696 =
Less than 30 days LHR30H 54,699 32,654 53,064 25,390
31 =90 days 31290 H 34,016 - 52,909 -
91 - 180 days 912180 H 6,415 - 19,315 -
181 — 365 days 181 H365H 1,196 - 46,243 —
Over 365 days 365 B 9219 - 3,969 -
124,785 32,654 199,196 25,390

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



25.

26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Note:

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the amount represents unbilled tariff
adjustment receivables of solar power plants registered in the Catalogue.

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of approximately HK$36,878,000
(2018: HK$37,574,000) were pledged to a bank to secure bank borrowings
as set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in
RMB.

At 31 December 2019, an allowance of approximately HK$3,548,000 (2018:
HK$1,345,000) was made for other receivables.

CONTRACT ASSETS

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to tariff
adjustments for the electricity sold to the local state grid companies
in the PRC. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the Group’s respective operating power plants are registered
in the Catalogue pursuant to prevailing national government
policies on renewable energy for solar power plants.

The Directors considered that the ECL for contract assets is
insignificant as at 31 December 2019, as the collection is well
supported by the government policies.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

25.

26.

27.

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

B2 RWE
it

RIE K E b FE W R E (]

H

R2019F 2018512 A31H » 2& 58K A B &
HIARSRE B B Uh M R AR IR B E A EERE -

72019 12 A31H + #4936,878,000% 7T (2018 4 :
37,574,000 7T ) K E 5 FE WK IE TR F 2R 77 BAER
FIRTTER - RS ISR 52 32 ATE ©

REEE 5 RIEHIE 2 RAEAAREEHE -

R2019F 12 A31H - EftEMBBGRIE RBEELD
3,548,000/8 7L (2018 4 : 1,345,000 7T) °

BHEE

m/\’Jé{FExﬁf&$E@ﬁﬂFlﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ 8

REHEE MW EEAEANERN - BARE
EERLEREWRBERART2EMEARSRE
HEUNBLRRBRIABRE  AWEE
A E S UER

ZERE N2019F12 8310 AHEERN
BHEEBRITEAXN  FAARZERFTEER
AT o

URnREEFEAEESHTAEY
BENEMERE

2019
20194

2018
20184
HK$'000
T

HK$°000
TR

Equity securities, at fair value BAE S - BAREBE
Listed in Hong Kong REALT 1,696 15,199
The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are classified as Pt eREE REESERIFIEER -

held for trading.

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are measured at
FVTPL in accordance with HKFRS 9.

BEEENBHREENER  LReBEE
POBREETY A A A EIEEH 2 A X BB AR H
B3R -

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (CONTINUED) 27. UAREEGEEHSHTAEY
EanNEnEE (&)
The investments in listed equity securities offer the Group the ETRABLF R EBBRBREWARAREER
opportunity for return through dividend income and fair value Wi AREEIRERFREE - ZFINELEE
gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. EHHANEREE o
The fair values of listed securities are based on the closing prices. EMESZARBEDERKMESE °

28. RESTRICTED CASH AND BANK AND CASH 28. SR&IBEREBITREESLEE

BALANCES

The Group’s restricted cash represented deposits pledged to banks REB 2 ZBRHBELECEFFRITOER
to secure the bills payable issued to suppliers of the Group as set LA/ RN B 4 R vl B AT R (T RARIR AL B4R (40
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. iR e I TS IRER P E 36 FTEL) o

As at 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances of the R2019F 12 A31H A& B ZRITREE
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$147,310,000 (2018: HERRAARMBEE - £%75147,310,000% 7T
HK$168,935,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies (20184 : 168,935,000/8 7T ) ° & A RE 5 #
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations A HNEE I8 38 <7 eh B AN B I (R I M A BE - B TE
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign EAEEEEE -

Exchange Regulations.

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
2019 2018
2019 20184
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHOEE Ex-] aaE4= ®F
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR THERT T i FHET
Authorised: SERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each FRREE0.0025 87T
B AR 8,000,000 20,000 8,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each &AM (E 0.0025 /57T
EoR=gEli
At 1 January ®m1A1H 2,455,248 6,138 2,455,248 6,138
Repurchase of shares (note a) BB (5Ea) (21,112) (53) = =
At 31 December M®12H31H 2,434,136 6,085 2,455,248 6,138
Note a:  During the year, the Company repurchased on the Stock Exchange MiiFa: F A AAAREXHAEEA X
a total of 21,112,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each of 21,112,000 f% & A% M {8 0.002578 JT 2 A
the Company, at an aggregate consideration after expenses of AEIEBRD  MRAZRCBRENA
approximately HK$4,291,000, which were cancelled during the 4,291,000« HERFEANTEH o Bt
year. The nominal value of the cancelled shares was credited to R EER AEARE L H#E - B8
capital redemption reserve and the aggregate consideration paid RREHR B ARERRDRE -

was debited to the share premium of the Group.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Total debt
comprises borrowings. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits and other reserves).

During 2019, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2018, was to maintain the equity and debt in a balanced position
and ensure that there was adequate working capital to service its
debt obligations. The Group’s gearing ratios at 31 December 2019
was -12% (2018: -4%):

The decrease in the gearing ratio during 2019 resulted primarily
from decrease in bank borrowings.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are: (i) in
order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to meet financial
covenants attached to the bank borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly on
substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
the year.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the banks
to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any bank borrowings for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

AR E ISR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

9. BZ& (%)

AEEEREAZ BNEEREREBERE
rerEBBCABRERNFARAEBRR
Bl o

AEBZRBRLIIBEEATRE - ASEEE
BARER  IREBEERRZ(CRBHREEN
RBRFHELAR - RERKAREARERE -
REBEBERHE NS  BITHBD - K
MO  BEFES  BRRENEBRLE
BENRADET °

AEBEEREERBLLRERER - RN
B FRGARAEREANGE - EHREE
BEE - KARREABEERN 2 APAEKE
7 (BIRAS  (REE A M E M)

20194 + AEBEMKEE2018FETE - 1 5
RERANREFOTE  BREZVEEESD
ENEEKEE - AEER2019F 12 A31H
ZEEBELEE-12% (20184 : -4%) °

2019F EEBELEFBDTIEZHRIRITER
A FTEL

AEBERRRATINRERRE : ()BT #55
B P _E A - HZE A 25% KD A
RTFAE - i) BERITE R AT -

AEEFGARERNBPBRRELIIRIER
TRBEENEABRNEENRE » ZMESET
AREFREBEFEAN-ETARE25% AR

FRERE -

ERMGRAGSRITIANEREREE - &
Z 20194 % 2018412 A31 BILEE  {hERL
REBIAERITEFUE R I 5225 -

IERZEREEERAF
2019F F 5]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. XA T BRRARRFESS
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AQTEBEMRE
Company
As at 31 December
M®12H31H
2019 PAONES]
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A R RE 23 481,512 493,743
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL AR EEZ A &)
ATAEHEENEREE - 13,503
Other receivables H b el GRTE 2,138 2,126
Due from subsidiaries e Dy ENEIE e 301,734 302,019
Bank and cash balances RITRIR G R 8,688 311
Total current assets REBEEAR 312,560 317,959
Current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables At FET FIE 24 1,069
Due to subsidiaries JE ST BB A B R IE 57,054 46,171
Total current liabilities BB EAEE 57,078 47,240
Net current assets REBEERHE 255,482 270,719
NET ASSETS BEE 736,994 764,462
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR G
Share capital [N 29 6,085 6,138
Reserves 1] 30(b) 730,909 758,324
Equity FEm 736,994 764,462
Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and is REEER 2020543 A31 AbELHT
signed on its behalf by: WATRRESTEEHS -
Guo Yumin Xia Yu
BER 28

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. XA GBI AR FESS (8)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)
(b) EATHERE

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

Capital Share-based
Share Treasury  redemption Capital  payments Retained
premium shares reserve reserve reserve profits Total
HDRHAER
REpEF BERY EARERE B4 HXARE  RERA &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TAL TAL TAL TAL BT T
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1A 605,876 - - 81,955 14,190 21,398 723419
Profit for the year Emgh| - - - - - 33,094 33,004
Share-based payments DRHAEENZE 39 - - - = 1811 = 1811
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 124318 605,876 - - 81,955 16,001 54,492 758,324
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 418 605,876 - - 81,955 16,001 54,492 758,324
Loss for the year EnER - - - - = (4014  (24014)
Repurchase of shares R e - (4291) - - - = (4,291)
Cancellation of shares R (4.291) 4,291 53 - - - 53
Share-based payments DROBERNZN 39 - - - - 837 - 837
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A318 601,585 - 53 81,955 16,838 30,478 730,909
31. RESERVES 31. &
(a) Group (a) &&EHE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein REB HESHEREEHNGEERE
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss Hih 2 ERRRARGEERETRE
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement 5l o
of changes in equity.
JEZRIZREBER D E
20195 5,



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

31. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of the shares of
the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of
the nominal value of the issued capital of the Company
upon the cancellation of the repurchased shares.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly represents the contribution
from the ultimate controlling party and the difference
between the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries
acquired over the nominal value of shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group on 21 June 2012.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the applicable PRC regulations, all PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate
10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year/
period losses) to the statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of each relevant
PRC subsidiary. The transfer to the statutory reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of
the subsidiary.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2019

31. f&fE (&)
(b) fREHIMEERAR

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

IR 1E

P03 (B #5782 B A B ) T L B 2
I8 mIBLD P U ER P S 508 2 A
HEFE o

RERSHESAEE  ARAMNRK
s ERFNERAIEDIRT AR
AR - MESZRERE D IRALS A
& ARRIARMEN —REHKE
R E| BRSO ETS o

EARED #E

BABEOFEEL B EHEDBRN
BRARREHTEAEBERRD

BREE

BERFEEZEERENTEER
Fruk BB [T B A m k(D 2 B {EEA A
AIR2012F6 A21 B EHABER
BMMBITRGO 2EBE2ZE5E

EERE

REERNPEDES - AKBEAF
B BB AR AR RENRE G
F (S E—AFEHRaE
BIMN10%ERSEERHE BEE
ZEREEESRATENBERR
M E AR 50% © HARD RS
TR R EEELTERME - &
TEEHE AR ES AR R R L&
BB - LEREMBABTNRFE
BB IMEEMER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in
note 4(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 4(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

32. BANK BORROWINGS

Bank loans

RITER

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

31. f##%& (&)

(b) RENMEEMAE (E)
(v) HRGBHREBHZSHE

VAR 17 AR ETE RO X N R AR AR IR MY
AE A P AR SR A B AR D AR
MXMNEHBERETARERE
RARTTRE BB BN bR 2B
MRREE -

BE 5 1

P R R iR BB SN RIS OB TS

WRAMELWMAERLZR &R

BIRBAR S BRI 40 P
SETHRERE

(vi)

32. SRITER

2019
20194

2018
20184
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET

69,902

The bank borrowings are repayable within one year or on demand.

The carrying amounts of the Group’'s bank borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

RITERER —FARIRBERETEE -

AR TR R £ 4 T A T3 S
ff

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ BIT 10,000 20,000
US$ ETT 4,027 8,686
RMB AR 55,875 130,939
69,902 159,625

B R EMARAE

2019FF R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

PR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

32. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 32. SRITEM (&)
As at 31 December 2019, the average interest rate of bank R2019F 12 A31 H @ SRITERNFEHEFER =X
borrowings was 5.06% (2018: 4.92%) per annum. #%5.06% (20184 : 4.92%) °
Bank borrowings of HK$55,875,000 (2018: HK$45,544,000) are ERITE X 55,875,000/ (20184 : 45,544,000
arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the Group to fair value BIT) MEEF R ERSASBEBAREER
interest rate risk. Other bank borrowings are arranged at floating FRER - EMRITEFIRIHFRTE - #
rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. MEAEBEmERIR S RFIRER o
Bank loans of HK$69,902,000 (2018: HK$159,625,000) are secured #R1TEFX 69,902,000 7T (20184 : 159,625,000
by a charge over the Group’s leasehold land (note 20), buildings BT AASEEZHE L (M 20)  BFR
and machinery (note 18), trade receivables (note 25) and corporate #ES(FIzE18) B 5 EUEE (MizE 25) LA KA
guarantee executed by the Company and two subsidiaries. A BB R T A B TR A Rl AR VSR -
33. DEFERRED TAX 33. IEELEBIIE

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

BEGEUBRARBEROELEHELE (&
f8) WK D T ARFE BB LT -

Provision for
inventories,
trade Undistributed Fair value
Deferred tax Unrealised Accrued and other profits of  adjustment
arising from: profit expenses receivables Tax losses  subsidiaries of assets
7E - EAEN
i RERHE WEARN  EENAA
E%H: REFEA itk ERFUERE HEse  AIWER BERR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT TATL
At 1 January 2018 #2018E1R1H 2,883 1,282 2,049 142 (4,674) (284) 1,398
Exchange differences = - (53) (116) %) - - (176)
(Charge)/credit to profitorloss (3B E) /FHAB& (1,490) (272) 273 - (912) 26 (2,375)
At 31 December 2018 M2018% 12 A31H 1,393 957 2,206 135 (5,586) (258) (1,153)
Exchange differences EHESE - (5) (38) - - - 43)
(Charge)/credit to profitorloss (418 &) /FHAIBE (1,328) (952) (50) (135) (14) 68 2,411)
At 31 December 2019 ®2019F 12 A31H 65 = 2,118 = (5,600) (190) (3,607)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



33.

34,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position:

33.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

IESERIR ()
AR -

2019 2018

2019 F 20184F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets IR IR & B 2,183 4,691
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEBE (5,790) (5,844)
(3,607) (1,153)

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$48,880,000 (2018: HK$17,972,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$27,570,000 (2018:
HK$3,626,000) that will expire in five years. Other tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
2016 Convertible Bond

On 17 March 2016, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party and announced a plan
to issue four tranches of convertible bonds (the “2016 Convertible
Bond") with total principal amounts of HK$236,160,000 to the
independent third party.

34.

RBEBHR AEBEEADEHIEBEEER
48,880,0007% 7L (20184 : 17,972,000/ JT )
AT RS AR A o FPA AR B s ) 2R 2 B
AJTERIE - WARRERIEERIBEE s ARKE
R I8 B 18 FY 518 27,570,000 78 7T (2018 4F
3,626,000/ 7T ) iR AFREH - HAbFiIEE
1B P HEPR AR AT RS o

GRSt
2016 F AR ES

H2016F3H17H » KRR EBLE=HF]
VEERZE  WEMTEIREE =BT
HE 7R & 48 %8 /4 236,160,000 78 7T K A] 42 A% (& 5
([2016 R ES ) ©

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED) 34. TR ES (8)
2016 Convertible Bond (continued) 2016 FrA[ AR E S (48)
The detailed components of the 2016 Convertible Bond are 2016 FAHREF B FAEK B TR -

analysed as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
tranche tranche tranche tranche

of 2016 of 2016 of 2016 of 2016
Convertible Convertible Convertible Convertible
Bond Bond Bond Bond

E—#t SEH#t E=dt St
2016 2016 F 2016 2016 F

ARRES FHERES THRRES WRRES =¥
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAxT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1 818 - - - 94 94
Lapsed of convertible bond AR EFRY - - = (94) (94)
At 31 December 2018 R®2018%12A31H - - - - -

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

35. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 35. IELEBTHEBD
The deferred government grants represented the subsidies granted BEBRHRERPRERTREENE  BE
by the PRC government to the Group in respect of acquisition of KEREAREREEES T AEBERMEL -

property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
At 1 January M1A1H - _
Received during the year NG JE HER 6,504 -
Credit to profit or loss for the year (note 9) STAF B (HiEE9) (213) -
Exchange differences ) 91) =
At 31 December ®12A31H 6,200 _
Analysed as: DHT -
Current liabilities MEEE 262 -
Non-current liabilities JEmEBAE 5,938 -
6,200 -
36. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 36. EFENRERAEMENKIE
2019 PAONE:]
2019 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FBT
Trade and bills payables B 2 N FIE R ER R 60,854 77,783
Other payables and accruals A EFTROE K fERT B A
— related parties — AR 128 961
— third parties -E=F 46,329 37,178
Due to a director and ultimate controlling party JERTE S Ra R EHl A
— Mr. Guo Yumin -BERTE - 873
107,311 116,795

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

36. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 36. 5 EMARIERHEMmENE (&)
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on invoice B2 ENIB R ENEERERR DN (R E
date, is as follows: H) T :

2019 AONES
2019 2018 4F
Trade Bills Trade Bills
payables payable payables payable

8% ®5
EARE ENRE FERTRIR ANESE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHET THT THET

Due within 1 month or on demand 118 A R EI 85

SEESK 12,642 22,350 47,942 10,240
Due after 1 month but within 118 A1&E 3 & A
3 months AE A 7,740 - 3,871 =
Due after 3 months but within 3EA%E6EA
6 months A I ER 4,699 - 1,820 -
Due more than 6 months 6 & B 12 253 13,423 = 13,910 =
38,504 22,350 67,543 10,240
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payables are AEBESENFBERENEERNREEDSRED
denominated in the following currencies: LA E#EHE -
2019 PAONE:]
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FAT
us$ =T - 1,359
RMB ARHE 60,854 76,424
Total A&t 60,854 77,783

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

37. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 37. EHERE

Contract liabilities represented progress billing recognised in relation BHAEIEMEEEREYEERNEER -
to sales of goods and properties.

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities balances RBEERAR - BOABERITES KED) -
during the reporting period.

Movements in contract liabilities: BHAaEES
2018
2019 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Balance at 1 January B 1 A1 BE & 2,185 8,306
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FRNEERBANELEE
recognising revenue during the year was (YT AB OB E) RS
included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the period (1,884) (7,087)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of advance FETEWE P FHIAE R
received from customers AHBEEEMN 1,687 1,143
Exchange differences PEH %8 (38) (177)
Balance at 31 December R 12 A31 B & 1,950 2,185
JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

38. LEASE LIABILITIES

38. HEEE

Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
RIEHEESR BEAESTRWEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 20184 2019 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&T FHT FHET T
Within one year —FR 3,880 - 2,708 -
In the second to fifth years, MEERF
inclusive (BEERERE) 7,087 = 3,703 -
After five years & 20,743 = 12,500 -
31,710 - 18,911 -
Less: Future finance charges B RRMEER (12,799) = N/A N/A
Present value of lease HERENIRE
obligations 18,911 — 18,911 -
Less: Amount due for S 121EA A
settlement within 12 B 58
months (shown under (RmEa’E
current liabilities) TE#R) (2,708) -
Amount due for settlement 12 @ A& EIEp %8
after 12 months 16,203 -

The carrying amounts of the Group’'s lease liabilities are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEEEEEENREEATIIEEFHE

2019 2018
20194 20184

HK$°000 HK$'000

FH&T FAET

HK$ BIT 274 _
RMB AR 18,637 =
18,911 =

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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38.

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not been
restated. Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16
are set out in note 3.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the then sole shareholder
passed on 22 June 2012, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “share
option scheme”) was approved and adopted to provide grantees
with the opportunity to acquire equity interest in the Company.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time), directors and advisers of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

38.

39.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary

share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(a)

The terms and conditions of the grants at the date of the

grants are as follows:

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

HE&E (&)

AREFD NS HFAKERN B ERBESHT
B EERZE 165 - WHAEN2019F1 A1 H
RERVIAE 4 - ARER L RIR IR B B 25T 2R
FI7 R EEACEHENHERBNEES
& - # = 20184F 12 A31 BN BRI KR E
B o BEE BB ISHEERIFE 16 R LR
TBEEPAMIFES ©

LURAD BER ST

B ERME—RERN 201246 A 22 BBBMHNE
BRFERR - BAAHBEEIBRE S (B
HERTE] ) R E IR - BEAR AREKSE
AR RMME AR

B S 5 ERE| M BRENATHBAE
AAEERES (28)  EFREARRHEINE
BYA RARE AR SR B R R ©

SHMBRE A ARRREA LR — K
B - BARPRBAEH -

(@) REH BB R
o

fER1F 251

Options granted to

BFUTALTHBRE
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees
R B SEAH b= BE =]
29 January 2015 29 January 2016 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 A29H 20164 1 A29H 20254 1 A 28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2017 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 201741 H298 20254 1 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2018 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 2018 1 H29H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2019 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
20154 1 A29H 20194 1 A29H 20254 1 A28 H
29 January 2015 29 January 2020 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 202041 H29H 20254 1 H28H
2,100,000 12,500,000 14,600,000
IERZEREEERAF
20195 5,



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 39. URMAEBNIS (&)

(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

(b)  FBEAEEYEE MO FI9ITREENT -

Share options granted
on 29 January 2015

7201551 A 29 BEHBRE

Weighted
average
exercise No. of No. of

price options options
pilik: B B IR R IR R
TEE #HE #HE
HK$ ‘000 ‘000
o T ¥

Outstanding at 1 January 2019 720191818 K

and 31 December 2019 201912 H31H
o RATHE HK$0.8250 78 7T 53,650 53,650
Exercisable at 31 December 2019 /2019412 31 Ba{7ff | HK$0.8250%& T 42,920 42,920
Outstanding at 1 January 2018 M2018F1A1B R
and 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H
MR T HK$0.8250 % 7T, 53,650 53,650
Exercisable at 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31 BHAJ{7ff  HK$0.8250/8 T 32,190 32,190

The share options granted on 29 January 2015 outstanding at
31 December 2019 had an exercise price of HK$0.8250 (2018:
HK$0.8250) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 5.08 years (2018: 6.08 years).

The numbers of options and weighted average exercise price
were presented as after the effect of the share subdivision
with effect from 25 September 2015 on the basis of each
issued or unissued share of the Company was subdivided into
4 subdivided shares.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019

201541 29 B #t & iff 1 20194 12
A3TEEARTENBERENTEER
0.825078 7 (2018 4F : 0.825087T) * £
TN E L9 HAPR & 5.08 FF (2018 4F ¢
6.084F) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 40. ZRE8BHE&RERMIE

CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (a) MEBEETEIELANEBSYHER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRARKNEEREENEENEEE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- B SRR MIEReEE c MEEHM
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are EENBEEAEREE RS RERTIR
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, SREBENEAIKRRESRESEL
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows RMEEHEANIRESTNEE -

as cash flows from financing activities.

Impact on
initial
application of
HKFRS 16 Restated
(note3)  balance at
HERER  1January Cash Interest ~ Exchange 31 December

1 January B 2019 Additions flows expense differences 2019
019 BKERA Rn9E
0195 F6RNFE 1818 0195
1A1A (KE3) Bhlee #E Bé HEX EXzZE  1ANA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn T

Bank borrowings (note 32) FAEF(KE32) | 159,625 - 159,625 - (94,134) 5778 (1,367) 69,902
Lease liabilities (note 38) REBE(H38) - 16,010 16,010 6,237 (4,452) 1,451 (335) 18,911
159,625 16,010 175,635 6,237 (98,586) 129 (1,702) 88,813

At At

1 January Exchange 31 December

2018 Cash flows Lapsed differences 2018

P 20184 1220184

1A1H Ben BERH X EH 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT THL AT THET THT

Convertible bond (note 34) AR ES (fFE34) 9 - (94) = =
Bank borrowings (note 32) B {TE K (HFzE32) 153,452 12,923 - (6,750) 159,625
153,546 12,923 (94) (6,750) 159,625

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 40. 8B E&RERMIE (E)

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases

(b) MEREHR LA
RENRSRBXRPREAT LA

Amounts included in the statement of cash flows for leases
comprise the following:

2019 AONE:]

2019 20184F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHT

Within operating cash flows ERERSRER 2,735 3,975
Within investing cash flows ERERSRER 286 -
Within financing cash flows ERERESREF 3,001 —
6,022 3,975

ZECEEATIAE B

These amounts relate to the following:

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Lease rental paid BEffHE 5,736 3,975
Payments for right-of-use assets AR ERNK 286 =
6,022 3,975

(0 EEHFREXRSH

RBZE2019F12A31BLEFE - &
EABBRET  RERER 2 HELZHE
ZERAREERHEARIERSHEED T
746,237,000 770 ) 6,237,000 BT °

(c) Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of HK$6,237,000 and HK$6,237,000, respectively, in respect
of lease arrangements for buildings and plant and machinery.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



41.

42,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities (2018: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

42,

At 31 December 2018 the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years

—FR

MEERF (BREEEMST)

A%

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

HREE

R2019% 12 A31 8 @ AEBE W EEREAS
RBEQ0184 : &) -

REHETH
FEEERERAA

R2018%F 12 A31H @ RET A REEKLEHE
RARRSEAERMNFTAES AT ¢

2018
20184

HK$'000
TAT

2,403
3,879
15,885

22,167

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its offices and leasehold land. Leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from 1 to 25 years and rentals are fixed over the

lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As

at 31 December 2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar
to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease

expense disclosed in note 20.

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding lease commitments

relating to these offices are HK$336,000.

RERENREAEERESTHARAEL
RN MBS - HEEEAEBEER 1225
FRASHEEHANETE BT ERERREE -

AEETEHTIHAZRHAEE - R 2019412
A318 RHAEHESHENEF20FEENE
HAEY HMERASASHEM -

R2019F 12 A31H @ 2SR AEHBEHERE
B EAYE 5 336,000 78T °

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED) 42. K&iHEZHE (&)

The Group as lessor AEBERHBA
Operating leases relate to building owned by the Group with lease REEFREAEFTHBA 2 K2HEMNHEBAR2
terms of 2 years. The lessee does not have an option to purchase F o FAAERTHAERREEDE -

the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: THERKHREBERNFTET -
2019
2019 F
HK$'000
FTExT
Within one year —FR 2,403
The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss: TREI|EERTHRENSHE

2019
2019 5

HK$°000
TR

Lease income on operating leases LERENESKA 983

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. EXBEH LIRS

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, transactions with REE2019F % 2018F 12 A31 BIEFERN
the following parties are considered to be related party transactions: BTN EITIR SR AR T2 5 ¢

Mr. Guo Yumin Director and the ultimate controlling party
ERSEE of the Company

RABEE R REEHT

Ms. Xia Yu Director of the Company
BlEt RNABIES
Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin

Development Co., Ltd. (Note) B EREEHES

MR E AR E AR AR ()

Cheng Jun Group Limited Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HEEEFRAR HIBEREEHER
Union Winful Limited Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
BE KRR AR HBERGEEHRE
Sheen Dragon Properties Limited Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
hEEXARAA HHEREEHER
Hong Kong Rising Star Group Holdings Limited Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HEEREBIERARAR HBERGEEHEE
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon Investment Company Limited Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HEnERERRAR HBEREEHEE
Xuzhou Lvzhou Property Management Co., Ltd (Note) Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
NN EERER AR () HBEREEHE
Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official Mk : BXAHEZEHERDE - ZEEENES
names of these entities are in Chinese. BIELAR XUR%E -

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. EXBEEIR S (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEBEAEHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEBFTEEEAEFHM(BIENMN
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors 15T EE S 7t T E = MM st 14 it B2
as disclosed in note 15 and certain of the highest paid N FET RS HMESHZ0E) S50
employees as disclosed in note 14, is as follows: T
2019 PAONE:]
2019 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FBT
Short-term employee benefits 5 R B & T 7,059 10,140
Post-employment benefits BB 2R 281 346
Equity compensation benefits AR AR (E4E T 227 484
7,567 10,970

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. EXBEEIR S (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions (b) HMtBEHAIRS
In addition to those related party transactions disclosed in MRARE B TS MR M 5 43(a) FTR B2 2 5
note 43(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the Bt R 5N ANEBRFEANEE RG]
Group had the following transactions with its related parties AV

during the year:

2019
2019 F
Repayment Repayment
Rental to related received from
expenses parties related parties
BR G 5E R HEES
HEMX FRiSFIE WERHYIE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT FET
Cheng Jun Group Limited BEEBERAR _ _ 26
Union Winful Limited Bt E Kk EHRAF] - _ 51
Hong Kong Rising Star Group EBEREEZER
Holdings Limited BRAA] - - 144
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon EEmERE
Investment Company Limited BIRAF] = - 7
Sheen Dragon Properties Limited mEEXRERAT 350 - -
Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate RNImEE B AR
Development Co., Ltd. BRAT = (830) -
Mr. Guo Yumin BERKE 170 (577) -
520 (1,407) 228
2018
20184
Interest Rental Repayment to
expense expenses related parties
BRI HeR®Z ) S 77 R K
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Xuzhou Ruilong Real RN IR H 2= A 3
Estate Development BRAH
Co., Ltd. 369 686 (24,919)
Mr. Guo Yumin FEREE - = (4,795)

369 686 (29,714)

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

43. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. EXBEEIR S (&)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EERFEES BVAEER
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had the R20194F K& 2018F 12 A31H » K&EH
following balances with related parties: A DA T B AR 7 O BR%EE ¢
2019 2018
20195 2018 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FAxT
Due from related companies JEL FA RS 75 SRIE
— Cheng Jun Group Limited - HEEEERAT (i) = 26
— Union Winful Limited - BaKEHR AR 0) - 51
— Sheen Dragon Properties Limited - InBE B ¥ GRAF (i) 544 106
— Hong Kong Rising Star Group - AAEREEER
Holdings Limited BRAF] (@) = 144
— Hong Kong Sheen Dragon - BRI EBR AR
Investment Company Limited (i) = 7
Due from/(to) a director and ultimate &Y~ (fER) EF
controlling party e R 75 SRR
— Mr Guo Yumin -SEREE (i) 572 (873)
Due from a director FEMEEFRIE
- Ms Xia Yu -8Bt (i) 80 -
Interest payable JERTFIE
— Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate - RINmEEE HhE 3
Development Co., Ltd. BRAH (i) - (830)
Due to a related company JE1S BAHS: 75 SR IE
— Xuzhou Lvzhou Property — RMAR N B 1
Management Co., Ltd. BIRAA] (i) (128) (131)
1,068 (1,500)
(i)  The amounts due from/(to) related companies and () FEd () BB AR R EE A
directors are interest-free and expected to be recovered Brg - BIEHERN—FAKE -

within one year.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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44,

45,

46.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures has been and continued
to be implemented across the globe. The Group is paying close
attention to the development of, and the disruption to business
and economic activities caused by, the COVID-19 outbreak and
evaluates its impact on the Group. Given the dynamic nature of the
COVID-19 outbreak, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of its financial effect on the Group’s financial position, cash
flows and operating results at the date on which these financial
statements are authorised for issue.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020.

44.

45,

46.

REMBEHRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFE

BREMREE

2020 F IR 2019 B RSB mZ& - — &
FIFEFG A= HITE e B R 2 IR E AR E T o
NEBE —BZYBET 2019 BRESHIEHLE
R UA R R MBS B R T - ST R AR
EENFE - BR2019BRE SRR IBHIE)RE
M ERERHZEMERABE 518G
SATEHAEE SR  BeRE RELEEE
BT ISR W TEES -

A 6

AEEBE N 20194 1 A1 BEALIEETHE M
EIRERB AR ELERE 165 - TEILE
ETR  NEIILRER - FTBURE E R#E—
B ENRHIEES

BEFBRR

P H5HEN 20204F 3 A 31 HEREFS 4 AR
REFI)EE -

JERZEREBERAR
2019 F R



Summary Financial Information

MBERBE

TXABEREMBRFEAREEE TEXEA
REEFRABZHE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A310LEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019 20184 20174 2016 4F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT FAT FAT FET
RESULTS %5
Revenue WA 376,208 453,827 1,250,706 478,354 469,241
(Loss)/profit before tax Bl (B18) 5 F (44,092) (18,882)  (182,164) 47,984 381,164
Income tax (expense)/credit Friefi (i) /% (3.781) (7,734) 16,078 (11,852) (54,634)
(Loss)/profit for the year FRN(BE) 5F (47,873) (26,616)  (166,086) 36,132 326,530
Attributable to: AR A LA
Equity shareholders NN 253
of the Company (47,873) (26,498)  (165,219) 36,132 326,530
Non-controlling interests E3uiigr = (118) (867) = =
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER) RFl (47,873) (26,616)  (166,086) 36,132 326,530

As at 31 December

R12A831H
2018 2017 2016 2015
20184 20174 20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FHT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FERBEE 512,355 535,058 511,183 739,957 386,918
Current assets mEERE 471,286 586,747 761,599 1,394,868 1,027,481
Current liabilities mEAaE (190,059) (284,654) (369,958) (1,041,845)  (417,314)
Non-current liabilities FEREEE (27,931) (5,844) (5,052)  (259,047) (79,735)
Net assets FEE 765,651 831,307 897,772 833,933 917,350
Attributable to: AT ALFEL :
Equity shareholders ARAIERRER
of the Company 765,651 831,307 898,324 833,558 917,350
Non-controlling interests IR - - (552) 375 =
Total equity T R 765,651 831,307 897,772 833,933 917,350

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2019
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